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DELTA AT A GLANCE

Welcome to the Delta integrated
annual report
Who we are

Delta is a JSE listed Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT”) with
a property portfolio of R11.5 billion.
The Fund is black managed with a level 2 B-BBEE contributor
status which is the highest in the sector. Delta continues to be
the dominant sovereign listed property fund in South Africa.
The primary focus of the Fund is long-term investment in
quality, rental income-generating properties situated in
strategic nodes attractive to sovereign entities and other
tenants requiring empowered landlords.
Our performance

Full year distribution of

97.24 cents

T
 hird consecutive year
reduction in gearing to

per share

41.3%

Successfully refinanced

Maintained

R941 million
in debt

level 2 B-BBEE
rating
with new sector code

Renewed and concluded

146 918m

2

of leases
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C
 oncluded stage 1 for
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227 550m
bulk lease renewal
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THE
STRENGTH
OF DELTA
Pretoria
Pretoria Nodal analysis
Delta owned properties
ABSA Towers
Momentum Building
Treasury
Telkom Towers
CGI Building
(DPW Head Office)
AVN Building
(DPW occupied)
State Theatre
Sammy Marks
Shopping Centre
Intended new
municipal HQ

1–8
9
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11
12
13
14
15
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13

9

15

16
17

4

14

6

16
17

8

7

3
11
2

12
1

Hallmark Building
25-level office building
Completed in 1972, Hallmark is a 25-level office building centrally located near
Church Square, Pretoria CBD, Tshwane. The structure rises 88m with a GLA of
26 255m2 tenanted by the Department of Home Affairs.

105

Valuation of property

R11.5 billion

properties in total
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3
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2
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83
2
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3
3 83 3
83
Retail
Retail
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– other
Office – Office
other – other
Office
– otherIndustrialIndustrial Industrial
Retail
Industrial
overeign
OfficeOffice
– sovereign
Office
– sovereign
Office – other
Office – sovereign
Office – other
Industr
Office
– sovereign

Delta is
represented
3
in all nine
of South
Africa’s
provinces

2
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2
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Industrial
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Number of buildings
36
17
17
11
7
7
5
3
2
105

2
Industrial
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Buildings represented by province
Province
Gauteng
KwaZulu-Natal
Free State
Mpumalanga
Limpopo
Northern Cape
Western Cape
Eastern Cape
North West
Total

Offic

KwaZulu-Natal

83

Office – Office
other – sovereign
83
3
Office – sovereign
Retail

2

24

17

Free State

Northern Cape
24

Gauteng

Office – other

North West

6

Mpumalanga

26

3
924
24 24
83
2 2
3 23
24
Office – other
Retail
Retail Industrial
OfficeOffice
– other
– Office
other – sovereignIndustrial
Industrial2
3

83 83

Office83
– sovereign
Office
– sovereign

Office – sovereign

11

36

7

GLA (m2)
404 721
278 403
85 507
30 251
44 885
37 275
41 889
23 717
5 780
952 428

Liberty Towers

Designed by Louis Karol Architects, the building was completed in
1996. With a GLA of 40 095m2, Liberty Towers is multi-tenanted. The
city’s largest reference collection and the Don Africana Library with
more than 50 000 catalogued items are housed on the 10th floor.

Durban
8

18

15

20 17
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21

14

1
12

10
9

Durban Nodal analysis
Delta owned properties
Durban International
Convention Centre
Durban City Hall
Workshop Mall
(Old Railway Workshop)
Durban Marina
Redefine Towers
SAHARA Park
Kingsmead
South Beach
Commercial City
Buildings
Durban Bay House

19

13

2 11
7 3

4

1 – 12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

16

Bloemfontein Nodal analysis
Delta owned properties
1 – 13
Hoffman Square
14
Sand du Plessis Theatre
15
Waterfront Mall
16
Loch Mall
17
Appeal Court
18
“Fourth” Raadsaal
19
Bloemfontein City Hall
20
CR Swart Building
21
Lebohang Building
22
Bram Fisher Building
23
Liberty Life Building
24

Thuto House
Six-level office building single
tenanted
Located in close proximity to the
Central University of Technology
in Bloemfontein’s Main CBD
node, Thuto House is a six-storey
2 111m2 GLA building fully tenanted
by the Department of Education.

Bloemfontein
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General information
Country of incorporation and
domicile

South Africa

Nature of business and
principal activities

Delta Property Fund Limited (“Delta”, “the Company”), and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”), a Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT”)
company, is listed on the JSE under the financial – real estate sector.
Delta’s primary business is long‑term investment in quality, rental
generating properties.

Directors

Sandile Hopeson Nomvete

Chief Executive Officer

Otis Ndora Tshabalala

Chief Operating Officer

Shaneel Maharaj

Chief Financial Officer

Johannes Bhekumuzi (“JB”) Magwaza

Chairman

Nooraya Khan
Davina Nodumo (“Dumo”) Motau
Ian Donald Macleod
Nombuso Norah Afolayan
Mfundiso Johnson Ntabankulu (“JJ”)
Njeke

Lead Independent Director

Moshiko Caswell Ramokgadi Rampheri
Registered office

Silver Stream Office Park
10 Muswell Road South
Bryanston
Johannesburg, 2021

Postal address

Postnet Suite 210
Private Bag X21
Bryanston, 2021

Auditors

BDO South Africa Incorporated
Chartered Accountants (SA)
Registered Auditors

Company Secretary

Paula Nel (BCom ACIS)

Company registration number

2002/005129/06

Level of assurance

These Group annual financial statements have been audited in
compliance with section 30(2)(a) of the Companies Act of South Africa

Preparer

The Group annual financial statements were compiled under the
supervision of Shaneel Maharaj CA(SA), HDip Tax

Published

29 June 2018

Vision, mission and focus for 2018
Our vision

Delta’s vision is to be a specialist sovereign-underpinned property fund offering sustainable
returns to investors while being the landlord of choice to sovereign tenants.

Our mission

The vision will be achieved by:
●● having dominant exposure in nodes attractive to sovereign tenants;
●● leveraging Delta’s excellent empowerment credentials;
●● application of a sovereign specialist management process; and
●● efficient capital management and value-enhancing asset management.
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About this report
This integrated annual report presents the performance and activities of
Delta Property Fund for the financial year ended 28 February 2018. It reflects
our commitment to good performance, sustainable value creation, ethical
leadership, corporate citizenship, legitimate stakeholder interactions and
integrated thinking.
This fully integrated annual report illustrates
Delta’s commitment to corporate governance
and King IV™* compliance. Where possible,
areas of integrated reporting have been
covered, explained and linked in this
integrated annual report, including issues of
sustainability, strategy, performance, risk and
risk mitigation. This integrated annual report
has been prepared to assist the Group’s
stakeholders to make an informed
assessment of the Group and its ability to
create and sustain value over the short,
medium and long term.
The financial reporting contained in this
integrated annual report complies with
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”), as applied to the annual financial
statements.

The principles of King IV relating to integrated
reporting have also been applied, as well as
the provisions of the Companies Act of South
Africa.
The Board of Delta acknowledges its
responsibility to ensure the integrity of this
integrated annual report and has collectively
assessed its content. The Board believes it
addresses the material issues, and is a fair
representation of the integrated performance
of Delta Property Fund, and has approved
the report for presentation to stakeholders.

*
Copyright and trademarks are owned by the
Institute of Directors in Southern Africa NPC and
all of its rights are reserved.

Forward looking statements

This integrated annual report contains certain forward looking statements
relating to the financial performance and position of the Group. All forward
looking statements are solely based on the views and considerations of the
directors.
While these forward looking statements
represent the directors’ judgements and
future expectations, a number of risks,
uncertainties and other important factors
could cause actual developments and results
to differ materially from their expectations.
These factors include, but are not limited to,
global and local market and economic
conditions, industry factors as well as
regulatory factors.
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Delta is not under any obligation to (and
expressly disclaims any such obligation to)
update or alter its forward looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise.
This forward looking information has not
been reviewed or reported on by the external
auditors.

2018 fast figures
Shares in issue

Vacancy rate

11.8%

711 844 486
Market capitalisation

Weighted average rent
(per m2)

R110.6

R4.3 billion
 et asset value (“NAV”)
N
per share

Weighted average lease
expiry# (years)

Number of properties

Weighted average in force
escalation

R10.06

6.0%

105
Fair value of property portfolio

Loan to value

41.3%

R11.5 billion
Average value per property

Fixed debt

85.4%

R109.6 million
Gross lettable area

Weighted average cost
of debt

9.2%

952 428m2
 enant sectorial profile (GLA)
T
Office – sovereign:
83
Office – sovereign

72.8%
24

83

OfficeOffice
– other– sovereign

2
Office – other
Industrial

Tenant sectorial profile (GLA)
Industrial:
24

 enant sectorial profile (GLA)
T
Office – other:

16.4%

24
83
Office – other
Office – sovereign Industrial

83

e – sovereign
#

2
Office – other

1.5

24
Retail

3
Industrial

3
RetailIndustrial

2
Retail

3

3.9%

Tenant sectorial profile (GLA)
Retail:
2
Retail

3

6.9%

Tenant sectoral profile analysed by revenue.
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Our business structure

DELTA PROPERTY
FUND LIMITED
Delta has various trading and dormant subsidiaries and an
investment in an associate operating in Africa excluding South Africa
Subsidiaries
●●
●●
●●
●●

●●

●●

●●

Hestitrix Proprietary Limited
K2014000273 Proprietary Limited
277 Vermeulen Street Properties Proprietary Limited
Hendisa Investments Proprietary Limited
(dormant)
Atterbury Parkdev Consortium Proprietary
Limited (dormant)
Phamog Properties Proprietary
Limited (dormant)
Choice Decisions 300
Proprietary Limited (dormant)

Associate
●●

Grit Real Estate Income
Group Limited (“Grit”)
(previously known as Mara
Delta Property Holdings
Limited)

Delta and its subsidiaries are supported by various service
providers in respect of property management services and
asset management services:
Property management service providers
●●
●●
●●

●●

●●

Delta Property Services (“DPS”)*
Broll Management Services Proprietary Limited
Excellerate Real Estate Services (previously known
as JHI Properties Proprietary Limited)
Braamcor Management Services Proprietary
Limited
Moolman Group Property
Management Proprietary
Limited

* A division of DPAM.
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Asset management
service provider
●●

Delta Property Asset
Management Proprietary
Limited (“DPAM”)

Five-year review
2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

1 564 053
1 149 885
482 179
26.5
12.1

1 617 344
1 153 341
470 580
28.8
12.4

1 247 582
925 531
412 713
26.4
12.2

1 009 207
764 884
316 380
26.0
10.2

654 023
502 503
151 149
25.5
10.8

Number of properties
Investment property (R’000)
Average value per property (R’000)
Gross lettable area (m2)
Investment in listed securities (R’000)

105
11 507 600
109.6
952 428
381 868

112
11 381 421
101.6
981 777
429 588

100
10 095 181
101.3
813 505
472 546

82
8 420 400
102.4
703 103
502 986

77
6 965 730
90.5
621 442
333 637

Borrowings (R’000)
Loan to value (%)
Weighted average interest rate (%)
Average debt expiry period (years)
Average debt fix expiry period (years)
Fixed: floating debt (excluding
revolvers) (%)

4 952 690
41.3
9.2
1.5
1.5

5 099 227
41.5
9.2
1.9
2.2

5 094 310
47.2
8.8
2.3
2.1

4 508 565
49.9
8.1
2.4
2.4

3 197 742
47.5
7.5
2.8
3.0

85.4

85.1

83.5

78.0

36.0

711 844 486
6.00
4.27

710 632 182
8.30
5.90

533 097 436
6.50
3.47

458 409 836
8.90
4.08

429 510 825
7.89
3.39

10.06

9.91

10.61

10.02

9.28

72.8
16.4
3.9
6.9
88.2
110.6
6.0

69.6
23.9
4.1
2.4
89.3
105.2
6.9

67.5
21.4
3.9
7.2
91.0
102.9
7.8

63.2
26.2
5.7
4.9
92.9
95.8
8.0

57
28
8
7
95.4
90.5
8.0

Revenue (R’000)
Net property income (R’000)
Finance costs (R’000)
Cost to income ratio – gross method (%)
Cost to income ratio – net method (%)

Shares in issue
Closing share price (Rand)
Market capitalisation (R billion)
Net asset value per share (excluding
deferred tax)
Tenant sectorial profile (GLA) (%)
Office – sovereign
Office – other
Industrial
Retail
Occupancy rate (%)
Weighted average rental (per m2)
Weighted average escalation (%)
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Significant achievements over the
financial years
2010

March:

PROPERTY

110 Hamilton

FUND

The Company was initially founded as Tuffsan 89 Investment
Holdings Proprietary Limited. The first direct property
investment was the acquisition of the Forum Building in Pretoria.
With the management, expertise and deal-making capabilities of
the founding shareholders, further building acquisitions followed.

SARS Kimberley

Cooper House

Tivoli

SARS Springs

2013

2014

Successfully raised R1 billion in
rights issue for acquisitions.

Launched and listed
Delta International (rebranded to
Grit), first specialist pan-African
(excluding South Africa) property
fund to be listed on JSE.

May:

June:

July:
Launched
R2 billion Domestic
Medium-Term Note
programme
(“DMTN
programme”).

August:
Delta’s portfolio comprised 78 strategically located
and high-grade properties, valued at over R7.2 billion
and with a market capitalisation of around R3 billion.

2016

February:
Achieved third consecutive year of inflation beating growth
in distributions. Investment portfolio exceeds R10 billion.

October:
Delta acquired a portfolio of 15 government
tenanted properties for a purchase
consideration of R1.25 billion.
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2012

November:
Delta successfully listed on the JSE Limited.
The portfolio at the time comprised
20 properties valued at R2.1 billion
and with a market capitalisation
of R1.35 billion.

2015

March:
Successful capital raised of R680 million,
allowing Delta to pay down bridging
facilities and to conclude acquisitions.
September:
First in the industry to establish a Trust for the benefit of
black employees as owner of the asset management
company on commercial terms.

2017
May:

Property portfolio just under
1 million m2 in gross lettable area.
November:
Refinanced R462 million
DMTN with bank facilities.

2018

October:
Settled R125 million
unsecured note in DMTN.
February:
Finalised DPW
approval (stage 1)
for 59 leases
totalling 227 550m2.

Delta Property Fund integrated annual report 2018 /
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Our business model
Financial
capital

Manufactured
capital

Intellectual
capital

Objective: Income
growth and capital
appreciation

Objective: To ensure
manufactured capital
generates capital
appreciation and
income growth

Objective: Intellectual property
and corporate culture are critical
to preserve, grow and retain
skills

●●

Inputs

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

Outputs

●●

●●

●●

Obtain capital
from investors
Invest capital
from equity
investors
Effective capital
management
Reinvest capital
received from
disposals

Sustainable
income growth
Managed loan to
value (“LTV”) ratio
Create certainty
of income
Disposal of
non-core assets
Maintain
appropriate
gearing ratio

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

Own high-quality
assets in strategic
nodes
Invest capital to
attract and retain
tenants
Acquire yield
enhancing assets

Ownership of assets
which provide
long-term investment
returns due to
demand
Create quality assets
which will attract and
retain committed
long-term tenants
Create superior
returns for investors

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

Performance

●●

●●

●●

●●

Maintained flat
distribution
growth in a
challenging
trading
environment
Reduced LTV
from 41.5% to
41.3%
85.4% of debt
fixed
Net disposal
proceeds of
R83 million
reinvested

●●

●●

Significant portfolio
of assets strategically
located within the
governmental node
in KwaZulu-Natal
and Tshwane
R185 million capex
spent with a further
R78 million committed
at year-end
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●●

●●

●●

●●

Active asset and property
management
Effective leasing fundamentals
to generate and collect rentals
and manage vacancies
Secure and safe operating
systems
Dedicated investor relations
function

Well-managed portfolio
generating growth in income
within a well-contained cost
structure
Effective cash flow
management with high
rental income
Integrated property
management, accounting
and human resources
systems with backup
cloud storage facilities
Effective controls and
processes supporting
transparent disclosure

Like-for-like net property
income growth of 5.2%
with net cost to income
ratio of 12.1%
Debtor days well managed
at 18 days with vacancies
of 11.8%
Continuity in operations with
increased productivity
Transparent and reliable
communication through
multiple communications
channels

Delta is an income-focused REIT which creates value for all stakeholders by owning, managing
and investing in quality assets which will generate long-term capital and income growth.
The business, under ethical leadership and sound corporate governance principles, supports a
sustainable and effective business model that aims to align inputs, outputs and performance.

Natural
capital

Human
capital

Social and
relationship capital

Objective: To ensure that
operations limit their impact
on the environment

Objective: To grow
and nurture the talent,
knowledge, and skills
of our people

Objective: To ensure interactions
with local stakeholders are
meaningful and constructive

●●

●●
●●

Energy, carbon emission,
water, and waste reduction
targets
Renewable energy
Energy efficiency

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

Reduced environmental
footprint
Reduced energy
consumption
Create a sustainable
environment

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

Installation of energyefficient lighting
All lift upgrades comprise
renewable energy
functionality
Investigating leasing of
rooftops for solar initiatives
that reduce reliance on the
power grid
Responsible waste removal
and recycling practices
encouraged and
implemented at our
buildings

●●

●●

●●

Regulatory compliance
and corporate
governance
Experienced and
skilled Board
Competent executive
management
Black economic
empowerment
Education and training

Compliance with
JSE regulations,
Companies Act and
King IV
Strategic risk
management and
investment strategy
to protect and grow
the business
Implement
transformation
initiatives which are
aligned with DPW and
their requirements
Develop staff
productivity and
address skills shortage
Board adequately
composed with a
diversity of skills
and experience
Level 2 B-BBEE rating
maintained with a
100% black external
MANCO
Training, bursaries
and support to the
women in property
network initiatives

●●

●●
●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

Entrepreneurial and supplier
development
Developing communities
Actively participating in
CSI initiatives
Participating in inner city
rejuvenation

Assisting in creating
sustainable small businesses
that contribute to the
economy
Sustainable social
responsibility through
supporting and developing
communities
Employee participation in
CSI initiatives
Contribute towards B-BBEE
scorecard
Uplifting inner cities

Effectively managing
procurement spend to
qualified and vetted SMEs
Corporate social spend of
R1.3 million incurred with
focus on schools and
property initiatives
Staff actively participated in
various CSI projects involving
painting, cleaning and packing
meals
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Property segment statistics
Portfolio breakdown
By building sector unless stated
otherwise

Office –
sovereign*

Number of properties
Gross lettable area (m2)
Vacancy (%)
Value (R billion)
Average rental (R/m2)
Weighted average escalation (%)
Weighted average lease expiry (by
revenue) – by building type (years)
Weighted average lease expiry (by
revenue) – tenant specific (years)#
Cost to income ratio (net) (%)
Cost to income ratio (gross) (%)

Office –
other Industrial

Retail

77
637 246
7.2
8.3
118.4
5.7

21
251 208
23
2.7
86.2
7.5

4
40 258
19.0
0.2
53.1
3.0

3
105
23 716 952 428
3.1
11.8
0.3
11.5
118.8
110.6
7.9
6.0

1.4

1.6

1.2

5.4

1.5

1.3
8.7
22.5

1.7
22.9
38.4

1.2
5.9
15.4

3.2
23.7
35.8

1.5
12.1
26.5

Total

*	Multi-tenant buildings are classified according to majority tenant type. Office – other buildings therefore
contain a minority element of sovereign tenants.
#
	This classification looks specifically at the tenant type within each building.

Sectoral split by GLA (%)

Detailed tenant breakdown by
revenue (%)

72.8

Office – sovereign

16.4

Office – other

6.9

Retail

3.9

Industrial

Detailed tenant breakdown by GLA (%)
33.7

10

National
government

37.5

National
government

21.6

Provincial
government

12.8

Office – other

11.8

State-owned
enterprise

7.5

Retail

6.9

Local government

1.9

Industrial

Geographic profile by GLA (%)
42.5

Gauteng

29.2

KwaZulu-Natal

9.0

Free State

4.7

Limpopo

14.5

Office – other

14.1

Provincial
government

11.8

Vacant

4.4

Western Cape

10.6

State-owned
enterprise

3.9

Northern Cape

3.2

Mpumalanga

2.5

Eastern Cape

0.6

North West

6.1

Retail

5.8

Local government

3.4

Industrial
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Tenant grade by GLA (%)

Office building grade by GLA (%)

84.2

A

13.7

A

4.3

B

85.7

B

11.5

C

0.6

C

Lease expiry by GLA (%)

Lease expiry by revenue (%)
Vacant

11.8

Vacant

16.8

Month to
month/expired

18.1

Month to
month/expired

33.9

28 February 2019

13.9

29 February 2020

21.5

28 February 2021

7.0

28 February 2022
28 February 2023
Beyond
28 February 2023

29.1

28 February 2019

12.2

29 February 2020

19.6

28 February 2021

5.4

28 February 2022

1.6

1.5

28 February 2023

4.0

3.6

Beyond
28 February 2023

Lease expiry by GLA: office sovereign
(%)

Lease expiry by GLA: office other (%)

21.6

Month to
month/expired

15.0

Month to
month/expired

33.9

28 February 2019

37.2

28 February 2019

13.3

29 February 2020

15.8

29 February 2020

21.5

28 February 2021

22.0

28 February 2021

5.6

28 February 2022

5.0

28 February 2022

1.5

28 February 2023

1.6

28 February 2023

2.6

Beyond
28 February 2023

3.4

Beyond
28 February 2023

Delta Property Fund integrated annual report 2018 /
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Property portfolio statistics (continued)
Lease expiry by GLA: retail (%)

Lease expiry by GLA: industrial (%)

Month to
month/expired
28 February 2019

17.5

13.9

34.3

Month to
month/expired
28 February 2019

21.7

29 February 2020

0.0

29 February 2020

15.6

28 February 2021

48.2

28 February 2021

17.3

28 February 2022

0.0

28 February 2022

5.3

28 February 2023

0.0

28 February 2023

23.6

Beyond
28 February 2023

0.0

Beyond
28 February 2023

2.6

Profitability per sector (%)
100

Municipal recoveries (%)

80

75

85

74

40

40
22
9

19

38

27

21
7

85

81

60

36
12

0

Office –
Office –
Retail
Industrial
Total
sovereign
other
■ Cost to income ratio (net)
■ Cost to income ratio
(gross)
■ Municipal recovery ratio

12

99

100
80

60

20

120

120

92

92
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40
20

39
8

0
■ Rates ■ Electricity ■ Water and effluent
■ Refuse ■ Levies, meter reading and other ■ Total

Our top 10 properties by value

Forum
Building

Property description: Six-storey
single-tenant office
Address: Bosman Street, Pretoria

GLA 41 003m2
Building sector: Office – sovereign

24

83

2

Office – other

Office – sovereign

Value

Industrial

Total
Single
4/2/2010
R676 300 000

Tenancy (multi/single)
Date of acquisition
Property value

Poyntons

Property description: Office,
parking and ancillary structures of
between two and 33 storeys
with ground floor retail
Address: Church Street, Pretoria

GLA 73 369m2
Building sector: Office – sovereign

Office – sovereign

Value

24

83

2

Office – other

Industrial

Total

Tenancy (multi/single)
Date of acquisition
Property value

Multi
31/5/2016
R535 200 000
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Our top 10 properties by value (continued)

Liberty
Towers

Property description: 14-storey
multi-tenant office complex
Address: 214 Dr Pixley Kaseme Street, Durban

GLA 40 095m2
Building sector: Office83
– other
Office – sovereign

24

2

Office – other

Retail

Industrial

Value

3

Total
Multi
31/10/2012
R422 000 000

Tenancy (multi/single)
Date of acquisition
Property value

Hallmark
Building

Property description: 25-storey
single-tenant office tower with
high street retail
Address: 233 Proes Street, Pretoria

GLA 26 255m2
Building sector: Office – sovereign
Value
Tenancy (multi/single)
Date of acquisition
Property value

14

24

83

Office – sovereign
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Office – other

2
Industrial

Total
Single
2/5/2013
R409 000 000

Retail

3

Delta
Towers

Property description: 33-storey
multi-tenant office tower with ground
floor/high street retail
Address: City block bounded by
Dr Pixley Kaseme Street, Dorothy Nyembe Street,
Anton Lembede Street and Mercury Lane, Durban

GLA 41 707m2
Building sector: Office83
– other
Office – sovereign

24

2

Office – other

Retail

Industrial

Value

3

Total
Multi
26/9/2014
R397 000 000

Tenancy (multi/single)
Date of acquisition
Property value

Embassy
Building

Property description: 29-storey
multi-tenant office tower with
high street retail
Address: Corner Anton Lembede and
Samora Machel Streets, Durban

GLA 32 788m2
Building sector: Office – sovereign

Office – sovereign

Value

24

83

2

Office – other

Industrial

Total

Tenancy (multi/single)
Date of acquisition
Property value

Multi
23/5/2013
R336 000 000
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Our top 10 properties by value (continued)

Isivuno

Property description: 22-storey
single-tenant office building
with ground floor retail
Address: 135 Van der Walt Street, Pretoria

GLA 23 694m2
Building sector: Office – sovereign

24

83
Office – other

Office – sovereign

Value

2
Retail

Industrial

3

Total
Single
1/4/2016
R328 000 000

Tenancy (multi/single)
Date of acquisition
Property value

Hensa
Towers

Property description: Eight-storey
single-tenant office
Address: Corner Landdros Mare and
Rabie Streets, Polokwane

GLA 13 675m2
Building sector: Office – sovereign
Value
Tenancy (multi/single)
Date of acquisition
Property value

16

24

83

Office – sovereign
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Office – other

2
Industrial

Total
Single
15/7/2013
R306 200 000

Retail

3

Phamoko
Towers

Property description: 10-storey
single-tenant office
Address: 37 Kerk Street, Polokwane

GLA 13 058m2
Building sector: Office – sovereign

24

83

Office – sovereign

2

Office – other

Value

Industrial

Total
Single
18/9/2013
R271 900 000

Tenancy (multi/single)
Date of acquisition
Property value

The Marine

Property description: 21-storey
multi-tenant office tower with
ground floor retail
Address: 22 Dorothy Nyembe
(ex-Gardiner) Street, Durban

GLA 24 655m2
Building sector: Office83
– other

Office – other

Office – sovereign

Value

24

2
Retail

Industrial

Total

Tenancy (multi/single)
Date of acquisition
Property value

Multi
26/9/2014
R258 000 000
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Our strategic priorities
Medium-term objectives

Optimise
net property
income
(“NPI”)
and grow
distributions
in excess of
inflation

Gearing to
be managed
at 40% of
total assets

Selectively
recycle and
upgrade
assets

Dispose
of non-core
assets to
reduce
gearing and
invest in
capex

2018 PERFORMANCE

Achieved flat
growth in
distributions
per guidance
to the market

Achieved
41.3% gearing,
which was
negatively
affected by a
decline in
value of Grit
shareholding

Spent capex
of R185 million
which was
mostly
defensive

Achieved
disposals of
R316.0 million
with further
R325.8 million
committed
in sale
agreements

39% to 40%

Budget of
R200 million
approved

R644.1 million
of remaining
non-current
assets
held-for-sale

2019 TARGETS

Distribution
expected to
decrease by
between 2%
and 4%

■P
 erformance
needs improvement
18

■ Satisfactory
performance

■ Good
performance
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Medium-term objectives

Long-term
renewal of
leases

Manage
portfolio
vacancies

Manage our
Successfully
B-BBEE
refinance
scorecard
expiring debt
and rating
facilities
levels

2018 PERFORMANCE

Achieved
1.5 years and
awaiting the
DPW bulk
lease
renewals

Achieved
11.8% due to
challenges in
the Free
State
Provincial
and ex-Eskom
Sunninghill
portfolios

Level 2 rating
expired
November
2017 with
rating under
new sector
codes under
way at
year-end

Successfully
refinanced
R941 million
bank and
settled
R125 million
unsecured
note in DMTN

7.5% to 9%

Level 2 or 3
rating based
on new
sector codes

R2.3 billion

2019 TARGETS

Three to
seven years
weighted
average
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Catalyst for
employment creation

LIBERTY TOWERS
Location: 214 Dr Pixley Kaseme Street, Durban
GLA: 40 095m2
Province: KwaZulu-Natal
Property description: 14-storey multi-tenant office complex
Building sector: Commercial offices with high street shops
Acquisition date: 31 October 2012
A Louis Karol Architects design, construction of Liberty Towers ended
in 1996. The asset is multi-tenanted and benefits from its location in
the Durban CBD. In the current constrained economic environment,
there is a noticeable trend where corporates reoccupy the Durban
CBD for their call centre and back-office operations, given the lower
rentals vis-a-vis prime areas, as well as the CBD’s proximity to key
public transport nodes frequented by the bulk of their employees.
During the year under review, Delta completed several long-term
leases in the node, including a 10-year lease with one of the country’s
largest fashion retailers as well as for the headquarters of one of
Africa’s largest providers of technology, media, telecommunication
and financial services.
The 10th floor of Liberty Towers houses the Central Reference
Library, the most extensive interdisciplinary reference collection
in the city’s public library system. The main reference
collection consists of over 48 000 volumes covering a variety of
subject areas.
The library is heavily used by students from the tertiary
education institutions in the Durban Metropolitan area.
These include the universities, technikons, the commercial
colleges and art and design schools. These students also
make extensive use of the collection especially for
projects and assignments.
20 / Delta Property Fund integrated annual report 2018
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Our Board of directors

1

2

3

4

5

1. JB Magwaza (JB) (76)

4. ON Tshabalala (Otis) (46)

JB has many years’ experience as a board representative
for various JSE listed and non-listed entities, including
Chairmanships at Tongaat Hullet, Pamodzi Investments,
Motseng, Mutual & Federal, Nkunzi Investments and SAA.
He brings a wealth of fiduciary experience to the Board of Delta.
Appointed: 1 October 2012

Otis has over 25 years’ experience in the commercial property
sector. He heads up the asset management, property
management and DPW task team that deals with government.
He is a key member of the team that grew Delta from
20 properties at listing to its current 112 properties.
Appointed: 20 June 2016

2. SH Nomvete (Sandile) (45)

5. N Khan (Nooraya) (49)

Independent non-executive Chairman C ✦
BA MA (UK)

Chief Executive Officer
Property Development Programme and Executive
Diploma

Sandile is a co-founder of Delta Property Fund and has nearly a
decade and a half of experience in executive and non-executive
positions. His entrepreneurial and forward-thinking persona has
propelled him into becoming one of South Africa’s leading
business executives.
Appointed: 30 April 2009

Chief Operating Officer
Property Development Programme and CCPP

Non-executive director C ✱
CA(SA)

Nooraya is an experienced and highly successful private equity
transactor with vast experience in negotiating, implementing
and managing private equity and black economic empowerment
transactions.
Appointed: 1 October 2012

3. S Maharaj (Shaneel) (43)

Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

Chief Financial Officer
CA(SA), HDip Tax

Shaneel is a seasoned CFO with over 15 years’ financial
experience. He joined Delta in December 2015 assuming a
strategic role in its overall financial, procurement and IT
management including its subsidiary companies.
Appointed: 29 February 2016

Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Investment Committee
	
Transformation, Social, Ethics and Sustainability Committee
C

Chairman of particular committee

✦ Nomination Chairman
✱ Remuneration Chairman
See full CVs on Company website.
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6

7

8

9

10

6. DN Motau (Dumo) (55)

9. MJN Njeke (JJ) (59)

Dumo started her career in banking progressing from the South
African Reserve Bank to government, and currently focuses on
the financial inclusion of SMEs into the formal sector. She plays
a strategic role in the overall transformation and CSI initiatives
at Delta.
Appointed: 5 November 2014

JJ’s vast experience comprises member of the Katz Commission
of Inquiry into Taxation in South Africa, the General Committee
of the JSE Limited, the Audit Commission – supervisory body
of the Office of the Auditor General, the Audit Committee of
National Treasury and the Editorial Board of the Journal of
Accounting Research.
Appointed: 1 April 2017

7. ID Macleod (Ian) (65)

10. MCR Rampheri (Caswell) (47)

Independent non-executive director C
BCom, Diploma Advanced Banking, Certificate
Business Project Management

Independent non-executive director
BCom (Honours): Real Estate Investment, Valuation
and Development

Ian has 44 years of experience with financial institutions
focusing on real estate credit risk. His experience includes the
managing of portfolios during changing economic cycles and
particularly managing problematic properties in economic
downturns.
Appointed: 5 November 2014

Independent non-executive director C
CA(SA)

Independent non-executive director C
BA (Law), LLB, HDip Tax

Caswell’s experience in commercial properties stretches
23 years and covers leadership and strategy as well as a
wealth of experience in property development, property asset
management, property management and property investments.
Appointed: 1 June 2017

8. NN Afolayan (Nombuso) (40)
Independent non-executive director
MBA in Finance

Nombuso has completed several executive leadership and
advanced business programmes and has extensive experience
in the management of projects, supply chains and stakeholder
relations.
Appointed: 29 February 2016
Delta Property Fund integrated annual report 2018 /
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Chairman’s statement

WE REMAIN
CONFIDENT OF
OUR SOVEREIGN
STRATEGY AND
WILL CONTINUE TO
RECYCLE CAPITAL,
CONCLUDE NEW LEASES
AND CONTAIN COSTS

Dear stakeholder,

Previously, we guided against a backdrop of ongoing significant market
and political turbulence that played out towards the latter part of our
financial year.

Key takeouts
●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

24

The change in guard of the ruling party
significantly impacted the anticipated
timelines to gain clarity on national
government’s revised lease policy.
We continue to expect a strong
emphasis on black ownership that will
have a direct bearing on length of
lease terms.
The delayed ratification of the lease
policy had a profound knock-on effect
on our ability to renew leases
and refinance costs have increased
significantly.
Higher than budgeted lease income
and cost containment offset these
increases partially.
We remain confident of our sovereign
strategy and will continue with capital
recycling, re-tenanting and cost
containment initiatives during this
protracted period.
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South Africa’s new leadership is widely
perceived as being business friendly,
evidenced by the country narrowly averting a
third credit downgrade.
Notwithstanding the upward revision of
projected growth rates and general optimism,
there is still a long road ahead before these
anticipated benefits will filter through to the
average citizen in the form of employment
creation and a better standard of living for all
in South Africa.
Towards the end of our financial year, local
equity
markets
were
rocked
by
unprecedented corporate scandals and
vicious campaigns by activist short-sellers
that severely impacted market sentiment.
On a total return basis, the JSE listed
property sector index lost 19.4% for the first
quarter of 2018.

The good news is that given the optimism
around the ruling party’s new leadership and
key new deployments, real estate investors’
sentiment has warmed to listed Real Estate
Investment Trusts (“REITs”) with a dominant
domestic focus.

2018 performance, recapitalisation
and transformation

Although overall positive, the change in
guard impacted the anticipated timelines to
gain clarity and sign-off on government’s
revised leasing policy. This was exacerbated
by the circulation of numerous versions of
the draft policy which led to widespread
speculation and interpretations. With Mr
Thulas Nxesi brought back as Minister of
Public Works (“DPW”), who originally
initiated the redrafting of the leasing policy,
we are expecting traction on sign off of the
policy.
Our interpretation of the proposed policy
remains that a strong emphasis will be placed
on black ownership, which will have a direct
bearing on a sovereign landlord’s ability to
negotiate long-term leases with national
government.
The protracted delay in policy sign-off
and implementation has had a significant
impact on Delta’s ability to renew leases.
Although these continue on a month-tomonth
basis,
refinance
costs
have
increased, with limited offset from
higher than budgeted lease income and
stringent cost cutting throughout the
period. Capital recycling and refinancing of
expiring facilities remain a key focus for the
Board and management.

Delta successfully managed to conclude
several renewals with DPW on its bulk lease
proposal and has in addition concluded
significant new leases. Our vacancies have
increased slightly due to challenges in
specific nodes, the full details of which
are covered in more detail in the Chief
Executive and Chief Operating Officer’s
overviews respectively.
The market was updated several times,
during the year under review on our
engagement
with
an
empowerment
consortium. This proposed empowerment
recapitalisation transaction (“the proposed
transaction”), once successfully concluded,
will inject much needed capital into the
business and achieve significant direct black
ownership of Delta. This will assist in
recapitalising the business, reducing reliance
on debt funding, achieving index-inclusion
and facilitating the growth of Delta through
yield accretive, strategic acquisitions.

Enhancing governance

During the reporting period, the Board was
further bolstered with the appointment of
Mr JJ Njeke and Mr Caswell Rampheri
as independent non-executive directors.
Both gentlemen bring significant property
experience to the Board.
Mr Andrew König stepped down as nonexecutive director following the disposal of
Redefine’s shareholding in Delta to a black
women-led empowerment group, which
included Ms Nooraya Khan. The Board thanks
Andrew for his contributions during his
tenure. On conclusion of this deal, Nooraya
stepped down as lead independent director
but remains on the Board as a non-executive
director.
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Chairman’s statement (continued)
Mr JJ Njeke was subsequently appointed as
lead independent director and Chairman of
the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee.
Post the reporting date, Ms Bronwyn Corbett
resigned as independent non-executive
director to focus full time on her role as
Chief Executive of Grit. We thank Bronwyn
for her valuable contributions over the years
and wish her the very best.

Communication on strategy

Delta’s fundamentals remain solid, with
stable lease income streams. The Company
will continue to navigate through this
protracted period and remains confident of
the favourable conclusion of government’s
national leasing policy, which is expected to
trickle down to set the standard for provincial
and municipal benchmarking over time.
Until such time as clarity around the lease
policy has been obtained, management will
continue with its focus on disposing of noncore assets, asset management and tenanting
opportunities, cost containment and,
importantly, refinancing commitments.
Parallel to this, the Board will endeavour to
successfully conclude its empowerment
recapitalisation transaction, that will provide
a significant springboard to the Fund’s next
growth phase.

Dividend

The Board declared a final dividend of
50.84 cents per share for the six months
ended 28 February 2018, resulting in a full
year distribution of 97.24 cents per share
(2017: 97.24 cents per share), in line with the
guidance provided to the market.

Conclusion

We expect that the domestic-focused listed
property market will continue to face
headwinds in the new financial year.
Perceptions around sovereign underpinned
funds will likely be driven by increased
political rhetoric and positioning in the leadup to the 2019 national elections, the sixth
national election in our democracy.
Despite the current challenging and tough
trading climate, we remain committed
to Delta’s sovereign strategy.
The Board anticipates earnings to decrease
by between 2% and 4% for the 2019 financial
year primarily due to once-off lease
adjustments being traded off for longer-term
lease, disposal of assets held-for-sale and
issue of shares for acquisition of the Free
State portfolio.

JB Magwaza
Chairman of the Board
31 May 2018
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CEO’s review
OUR FOCUS
ON PROPERTY
FUNDAMENTALS
IS BEARING FRUIT.
THE RECAPITALISATION
OF DELTA WILL
SIGNIFICANTLY BOLSTER
EMPOWERMENT
CREDENTIALS AND
SUPPORT CAPEX
INVESTMENTS
Introduction

Delta, the dominant sovereign listed property fund in South Africa, is black
managed and one of the most empowered funds in the sector.

Key takeouts
●●

●●

●●

●●

Delta is a niche REIT with specific
expertise to navigate protracted
periods associated with sovereign lease
renewals and regime changes.
Despite pressures emanating from
higher finance costs, the Fund
continues to report strong underlying
rental income flows and the successful
renegotiation and conclusion of new
leases.
Management’s focus on basic property
fundamentals is bearing fruit.
Negotiations on further improving
Delta’s empowerment credentials and
recapitalisation of the Fund are at an
advanced stage.

The primary focus of the Fund is long-term
investment in quality, rental incomegenerating properties situated in strategic
nodes attractive to sovereign entities and
other
tenants
requiring
empowered
landlords.

Navigating through the protracted
period

At the time of writing, we are still faced with
several variables outside of the direct control
of the Company, but which could impact the
short-term performance of the business and
its forecasts:
●● The promulgation of the lease policy that
will inform national sovereign lease terms
and escalation rates;
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CEO’s review (continued)
●●

●●

Delta’s proposed transaction, that will
qualify it for long-term leases under the
new policy, recapitalise the Company,
result in index inclusion and provide it with
a platform for its next growth phase; and
Strong macro-economic growth that will
support capital recycling and tenant
demand.

Update on lease negotiations

It is often said that one should be able to
adjust the ship’s sails irrespective of the
prevailing winds. Continuing with the nautical
metaphor, Delta’s management remained
committed to keep the business on an even
keel during a challenging year.
During the review period, bulk lease
negotiations with government’s Property
Management Trading Entity (“PMTE”)
commenced in earnest. As alluded to in
several conversations with shareholders
during the year, Delta spearheaded this
initiative with the PMTE, which now forms the
department’s blueprint for negotiations with
all its landlords with significant sovereign
tenant exposure.
Much emphasis has been placed on the
promulgation of the leasing policy and to
have an endorsed policy is one part of the
solution. Another challenge is finally
concluding the national lease renewals which
will significantly improve the weighted
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average lease expiry (“WALE”) of the
Company. It is therefore encouraging to see
proactive and pragmatic engagement from
the DPW and the user departments in
structuring solutions. This will be discussed in
more detail in the COO’s report.

Impact of protracted period

Currently, 21.6% (2017: 26.8%) of Delta’s
sovereign leases are on a month-to-month
basis. The Fund’s total exposure to sovereign
leases (by rental income) is 77.9% (2017:
76.4%).
Debt totalling R941 million was refinanced
during the reporting period, with the
average debt facility expiry period
contracting to 1.5 years (2017: 1.9 years) for
the year under review.
Our ongoing interactions with debt providers
has shown that the WALE is a strong
determining factor when negotiating
refinance terms and costs. Loan to value
(“LTV”) is a lesser consideration and we
believe that the institutions we interact with
remain comfortable with Delta’s current LTV
of 41.3%.
Over the past reporting periods we have
significantly reduced LTV and we maintained
the downward trajectory for the period under
review.

Mitigating strategies

During the reporting period, we met with the
newly appointed Director General of Public
Works who expressed strong commitment to
engaging with financiers and the market at
large once the leasing policy has been
gazetted. These engagements will be key in
providing our debt funders with the
commitment they need and is expected to
positively impact our cost of debt and ability
to refinance. We have also noticed
an encouraging trend where the banks
themselves are proactively engaging with
Treasury and DPW.
Recapitalisation
Delta is awaiting the final funding terms from
the consortium for the proposed transaction
that will inject much needed capital and
achieve significant direct black ownership of
the Fund.
This recapitalisation of the business will
reduce reliance on debt funding, facilitate
index inclusion and provide a platform for
growth through yield accretive acquisitions.
Capital recycling
Our capital recycling strategy continued,
with the disposal of some non-strategic
assets, reducing the portfolio from 112 to
105 buildings. Vacancies increased slightly,
mainly because of Eskom consolidating its
footprint at Megawatt Park in the Sunninghill
node and challenges in tenanting the Free
State portfolio relating to local supplier
preferences.

In conjunction, cost containment has been
driven hard by the Board and management.
Our gross operating cost is anticipated to
stabilise between 26% and 29%.
Disposal of listed investment
The Board has moved its position on Delta’s
investment in Grit from a hold to a short-term
hold. The Company no longer regards its
11% holding as strategic and is actively
considering several opportunities to dispose
of its investment, in due course.
Proceeds from the disposal will be utilised
to facilitate capital expenditure or to
settle debt.

Conclusion

Despite the current challenging and tough
trading climate, we remain committed to
Delta’s sovereign strategy. Delta will continue
to focus its efforts on the basic property
fundamentals to create a healthy and
sustainable business for all stakeholders.

Sandile Nomvete
Chief Executive Officer
31 May 2018
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COO’s report

DURING THE YEAR
UNDER REVIEW,
95 LEASES
REPRESENTING
93 144M2 WERE
RENEWED, AND NEW
LEASES TOTALLING
53 774M2 WERE
CONCLUDED

Portfolio overview

Despite a tough macro-economic climate and political uncertainty prevailing
during the year under review, Delta Property Fund has managed to perform
against expectations, achieving its fifth consecutive full year distribution
forecast.
The delays in finalising the DPW leasing
framework has severely affected the
Company. Our WALE has decreased from an
industry leading seven years at the time of
listing, to a current 1.5 years.
Following the appointment of Mr Cyril
Ramaphosa as President, a cabinet reshuffle
resulting in Mr Thulas Nxesi being brought
back to head up DPW and to oversee the
turnaround and implementation of the
leasing policy which originally was his
initiative, prior to him being redeployed.
His reappointment has been warmly
welcomed by the sector. He is well known as
a man of action and we remain bullish that
the new proposed leasing policy will be
signed off. The proposed leasing policy, as we
understand,
favours
and
supports
transformation, the impact of which is
detailed in this report.
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On successful conclusion of these DPW
renewals, Delta’s WALE is expected to
increase significantly. Delta concluded
successful meetings with the joint National
Department of Public Works (“DPW”) and
Treasury negotiating team on proposed
terms and rental, resulting in the approval of
59 leases with a total GLA of 227 550m2
progressing to stages 2 and 3 of the
finalisation process for renewal. The
department is currently engaging user
departments to confirm budgets and tenant
requirements for their approval (stage 2)
before the National Bid Adjudication
Committee
finalises
(stage
3)
and
recommends the signing of leases. Our
expectation is that these leases will be
renewed before the end of the second
quarter of the new financial year.
We believe that the proposed move by the
President to amalgamate certain departments

will have little impact on Delta’s overall
position as landlord of choice to government,
given quality, scale and strategic locations of
our assets.

Proceeds from the sale of assets will
contribute towards reducing the Fund’s
LTV and a portion utilised will go towards
capex projects.

Vacancies in our dominant nodes of Pretoria
CBD and Durban CBD are 4.4% (SAPOA
12.8%) and 16.6% (SAPOA 17.1%) respectively.
Our biggest vacancies emanate from the
Bloemfontein portfolio and the former Eskom
Sunninghill portfolio. In the Free State
province, we continued to face challenges
with lease renewals to provincial departments
as the current policy seeks to empower local
property entrepreneurs. We have engaged
the provincial departments and are bullish
that we may be able to finally renew these
leases. If our efforts in this regard prove
unsuccessful, our alternative strategy is to
exit some of these assets over time.

Our
portfolio
remains
a
sovereign
underpinned fund with well over 75% of
income derived from sovereign tenants
(defined as national government, provincial
government, local government and stateowned
enterprises).
Delta’s
portfolio
spans across all nine provinces in the
country with concentration in Gauteng
and KwaZulu-Natal.

Management has made a concerted effort to
collect rentals on time, retain arrears below
5%, and ensure that debtor days continue to
be well managed. During the year under
review we have moved some property
management from external managers to
Delta Property Services.
In line with our focus on optimising the
current portfolio, no acquisitions were made
during the year under review and
management focused on renewing leases
and refurbishing the buildings.
Our disposal strategy continued to be
impacted by the prevailing tough economic
climate, which also affected the achievement
of desired disposal yields. The remaining
portfolio represents the more challenging
non-core assets earmarked for disposal
and we continue to aggressively market
these for sale, while also exploring different
use alternatives.

Sovereign outlook

Our portfolio has remained defensive given
the current weak economic climate.
Notwithstanding
the
delay
in
the
promulgation of the leasing framework,
significant progress has been made as far as
lease renewals are concerned.
The then Minister of Finance announced in
his 2016 budget speech that government,
through the DPW, will renegotiate all leases
(expired and current) as part of cost
containment
measures
and
curbing
expenditure.
To this end, the DPW received approval in
terms of the National Treasury SCM
Instruction Note 3 of 2016/2017 to deviate
from competitive bidding process, for all the
expired leases at 18 December 2017 and
leases expiring after 18 December 2017. This
means that the DPW can engage all landlords
and/or their representatives to negotiate
these leases.
“We will be holding a national meeting with
landlords on 31 May – specifically to expedite
the matter of expired leases and the
signing of long-term leases, including so
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COO’s report (continued)
called 9.11 leases (nine years, 11 months).
This
meeting
sends
the
message
that government is now ready to do
business with the property sector and to
bring certainty to the market – based on
market-related pricing, improved value and
service to government, and broadbased black economic empowerment.”
(Budget Policy Vote. Vote 11 Public Works:
TW Nxesi MP: 2018)
The policy as mentioned in the portfolio
overview of this report favours transformed
companies through long-term leases. In
order to successfully and emphatically
transform the sector, Delta is part of a group
for listed REITs advocating strongly for the
policy recognising a sub-sector of black
listed funds. The policy considers the three
axes of ownership, management and control.
Delta scores highly on management and
control and its proposed transaction stands it
in good stead to qualify for the long-term
(nine year, 11-month) leases.

Portfolio performance

In anticipation of the implementation of
DPW’s leasing and policy framework, Delta’s
WALE is approximately 1.5 years. Following
our engagement with and submission of
the renewal proposals to DPW, we are
confident of concluding between five and 10year leases on most of the renewals, which
will increase Delta’s WALE going forward.
Despite an increase in the average rates and
taxes costs (which are currently not
recoverable from DPW user departments)
the total municipal recovery ratio improved
due to municipal credits received in the year
under review. This impacted positively on our
net cost to income ratio of 12.1% (2017: 12.4%).
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The portfolio’s weighted average rent of
R110.6 per m2 (2017: R105.2 per m2) benefited
from the delayed finalisation of lease
renewals, which would have resulted in rental
reversions due to the longer lease contracts.

Significant leases concluded

During the year under review, 95 leases
representing 93 144m2 were renewed at an
average rental of R101.4 per m2. New leases
totalling 53 774m2 were concluded at average
rentals of R92.2 per m2.
Three major leases were concluded during
this period: eThekwini municipality at
Embassy and Delta Towers with leases
totalling a GLA of 14 680m2 have been
secured over a three-year term at rentals of
R85 per m2, escalating by 7.5% per annum. As
previously reported, two other major leases
on two vacant assets have also been secured
during this period. Commission House in
Tshwane will accommodate the Department
of Public Enterprises. A lease for 6 157m2 has
been secured over a three-year term at
rentals of R105 per m2, escalating by 7.5% per
annum. Delta Heights, also in Tshwane, will
house the Compensation Fund for the next
three years. A lease for 14 229m2 has been
signed at rentals of R105 per m2 escalating at
8% per annum.

Acquisitions

Since the transfer of the Redefine portfolio in
August 2016, Delta has not acquired any
other buildings. In line with our optimisation
strategy, focus has been on optimising
the existing portfolio, identification of noncore assets for disposals and building a
pipeline for potential acquisitions following
the pending approval of the proposed
transaction.

We continue to focus on the current portfolio
comprising 105 assets from a leasing and
capex point of view.

a GLA of 31 035m2 and an aggregate selling
price of R325.8 million. Transfer of these four
buildings is imminent.

Disposals

Delta’s disposal strategy is constantly
motivated by:
●● its
focus on optimising the portfolio
through the disposal of non-core and
underperforming assets;
●● its strategy to reduce debt and capital
recycling; and
●● further consolidation and refinement of its
position as landlord of choice for sovereign
and empowerment sensitive tenants.

During the 2018 financial year, Delta disposed
of seven buildings for a total consideration of
R316.0 million with a total GLA of 35 403m2.
These buildings are Samora House, Damelin
House, Presidia, 1 and 3 Ferreira, 14 New
Street and Edcon Building. An additional four
buildings, namely Block G, Broadcast House,
12 New Street and Top trailers 1 have binding
sale agreements as at year-end, totalling

Delta has successfully disposed of the properties tabled below:
GLA
m2

Property

Sector

Location

Samora House
Damelin Building
1 Ferreira Street
3 Ferreira Street
Presidia Building
14 New Street
Edcon Building

Office – sovereign
Office – other
Office – other
Office – other
Office – other
Office – other
Office – other

Durban
Durban
Nelspruit
Nelspruit
Pretoria
Johannesburg
Johannesburg

Transferred

Block G
Top trailers 1
12 New Street
Broadcast House

6 920
3 933
961
2 282
12 656
2 463
6 188
35 403

Office – sovereign
Industrial
Office – other
Office – sovereign

Pretoria CBD
Johannesburg
Johannesburg
Mthatha,
Eastern Cape

Sales price
R’000

Transfer
date

45 238
7 March 2017
55 000
5 July 2017
11 300
20 June 2017
26 700
20 June 2017
115 000
13 October 2017
16 762 28 November 2017
46 000
24 January 2018
316 000

7 991
15 741
2 368
4 934

225 800
50 000
17 000
33 000

Sale agreements concluded

31 034

325 800

Seven other non-core assets

59 096

644 100

Expected
transfer date
End August 2018
End June 2018
End of June 2018
Early June 2018
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COO’s report (continued)
The Department of Public Works, Roads and
Transport has vacated the Old Mutual
Building (2 605m2) and the Sediba Building
(8 210m2) resulting in a total of 10 815m2
vacancy of the total GLA of 85 507m2 in the
Free State.

A total of seven buildings successfully
transferred out of the Delta portfolio, totalling
GLA of 35 403m2 at an average sale price of
R8 926 per m2 representing 85% to 90% of
the book value at the time of sale. Four
properties are currently under sale agreement
and another seven are held-for-sale.

No additions have been made to our disposal
list in the 2018 financial period.

The Sunninghill portfolio formerly occupied
by Eskom is still on our disposal list following
Eskom’s decision to consolidate all its
operations in Megawatt Park. Our leasing
team has successfully secured a three-year
lease of 1 930m2 in Enterprise Park with
Universal Health.

Net asset value and valuations

Pre-disposals, the portfolio’s net asset value
increased from R11.2 billion to R11.5 billion,
representing a growth of 2.3%. This growth
was influenced by rental reversions, renewing
leases at escalations of 5.5% to 6.0%, and
renewal and conclusion of new leases during
the year.

The Bloemfontein node has been quite a
challenge from a provincial government
leasing perspective due to a previous
provincial policy to empower local black
landlords. As indicated in the last financial
reporting period, we had received several
unsolicited offers to dispose of the Free State
portfolio which we declined as we continue
to try and renew the leases.

Post-disposal of 11 properties, the base
portfolio as at 28 February 2018 gained 3.2%
in value, increasing from R10.2 billion to
R10.5 billion. The increase in value despite a
decrease in number of properties bears
testament to management’s ability to identify
and manage non-performing assets within
the portfolio.

February 2018
pre-valuation
R’000

February 2018
post-valuation
R’000

Growth
R’000

Percentage

105 properties
pre-disposals

11 254 024

11 507 600

253 576

2.3%

94 properties
post-disposals

10 205 401

10 535 000

329 599

3.2%

Number of properties

We expect the marginal growth to be offset
by the longer lease terms currently being
negotiated as we are well positioned to
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benefit most from the newly signed policy
given our current and targeted directive,
which could result in further growth.

Major capex projects

Capital investment remains a high priority to
ensure quality assets that meet the tenants’
requirements. The following major capital
projects were either recently completed, are
in progress or are close to completion:
●● Sleepy Hollow (PMB) – Fully completed in
February 2018.
●● 88 Field Street (Durban) – Completed at
an estimated cost of R89 million.
●● Embassy Building (Durban) – Estimated
cost of R28 million. Strategic to securing
future leases. Completion end of Q2 2019.
●● Beacon
Hill (King William’s Town) –
Approved cost of R40 million due to a new
five-year lease. Commencement Q2 2019.
●● Commission House (Pretoria) – The tenant
installation for new tenant currently
under way, planned completion for midJune 2018.
●● 17 Harrison Street – Approved estimated
spend of R4.5 million for the replacement
of the escalators and the tenant installation
of the existing tenant spaces. Estimated
completion May 2018.

outsourced, as we seek to bolster our
internal property management expertise
and capacity.
The DPW Delta task team continues to have
ongoing constant engagements with DPW at
all levels to ensure that our rentals are paid
on time and leases are renewed and vacancies
filled up.

Conclusion

Notwithstanding the changes at DPW and
the delays in finalising the DPW leasing
policy, we remain optimistic that the policy
and lease renewals will be finalised and
implemented before 31 December 2018, as
publicly confirmed by the Minister of Public
Works and Deputy Director General of
Treasury at the DPW conference that was
held on 31 May 2018.
Our focus in the current year remains on
the successful renewal of leases, the
tenanting of vacancies as well as the disposal
of non-core assets.

Appreciation

To differentiate Delta as a landlord of choice
for government and empowerment-sensitive
tenants, we will continue to attract top calibre
individuals into the Company and the
property management team will be insourced
to further align our objectives.

On the property management front,
Phil Harford and his team have continued to
deliver. The internal property management
team has geared up and taken over some of
the properties that were previously

Otis Tshabalala
Chief Operating Officer and Chief
Investment Officer

The operations and asset management
teams continue to work as a unit under the
leadership of Sandra Mqina. Despite the
tough economic challenge, they have been
able to meet and exceed their duties. The
appointment of staff who have experience at
DPW has provided invaluable input to our
ongoing engagements with DPW.

31 May 2018
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CFO’s report

WE EXPECT THE
DISPOSAL OF ASSETS
HELD-FOR-SALE
AND CONCLUSION OF
THE BULK LEASE RENEWAL
DURING 2019 TO HAVE A
SIGNIFICANT POSITIVE
IMPACT ON THE LTV RATIO

South Africa narrowly averted a third national credit ratings downgrade
during the year under review, mainly due to a change in investor sentiment
following the conclusion of the ruling party’s national elective conference
towards the end of the reporting period. Notwithstanding the resultant
euphoria, the macro-economy remains constrained, impacted by higher oil
prices and a firmer dollar.
It is therefore encouraging that, despite the
protracted period emanating from the
cabinet reshuffle and ongoing macroeconomic headwinds, Delta continued to

deliver steadily in line with expectations as
management’s
focus
on
property
fundamentals mitigated some of these
challenges.

Financial overview
Distributable income
Distribution per share (cents)
Interim – August
Final – February

36

/ Delta Property Fund integrated annual report 2018

28 February
2018

28 February
2017

97.24
46.40
50.84

97.24
45.93
51.31

Delta’s Board declared a final dividend of
50.84 cents per share for the six months
ended 28 February 2018, resulting in flat

Simplified distributable income statement
Net property income
Administration expenses
Finance costs
Interest income
Dividend income
Other income
Antecedent distribution
Prior year retained earnings distributed

distribution growth over the full year to the
comparable period. This is in line with the
communicated market guidance.

28 February
2018
R’000

28 February
2017
R’000

1 147 865
(53 329)
(482 179)
19 696
35 666
20 287
257
3 378

1 148 479
(68 169)
(470 580)
27 168
37 990
6 214
–
(3 378)

Distributable income for the period
Number of shares in issue at year-end (’000)
Cost to income ratio (net) (%)
Cost to income ratio (gross) (%)
Interest cover ratio

691 641
711 844
12.1
26.5
2.4

677 724
710 632
12.4
28.8
2.5

Net property income decreased marginally
by 0.3%, with like-for-like growth of 5.2%. The
gross cost to income ratio and net cost to
income ratio decreased to 26.5% and 12.1%
respectively, primarily due to municipal
adjustments and credits received.

The implementation of Basel III has negatively
impacted pricing, as increased cost of
holding capital for banks are charged to
customers.

Administrative expenses for the period
decreased by 21.8%, largely affected by the
reallocation of expenses to property
operating expenses. On a normalised basis
administrative expenses decreased by 2.3%,
due to stricter cost management initiatives.
Finance costs increased by 2.5%, due to
higher weighted average interest rate of
9.5% on facilities renewed together with
increased debt structuring fees amortised.

The disposal of the investment in Baystone
Holdings and the corresponding release of
the R116.1 million cash backed guarantee,
resulted in interest income decreasing by
27.5%.
Dividend income from Grit in US dollar terms
increased by 2.7%. However, the effect of
forex due to the strengthening of the rand
against the US dollar resulted in the rand
value recognised decreasing by 6.1%. Delta’s
11.5% shareholding in Grit was impaired by
R21.9 million, as the carrying value of the
investment exceeded the fair market value at
28 February 2018.
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CFO’s report (continued)
Other income increased significantly by
R14 million, mainly due to the contractual reinstatement cost charged to the Department
of Statistics on termination of their lease.

Antecedent distribution arose on shares
awarded to shareholders who elected the
distribution reinvestment at interim August
2017.
28 February
2018
R’000

Investment property
Fair value at the beginning of the year
Acquisitions
Fair value adjustments
Disposals including straight-line rental income accrual
Capital expenditure
Borrowing costs
Straight-line rental income accrual
Fair value at year-end
Non-current assets held-for-sale
Investment property
Investment property benefited from lease
renewals concluded during the financial year
together with positive market sentiment
post the ANC elective conference, translating
into an upward fair value adjustment of
R264.5 million of the portfolio.
The disposal of Samora House, 1 and 3 Ferreira
Street, Damelin House, Presidia, Edcon
Building and 14 New Street for R316 million
was concluded during the year. The net
proceeds, post-vendor loan of R46 million
and debt settlement of R187 million,
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11 381 421
–
264 527
(325 804)
169 767
15 669
2 020
11 507 600
(972 600)
10 535 000

28 February
2017
R’000
10 095 181
1 335 264
8 728
(281 458)
202 964
15 879
4 863
11 381 421
(1 327 500)
10 053 921

amounted to R83 million and was utilised for
capital expenditure and to settle short-term
facilities.
Due to the tough trading and economic
environment experienced during the year,
we were not successful in disposing of all
the properties as envisaged. Management
remains committed to its disposal plan and
expects to conclude the sale of the remaining
properties held-for-sale within 12 months
following financial year-end.

Borrowings
Loan to value (“LTV”) (%)
Weighted average interest rate (%)
Fixed versus floating debt (%)
Average debt fix expiry period (years)
Average debt expiry period (years)
LTV improved to 41.3% (2017: 41.5%),
benefiting from the upward fair value
adjustment to investment property but
negatively impacted by the reduction in the
market value of our investment in Grit to
R381.9 million (2017: R429.6 million). We
expect the disposal of assets held-for-sale
and conclusion of the bulk lease renewal
during the 2019 financial year to have a
significant positive impact on the LTV ratio.
Bank facilities totalling R941 million were
refinanced at a blended margin of 2.6%
above the three-month JIBAR reference rate,
and a R125 million unsecured commercial
paper was settled during the year.

28 February
2018

28 February
2017

41.3
9.2
85.4
1.5
1.5

41.5
9.2
85.1
2.2
1.9

No new swap agreements were entered into,
with a R350 million Nedbank interest rate
swap and a R125 million Standard Bank crosscurrency swap expiring during the year. The
settlement of floating facilities improved the
fixed versus floating debt to 85.4%, well
within our target of minimum 80% fixed.
The average debt expiry period has
decreased to 1.5 years, mainly due to the
passage of time and refinance of certain
facilities on a short-term basis. The debt
expiry period is directly linked to the lease
term; hence, the intention is to term out the
debt expiry profile once the bulk lease
renewals are concluded.

The Group’s weighted average interest rate
remained flat at 9.2%, benefiting from the
prime interest rate reduction of 25 basis
points on 21 July 2017.
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CFO’s report (continued)
Net asset value (rand)
13.00
12.50
12.00
11.50

0.37

11.00

0.02

0.01

(0.98)

0.83

(0.11)

10.50
10.00
9.50

10.06

9.91
28 Feb 2017

Contribution
from
operations

Fair value of
investment
property

Fair value of Contribution of
financial
associate after
instruments
impairment
and forex
gains

Net asset value (“NAV”) per share increased
1.5% to R10.06, which on an ex-div basis
amounts to R9.55 (2017: R9.40). This was
primarily due to the increase in the
independent valuation of the investment
property portfolio at year-end.

Working capital and cash
management

Trade and other receivables increased by
22.7%, largely driven by higher trade and
sundry debtors respectively, together with
deferred expenditure capitalised on leases
concluded during the year. Debtors net of
impairments was still within target of 5% of
invoiced value, with the retail segment being
affected by the tough economic trading
environment requiring a larger provision for
doubtful debt.
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Dividend
paid

Disposals

28 Feb 2018

Trade and other payables increased by 51%,
primarily due to higher trade creditors and
collection of income received in advance
from tenants. Delta endeavours to drive
down effective working capital management
principles to all property managers to ensure
cash is well managed within the business.

Prospects

Government’s renewed focus on service
delivery and efficiencies, especially with the
“old guard” returning to DPW, is encouraging
and supports management’s view that
the new leasing policy will be swiftly
implemented.
The implementation of the leasing policy and
corresponding long-term leases will have
significant benefit to the business. The WALE
will increase and correspondingly enhance

the value of the portfolio, thereby reducing
LTV. This will further create a benefit on
pricing and tenure of new debt and debt
refinance which will be more competitively
negotiated. Overall property fundamentals
should prevail within the market and a yield
compression is envisaged, which will close
the current significant discount to net asset
value.
Net property income for the 2019 financial
year is forecast to decrease by 2.3%, with
reversions on once-off lease adjustments and
loss of income from disposal of assets heldfor-sale, accounting for 3.6% and 4.6%
respectively. However, distribution per share
is expected to decrease by between 2% and
4%, with the issue of the final tranche of
shares for the Free State portfolio acquisition
creating further dilution. This forecast is
based on the structure of the business and its
operations as at year-end February 2018 and
excludes any mergers and acquisition, and
recapitalisation initiatives.

Appreciation

I would like to thank my finance team for their
dedication, commitment, and hard work
during the year. I also extend my appreciation
to the Board for its valued guidance and
sound advice when required.

S Maharaj
Chief Financial Officer
31 May 2018
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Catalyst for effective
service delivery

SARS RANDBURG
Location: Corner Hill and Kent streets, Randburg
GLA: 8 496m2
Province: Gauteng
Property description: Four-storey office
Building sector: Commercial offices
Acquisition date: 30 August 2013
Located in the Randburg CBD, the building is easily accessible from
several main arterial routes which include public transport. SARS
Randburg has been purposefully configured to manage high-volume
clientele effectively. Adequate accessibility for the physically
handicapped, parking, seating and signage ensure an efficient flow
while cubicles allow for private consulting where appropriate.
Effective service delivery is supported by convenient location, access
to complementary support services and a professional atmosphere.
The location and structure of the asset allows it to accommodate
auxiliary services such as tax consultants, accounting, legal and
other advisory services.
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Corporate governance
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
at the date of this report

Delta Property Fund Board
JB Magwaza (Chairman) ❂
SH Nomvete (CEO)
ON Tshabalala (COO)
S Maharaj (CFO)
N Khan ✮
BA Corbett ✮ #
DN Motau ❂
ID Macleod ❂
NN Afolayan ❂
MJN Njeke ❂ (lead independent)
MCR Rampheri ❂

Board sub-committees
A
 udit, Risk and Compliance
Committee
MJN Njeke C
ID Macleod
NN Afolayan

R
 emuneration and Nomination
Committee
JB Magwaza (Nomination) C
DN Motau
N Khan (Remuneration) C
BA Corbett#

✮ Non-executive
❂ Independent non-executive
C Chairman of particular committee
#

Resigned 12 April 2018.

Investment Committee
MCR Rampheri C
ID Macleod
NN Afolayan

T
 ransformation, Social, Ethics and
Sustainability Committee
DN Motau C
N Khan
OSN Mqina
N Nyathikazi
ON Tshabalala
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Delta has adopted the principles of the Code of Corporate Practices and
Conduct set out in King IV, as well as complied with relevant laws, regulations
and best practice connected with corporate governance and responsible
corporate citizenship.
Ethics and business

The directors continue to conduct the
enterprise with integrity and competence
and in accordance with generally acceptable
corporate governance practices. This
process encompasses a stakeholder inclusive
approach which includes timely, relevant and
meaningful reporting to shareholders
and other stakeholders providing a proper
and objective perspective of the Company
and its activities. The members of the Board
act with independence of mind and in a
manner that they believe is reasonable,
accountable, fair and transparent.
As part of the Board’s commitment to best
practices in corporate governance and in
order to ensure compliance with King IV and
relevant laws, regulations and responsible
corporate citizenship, they have ensured that
mechanisms and policies, which are
appropriate to the Company’s business, are
in place. The Board reviews these from time
to time.
The formal steps taken by the directors are
summarised on the following pages.

Board of directors

Ultimate responsibility for the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business, the
Company’s strategy and key policies lies with
the Board. It is also responsible for approving
financial objectives and targets. The Board,
as a whole, continues to act as the focal point
for and custodian of the Company’s corporate
governance, ensuring that Delta is a
responsible corporate citizen in light of the
impact its operations might have on the
environment and the society in which it
operates.

The importance of identifying and managing
the Company’s risks is acknowledged by the
Board. The Company’s risks have been
determined and the Board’s levels of
tolerance associated with these risks has
been ascertained and its Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee together with the
executive directors ensure these risks are
managed on an ongoing basis.
The Board is of the view that the risk
management processes that are in place
effectively assist in managing the Company’s
risks. A risk assessment identifying the
various risks together with the associated
mitigating measures appear on pages 66 and
67 of this integrated annual report.
In addition to having assessed the Company’s
risks, management has commenced a
detailed process of documenting the
opportunities that have been explored. The
details will be uploaded on the Company’s
website and reported on more fully in next
year’s integrated annual report.
The Board’s charter ensures compliance with
the principles of the King IV Report™* and
legislation, as well as South African accepted
standards of best practice.
This charter:
●● sets out the Board’s responsibilities for the
adoption of strategic plans, monitoring of
operational performance and management,
determination of policy and processes
which ensure the integrity of the
Company’s risk management and internal
controls, communication policy and
director
selection,
orientation
and
evaluation;

* Copyright and trademarks are owned by the Institute of Directors in Southern Africa NPC and all of its rights
are reserved.
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Corporate governance (continued)
●●

●●

specifically outlines the Board’s primary
function as determining the Company’s
strategy, purpose, values and stakeholders
relevant to the Company’s activities; and
requires the Board to represent and
promote the legitimate interests of the
Company and its stakeholders in a manner
that is both ethical and sustainable.

The information needs of the Board are
reviewed annually and directors have
unrestricted access to all Company
information, records, documents and
property to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities sufficiently.
Efficient and timely methods of informing
and briefing Board members prior to Board
meetings are in place and in this regard key
risk areas, key performance areas and nonfinancial aspects relevant to the Company
have been identified and continue to be
monitored. Directors are afforded information
in respect of key performance indicators,
variance reports and industry trends.
Board meetings are held at least quarterly,
with additional meetings convened when
circumstances necessitate.
Board appointments are conducted in line
with the Board appointment and diversity
policies and overall in a formal and
transparent manner by the Board as a whole.
The appointments are subject to confirmation
by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting. They are free from any dominance
of any one particular shareholder. The Board
has adopted a diversity policy which reflects
the Board’s view of maintaining diversity at
Board level. In considering Board composition
the Nomination Committee considers all
aspects of diversity in order to discharge its
duties and responsibilities effectively.
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In terms of the diversity policy, the
Nomination Committee will annually review
the voluntary targets set for achieving both
race and gender diversity on the Board and
shall recommend any changes to the Board.
The current target is that at least 30% of the
Board should comprise women and at least
51% of the Board should comprise black
people. These targets are very comfortably
exceeded.
Meetings of the Board are formally minuted;
these include any meetings at which
appointment of directors is discussed and/or
confirmed.
The Board at the time of issuing this report
consisted of three executive directors and
seven non-executive directors, six of whom
are independent. The Board has ensured that
there is an appropriate balance of power and
authority on the Board, such that no one
individual or block of individuals can
dominate the Board’s decision-making. The
non-executive directors are individuals of
calibre and credibility and have the necessary
skills and experience to bring judgement to
bear independent of management, on issues
of
strategy,
performance,
resources,
transformation, diversity and employment
equity, standards of conduct and evaluation
of performance.
The Chairman, JB Magwaza, is an independent
non-executive director whose role continues
to be separate from that of the CEO,
Sandile Nomvete. The Chairman is considered
to be independent in terms of King IV.
Although not required, the Board agreed that
a lead independent non-executive director
would be appointed. JJ Njeke was appointed
lead independent non-executive director on
27 June 2017.

The responsibilities of the Chairman, CEO,
and those of other executive and nonexecutive directors, remain clearly separated
to ensure a balance of power and prevent any
one director from exercising unfettered
powers of decision-making.
The Board in conjunction with the Company
Secretary and the Company’s sponsors have
established a formal orientation programme
which enables any new incoming directors
to familiarise themselves with the Company’s
operations, senior management and its
business environment, and to induct them
in their fiduciary duties and responsibilities.
New directors with no or limited Board
experience receive development and
education to inform them of their duties,
responsibilities, powers and potential
liabilities.
All directors will be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by shareholders at
least once every three years in accordance
with the Memorandum of Incorporation.
The Board has agreed that every two years it
will review its overall performance (including
that of the Chairman) and will look to identify
areas for improvement in the discharge of its
functions.
The current size and composition of the
Board and its various committees are
considered appropriate for the size of the
Company. A brief curriculum vitae of each
director is set out on pages 22 and 23 of this
integrated annual report, with their detailed
CVs on the website.
The Board’s policy for detailing the manner in
which a director’s interest in transactions is
determined and the interested director’s
involvement in the decision-making process
is followed by all directors.

The Chairman continues to provide leadership
to the Board in all deliberations ensuring
independent input, and oversees its efficient
operation. The CEO, COO and CFO continue
to be responsible for proposing, updating,
implementing and maintaining the strategic
direction of Delta as well as ensuring
controlled operations. In this regard, they are
assisted by the senior management of the
asset manager.
The Board sets the strategic objectives of the
Company and determines the investment
and performance criteria. It also assumes
responsibility for the proper management,
control, compliance and ethical behaviour of
the businesses under its direction.
The Board committees assist the Board by
giving detailed attention to certain of the
Board’s responsibilities and they operate
within defined written terms of reference, as
well as within the delegation of authority
framework.
The Board has approved a delegation of
authority framework, which delegates certain
responsibilities or decisions to the Executive
and the Board committees while retaining
authority, where appropriate, at Board level.
The framework in addition to delegating
authority, also defines authority limits.
The delegated responsibilities in terms of
certain functions to the Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee, the Remuneration
and
Nomination
Committee,
the
Transformation,
Social,
Ethics
and
Sustainability Committee and the Investment
Committee, remain unchanged. The Board is
conscious of the fact that such delegation of
duties is not an abdication of the Board
members’ responsibilities. The Board
continues to maintain effective control. The
various committees’ terms of reference and
the authority framework are reviewed at least
annually.
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External advisers and executive directors
who are not members of specific committees
are invited to attend committee meetings by
invitation, if deemed appropriate by the
relevant committee.
The Board has considered the independence
of the non-executive directors and believe
they remain independent.

Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee

At year-end the Board’s Audit, Risk and
Compliance
Committee
comprised
JJ Njeke (Chairman), Ian Macleod and
Nombuso Afolayan, all of whom are classified
as independent non-executive directors.
The committee’s primary objective is the
provision to the Board of additional assurance
regarding the efficacy and reliability of the
financial information used by the directors to
assist them in the discharge of their duties.
The committee has and will continue to
provide satisfaction to the Board that
adequate and appropriate financial and
operating controls are in place, that
significant business, financial and other risks
have been identified and are being suitably
managed, and that satisfactory standards
of governance, reporting and compliance are
in operation.
The committee met five times prior to the
end of the financial year.
Refer to the Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee report on pages 84 and 86.
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Remuneration and Nomination
Committee

At year-end the Board’s Remuneration
and Nomination Committee comprised
JB Magwaza, Dumo Motau, Nooraya Khan
and Bronwyn Corbett. The nomination
aspect of the committee meetings are
chaired by JB Magwaza and the remuneration
aspects of the committee are chaired by
Nooraya Khan.
The committee’s composition has changed
post-year-end, with Bronwyn Corbett having
resigned, and now comprises JB Magwaza
(Chairman Nomination), Nooraya Khan
(Chairman Remuneration) and Dumo Motau,
all of whom are non-executive directors. The
Board has considered the fact that Nooraya
is not deemed independent, but believes she
is well placed and provides valuable insight
and skill and acts with independence of mind
and in the best interest of the Company in
her role as a director and as the Remuneration
Committee Chair.
The committee:
●● is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and structures, including the
size and composition of the various Board
committees and considering whether
there is an appropriate split between
executive, non-executive and independent
directors;
●● assists in the identification and nomination
of new directors and is responsible for the
appropriate induction and training of
directors
and
conducting
annual
performance reviews of the Board and
various Board committees;
●● is also responsible for ensuring the proper
and effective functioning of the Board and
assists the Chairman in this regard; and
●● appraises the performance of the CEO,
COO and CFO at least annually.

The committee further has the responsibility
and authority to consider and make
recommendations to the Board on, inter alia,
the remuneration policy of the Company, the
payment of performance bonuses, executive
remuneration, short, medium and long-term
incentive schemes and employee retention
schemes.
The committee uses external market surveys
and benchmarks to determine executive
directors’ remuneration and benefits as well
as non-executive directors’ fees. Delta’s
remuneration philosophy is to structure
remuneration packages in such a way that
long and short-term incentives are aimed at
achieving business objectives and the
delivery of shareholder value. The committee
took cognisance of the shareholder vote on
the non-binding resolution at the last Annual
General Meeting and has accordingly
reviewed certain of the remuneration matters,
the details of which are included in the
remuneration report and in the resolutions
proposed in the notice of the Annual General
Meeting.
The
Remuneration
and
Nomination
Committee met five times prior to the end of
the financial year.
Refer to the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee report on pages 53 to 65.

Investment Committee

At year-end the Board’s Investment
Committee comprised Caswell Rampheri
(Chairman), Nombuso Afolayan and Ian
Macleod, all of whom are independent nonexecutive directors. The committee is
constituted so as to ensure independence,
objectivity and industry expertise.

The Investment Committee’s role is to
recommend
appropriate
investment
strategies and guidelines to the Board to
ensure that Delta’s investments are in line
with the Group’s investment policy, overall
strategy and vision as approved by the
Board.
The committee also recommends and effects
acquisitions and disposals within the
approved investment policy and authority
framework, and ensures that appropriate due
diligence procedures are followed when
acquiring and disposing of assets.
The committee meets to consider acquisitions
and disposal of assets in line with the Group’s
overall strategy and recommends investment
strategies and guidelines to the Board to
ensure appropriate investment of shareholder
funds. The committee met twice prior to the
end of the financial year.
The committee’s activities are expected to
pick up on successful conclusion of the
proposed transaction.

Transformation, Social, Ethics and
Sustainability Committee

At year-end the Board’s Transformation,
Social, Ethics and Sustainability Committee
comprised Dumo Motau (Chairman), Nooraya
Khan, Sandra Mqina, Nhlanhla Nyathikazi and
Otis Tshabalala.
The Board is comfortable that, given Delta’s
structure, Sandra and Nhlanhla, two senior
management representatives of the asset
manager sit on this committee.
The committee monitors the Company’s
activities, having regard to any relevant
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legislation, other legal requirements and
prevailing codes of best practice, in respect
of social and economic development, good
corporate
citizenship
(including
the
promotion of equality, prevention of unfair
discrimination, the environment, health and
public safety, and the impact of the
Company’s activities and of its products or
services), consumer relationships and labour
and employment issues.
Ethical standards, in dealings with all
stakeholder groups, including suppliers,
customers, business partners, government,
communities and society at large, are in place
and their ongoing implementation is
monitored by the committee.
Delta promotes the highest standards of
ethical behaviour among all persons involved
in the Group’s operations in line with its
adopted Code of Conduct (Ethics) for the
Company. The Company has a zero tolerance
policy in respect of the committing or
concealment of fraudulent acts by employees,
contractors or suppliers.
The Asset Manager has also confirmed that
all its employees are inducted into an aligned
code and they are required to subscribe to
and comply with it fully. Any contravention is
dealt with through formal disciplinary
procedures.
The committee has further responsibility in
terms of advising the Board on all relevant
aspects that may have a significant impact
on the long-term sustainability of the
Company and which influence the Company’s
triple bottom-line reporting.
It also draws to the Board’s attention any
other matters within its mandate and reports
to the shareholders at the Company’s Annual
General Meeting on such matters.
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In order to carry out its functions, the
committee is entitled to request information
from any directors or employees of the
Company, attend and be heard at
shareholders’ meetings, and receives notices
in respect of such meetings.
Delta has outsourced its asset management
and property management services. The
Board has ensured that the asset manager
and the property managers have adopted
appropriately aligned corporate citizenship
policies.
The Board has considered the impact
of its property holding business on the
environment, society and the economy.
The Transformation, Social, Ethics and
Sustainability Committee met twice prior to
the end of the financial year.
Refer to the sustainability, transformation
and corporate citizenship report on pages
68 to 77.

Directors’ dealings, professional
advice and conflicts or interest

The Company’s policy prohibits dealings by
directors, their associates and all employees
of the asset manager in periods immediately
preceding the announcement of its interim
and year-end financial results, any period
while the Company is trading under
cautionary announcement and at any other
time deemed necessary by the Board. The
policy is managed by the Company Secretary
with the persons authorised to clear directors
for trading in open periods being the
Chairman and in his absence (or in the case
of any potential conflict) the lead independent
director.

Attendance at meetings during the financial year

Attendees

Audit, Risk and
Compliance
Board
Committee
meetings
meetings

JB Magwaza
N Khan
DN Motau
ID Macleod
BA Corbett
AJ König
NN Afolayan
MJN Njeke
MCR Rampheri
SH Nomvete
ON Tshabalala
S Maharaj
OSN Mqina
N Nyathikazi

6(6)
5(6)
5(6)
5(6)
4(6)
3(3)
6(6)
5(6)
4(4)
6(6)
6(6)
6(6)
–
–

–
3(3)
–
5(5)
–
–
4(5)
3(3)#
–
5(5)*
5(5)*
5(5)*
–
–

Remuneration
Investment and Nomination
Committee
Committee
meetings
meetings
–
1(1)
–
2(2)
–
–
2(2)
–
1(1)
2(2)*
2(2)*
2(2)*
–
–

5(5)
5(5)
3(5)
–
3(3)
–
–
–
–
5(5)*
5(5)*
5(5)*
–
–

Transformation,
Social, Ethics and
Sustainability
Committee
meetings
–
2(2)
2(2)
–
–
–
–
–
–
2(2)*
2(2)
2(2)*
2(2)
2(2)

* Invitee to the committee.
#
Appointed 30 June 2017.

The Company Secretary

Paula Nel, a suitably qualified, competent and
experienced Company Secretary, has been
appointed and appropriately empowered to
fulfil duties and provide assistance to the
Board. The Company Secretary is an
independent contractor and not a director or
employee of the Company. She has an arm’s
length relationship with the Board, who can
also remove her from office.

The Company Secretary continues to provide
the Board as a whole and directors
individually with detailed guidance as to how
their responsibilities should be properly
discharged in the best interests of the
Company. She also provides a central source
of guidance and advice to the Board, and
within the Company, on matters of ethics and
good corporate governance. The Company
Secretary is subject to an annual evaluation
by the Board.
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Having completed the evaluation process,
the Board is satisfied with the expertise,
experience, competence and qualifications of
the Company Secretary and confirms that
the relationship between the Board and the
Company Secretary remains arm’s length.

Legal and compliance

Legal and legislation-related matters are
addressed at each Board meeting and,
specifically, new legislation which affects the
Company is discussed in detail.
Delta’s checklist of compliance requirements
incorporates the requirements of the King IV
Report and Companies Act, among others.

Broad-based black economic
empowerment annual compliance
report

The JSE requires a listed company to publish its
report on its compliance with section 13(G)(2) of
the South African Broad-Based Black Economic
Empowerment Act, 53 of 2003, as amended
(the “B-BBEE Act”). Delta has complied with
both the JSE requirements and section 13(G)(2)
of the B-BBEE Act. A copy of the relevant
documents are available on the Company’s
website, www.deltafund.co.za.

King IV compliance review and
application register

The Board endorses the Code of Corporate
Practices and Conduct as contained and
recommended in King IV and the JSE Listings
Requirements. As reported in the prior year, a
King III/IV gap analysis was completed. The
details are recorded in the application
register, which is included on the Delta
website, www.deltafund.co.za.
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The Board is comfortable that all the gaps
have either been addressed or are in the
process of being addressed.
The Board continues to strive to ensure that
the interests of all the Company’s
stakeholders are protected and that
adherence to the principles of good
corporate governance espoused by King IV
remains a commitment of the Group. It is the
intention of all directors that the principles of
integrity and the highest ethical standards
are upheld by all who serve the Company and
its stakeholders.
The Board is satisfied that appropriate
governance structures exist and are operational
within the Company, and it has implemented
the procedural recommendations that have
emanated from the King IV Report as well as
appropriate legislation.
For the 2018 financial year, the Board hereby
confirms that the Company has complied
with King IV.
Governance documents available on the
Company’s website:
●● Board and committee charters.
●● Chairman’s charter.
●● Lead independent director charter.
●● Director trading, external communication
confidentiality policy
●● Declaration of interest policy.
●● King IV application register.
●● Risk matrix.
●● Ethics and code of conduct policy.
●● Board appointment policy.
●● Diversity policy.
●● Form
B-BBEE 1 lodged with B-BBEE
Commission.
●● SENS announcements.

Remuneration and Nomination
Committee report
Part 1: Background statement

The Board of Delta and the Remuneration
Committee have pleasure in submitting the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee
report for the year ended 28 February 2018.
Delta’s performance during the year was in
line with budget and guidance communicated
to the market, despite tough economic and
political conditions. The change in leadership
post the ANC electoral conference in
December 2017, and the subsequent changes
to the leadership at the Department of
Public Works (“DPW”) have impacted the
success in signing new long-term agreements.
We remain positive that the long-term lease
renewals are imminent, which will have
a positive impact on the business gearing,
debt renewal term and rates, and the overall
health of the Fund.
Management performed well to ensure the
Fund continued to report strong underlying
rental income flows, successfully refinancing
expiring debt and concluding targeted
renewals and new leases. The focus on
property fundamentals compensated for the
pressures emanating from marginally higher
finance cost.
The emphasis over the last year by the
committee was to ensure that the Fund
continues to align its policies and practices
with King IV. An audit was completed during
the year and many of the findings have
already been addressed. The outstanding
items will be addressed appropriately in
due course.
All asset management staff are employed by
the asset management company (Delta
Property Asset Management Proprietary
Limited (“DPAM”)).
The King IV guidelines have been followed in
this report which includes:
●● Part 1: The background statement.

●●

●●

Part 2: The remuneration policy and
strategy.
Part 3: The implementation report which
provides detailed disclosure of the
remuneration for executive and nonexecutive directors.

Part 2 and part 3 of this report will be put to
a non-binding advisory vote at the 2018
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).
The 2017 non-binding vote on the
remuneration policy carried an 83.3% vote in
favour of the resolution. This is a significant
improvement on the 2016 vote which
was 68.1%.
The long-term incentive plan which was
presented at the 2017 AGM received an 83.3%
vote in favour and the NED fees a 96.5% vote
in favour.
Part 3: The implementation report is included
for a non-binding vote for the 2018 AGM for
the first time.
The committee believes that the increase in
the votes in favour of the remuneration
resolutions is reflective of the continuous
review and improvements made by the Board.
The committee believes the implementation
report demonstrates the alignment between
the policy and the remuneration received.
The focus for the 2019 financial year will be
on continuing the alignment with King IV and
continuing to improve the alignment between
strategy, performance and remuneration.
This will be done by considering the inclusive
stakeholder model and reviewing the
performance measures.

JB Magwaza
Chairman
31 May 2018
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Committee report (continued)
Part 2: The remuneration policy

Under its terms of reference to assist the
Board, the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee’s
(“the
committee’s”
or
“REMCO’s”) dual objectives are to ensure
that:
●● the remuneration of the executives and the
staff of its asset manager is competitive
and stimulates sustainable performance
and behaviours that create shared value
over the long term; and
●● the Board composition and structures are
appropriate, including the size and
composition of the various Board
committees, and considering whether
there is an appropriate split between
executive, non-executive and independent
directors.
The committee has the responsibility and
authority
to
consider
and
make
recommendations to the Board on, inter alia,
the remuneration policy of the Company,
executive remuneration, short, medium and
long-term incentive schemes and employee
retention schemes.
The terms of reference of the committee are
reviewed annually by the Board.
Concerning
remuneration
matters
specifically, the committee endeavours to
ensure that:
●● through its oversight role, the remuneration
practices of staff of the Fund are applied
consistently and in accordance with the
remuneration policy and they are
compliant with the laws, governance
principles and regulations of South Africa;
●● quality staff are attracted, retained and
rewarded within the Fund;
●● remuneration
is regularly benchmarked
against other property funds listed on the
JSE;

54

/ Delta Property Fund integrated annual report 2018

●●

●●

variable remuneration is linked to
performance and the remuneration policy
is structured in such a way as to ensure this
link is ongoing. This link will be continuously
reviewed, necessitating transparent and
continuous improvements to the design of
the variable remuneration plans; and
employees are responsibly and fairly
remunerated across the Fund and equal
opportunity is afforded to all employees.

The members of REMCO for the year under
review were:
●● JB
Magwaza (independent; Chairman
Nomination);
●● Nooraya Khan (Chairman Remuneration) –
appointed 25 May 2017;
●● Dumo Motau (independent); and
●● Bronwyn Corbett (independent) – resigned
12 April 2018.
The committees continue to hold joint
meetings, with the agendas appropriately
structured so as to separate out nomination
and remuneration matters.
By invitation:
Sandile Nomvete;
●● Shaneel Maharaj;
●● Otis Tshabalala;
●● Nonhlanhla Nyathikazi (HR representative);
●● Paula Nel (Company Secretary); and
●● Laurence Grubb (Khokhela Consulting).
●●

The committee met five times during the
year, namely on 24 May 2017, 27 June 2017,
15 August 2017, 13 and 26 February 2018.
Invitees to REMCO meetings have no vote
and are not present when their own
remuneration is discussed. All members of
the REMCO are independent non-executive
directors apart from Nooraya Khan. The
Board considered the fact that Nooraya is

not deemed independent, but believes she is
well placed and provides valuable insight and
skill and acts with independence of mind and
in the best interest of the Company in her
role as a director and as the Remuneration
Committee Chair. Accordingly, she remains a
member of the committee. The REMCO
members do not decide on their own
remuneration; instead they request that
executive management proposes their fees,
and fee structure (through independent
advice and benchmarking, if required).
Subsequently this is tabled before the Board
for recommendation to shareholders for
approval by special resolution.

is able to effectively attract and retain the
talent required to achieve desired business
results. The detailed policy sets out Delta’s
approach to remunerating all employees,
including the asset manager, across all
elements
of
remuneration,
including
guaranteed and variable pay.

The policy and implementation report are
submitted to non-binding votes. Should both
or either section receive less than 75%
approval, then the committee undertakes to
engage with the shareholders to determine
the reasons for the dissenting vote. The
committee will review the reasons and
determine how to address any legitimate and
reasonable objections and concerns raised.
The committee will agree on the changes
required and will implement or request the
executives to implement the changes. The
committee undertakes to provide feedback
in the following IAR in the background
statement in the remuneration report the
concerns raised, how they were addressed
and the outcome of the changes. If the
committee decides that some concerns are
not legitimate or reasonable or do not align
with the company strategy or philosophy,
then this will be communicated to the
applicable shareholders and reported in the
AIR.

The remuneration policy, and its application,
is reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure
that the pay outcomes are competitive and in
accordance with regulatory requirements.

The objective of the remuneration
policy

The purpose of the remuneration policy is to
create a framework for managing and
controlling remuneration, ensuring that Delta

The desired outcomes from Delta’s
remuneration policy include:
●● enhanced
internal fairness through
consistent remuneration decision-making;
●● appropriate and responsible remuneration;
●● enhanced employer of choice profile; and
●● the desired corporate culture.

Remuneration philosophy

Delta’s remuneration philosophy is to
structure remuneration packages in such a
way that long and short-term incentives are
aimed at achieving the business objectives
and delivering shareholder value.
We believe that remuneration plays a key role
in:
●● facilitating the attraction and retention of
all staff; and
●● reinforcing the alignment of individual staff
goals with Delta’s strategic business
objectives.
The following guiding principles underpin the
performance-based remuneration philosophy
which applies to all staff:
●● Total
remuneration:
Delta
adopts
guaranteed and variable pay to reward its
staff. The variable pay currently comprises
a short-term incentive plan (“STIP”) and a
long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”). The total
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●●

●●
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remuneration comprises an appropriate
balance of these reward elements.
Market competitiveness: Guaranteed
remuneration is targeted at the market
median and total remuneration is targeted
between the industry-specific market
median and the 75th percentile for
outperformance. The opportunity to earn
remuneration at an outperformance level
supports delivering higher reward to
individuals only when the Company
achieves higher than target (expected)
returns. The primary peer group for
purposes of benchmarking pay and
benefits comprises other similar-sized
property funds listed on the JSE.
Benchmarking is used only as a guide to
determining market competitiveness of
remuneration levels.
Performance
linked
pay:
Delta’s
performance-based pay philosophy is
designed to ensure that the executives
have an element of their total remuneration
tied to Delta’s performance through
variable pay. Variable remuneration is
therefore linked to predefined performance
measures. Each year REMCO considers the
performance measures to ensure that they
are appropriate and challenging in the
context of the prevailing business
environment and that they reinforce the
business strategy. The performance
measures in the incentive plans are limited
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●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

in number and individual measures are
tailored to maximise accountability and
include non-financial measures.
Delta embraces defensible differentiation
in pay whereby a greater proportion of
reward is distributed to the highest
performers.
Flexibility: The adopted remuneration
structures are adaptable and evolve with
changing business and human resource
needs.
Affordability: Total remuneration costs
need to be affordable and justifiable to
employees and stakeholders.
Simplicity and transparency: The reward
philosophy, principles and structures are
openly communicated, to internal and
external stakeholders, with the annual
reward opportunity and alignment to
individual
performance
being
communicated
to
the
individual.
Remuneration structures are not overly
complex to communicate, administer and
understand. Open communication assists
in the engagement of employees by
supporting an environment of trust and
stakeholder
confidence
regarding
remuneration issues.
Sustainability: The remuneration policy
and practices are designed to support
long-term
value
creation
for
all
stakeholders as well as regulatory
compliance.

Changes to remuneration

The following table summarises the key initiatives and changes to the remuneration elements in
the past year and the initiatives for the forthcoming year:
Remuneration
elements
Guaranteed
package
Benefits
Short-term
incentive
(“STI”)

Long-term
incentive
(“LTI”)

Non-executive
directors’ fees

Actual 2018

Forecast 2019

Ongoing review of remuneration and
benchmarks and improving the link
between pay and performance.
Ongoing review with no major changes.
Improved disclosure of performance
criteria and actual performance relative
to criteria and the reward for the level
of performance.

Revising the minimum
wage policy for the Fund.

Implementation of the LTI and finalising
details such as targets and thresholds.
No awards were made during the year.
Awards will be made during the 2019
financial year.
Reviewed and submitted to AGM for
approval annually.

Ongoing review.
Ongoing review and
disclosure of performance
criteria and levels of
performance and a more
stakeholder inclusive
model.
Continued refinement
of setting performance
measures and levels
of performance.
New benchmarking and
proposed changes
submitted to AGM.
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Remuneration elements

The following table sets out the key elements of Delta’s remuneration structure:
Remuneration
element
Definition
Guaranteed
package

58

Delta applies
the cost-tocompany
remuneration
approach, also
referred to as
“guaranteed
package”.
This is the
non-variable
element of total
remuneration
and consists
of the base
salary and
contributions
to compulsory
employer
benefits
(medical
scheme, Group
risk cover
(death and
disability) and
retirement
funding).
The value of
guaranteed
package
reflects the
individual’s
competencies
and skills and
is reviewed
annually in
January
effective from
March each
year.

Policy
Increases are determined
with reference to projected
consumer price inflation,
affordability within the
legal entity, skills scarcity,
internal value (position
in the job hierarchy),
individual performance
and external value
(relative positioning
to the market).
External benchmarking is
conducted every two years
and Delta endeavours
to pay at or around the
industry-specific median
for on-target performance.
Benchmarking is conducted
using national executive
remuneration surveys and
the remuneration reported
in peer group company
annual reports.
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Strategic
intent

Performance
linkage

To reward
employees
for completion
of their role
requirements
and
competencies.

Individual
performance
and
competence.

To attract and
retain key
employees.

Remuneration
element
Definition
Benefits

STIP

Benefits include
participation in
the Company’s
medical aid
scheme and
pension plan.

An STI
to reward
executives on
achieving and
exceeding their
personal and
Company
annual
performance
targets.

Policy
Participation in the medical
scheme is compulsory
unless the employee
provides proof that he or
she is a dependant of an
alternative registered
scheme. Participation in the
Company’s pension plan, a
defined contribution plan,
is compulsory. Monthly
contributions equate to
12% of guaranteed package.
Normal retirement age for
executives is 65 years.
Performance is assessed
taking into account specific
annual performance criteria
(key performance
indicators (“KPIs”)),
both at a corporate level
and an individual level.

Strategic
intent

Performance
linkage

To enhance the
employee value
proposition.

None.

To retain key
employees.

To encourage
superior
performance by
rewarding key/
strategic
employees
against the
achievement
To receive the payment, the of their KPIs.
executive must be in the
employ of the Company at To attract,
the time of payment, and
motivate and
must not be under notice
retain strategic
of termination. New
employees who
employees employed for
are accountable
at least three months will
for, and
participate in the plan on a contribute to,
pro rata basis. STI awards
the achievement
will be paid annually
of key
between June and
short-term
September following the
business
end of the performance
performance
year. Awards are at
measures.
the sole discretion
of the committee.

The STIP is a
key driver of
the Company’s
strategy.
This is
demonstrated
through the
careful selection
of performance
criteria (KPIs)
that are aligned
to the
Company’s
strategy.
The
performance
metrics are
consistent with
long-term value
creation.
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Remuneration
element
Definition
LTIP

The LTIP is
designed in
line with
shareholder
requests
to attract,
motivate
and retain
executives
and key talent.
The LTIP is
based on
current best
practice,
King IV
guidelines and
JSE Listings
Requirements.

Policy
The LTIP is a full value
performance unit plan.
Rights are granted annually
to qualifying participants
to acquire shares or to be
paid the equivalent in cash.
The value of the rights is
the same value of Delta
shares listed on the JSE
(30-day VWAP). Vesting
of each annual grant occurs
at the end of the third
anniversary. On vesting,
at the end of year three,
performance measures are
applied to determine if any
rights vest and if so how
many. The performance
measures are compound
annual growth rate in
distributions per share and
net asset value per share.
A strategic project may
be included if relevant
and appropriate.

Guaranteed package

After a review of the benchmark data, the
performance of the executives, as well as
prevailing market conditions specified in the
remuneration elements table above, the
executives were awarded an increase in their
cost-to-company package averaging 5.5%,
effective 1 March 2018.
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STIP

Strategic
intent

Performance
linkage

The objective
of the LTIP is
to align the
interests of the
executives with
those of the
shareholders
by motivating
them, through
participation,
to increase
the long-term
growth in
shareholder
returns.

The LTIP is a
key driver of
the Company’s
long-term
strategy.
This is
demonstrated
through the
careful selection
of performance
criteria (KPIs)
that are aligned
to the
Company’s
strategy and
long-term
sustainability.
The
performance
metrics are
consistent with
long-term value
creation.

Consistent with the previous years, STI
awards are dependent on the achievement of
corporate and individual objectives. The
achievement against these objectives is
expressed in a corporate performance factor
(“CPF”) and an individual performance factor
(“IPF”).

An actual STI is determined with the following
formula:
Individual STI award = [guaranteed package]
× [STI target (70.0% of guaranteed package)]
× [CPF] × [IPF].
The target STI award for the executives is
70.0% of guaranteed package. Both the CPF
and the IPF can vary between 0% and 140.0%,
depending on the performance achieved. It is
evident therefore that the bonus is capped
and performance at both corporate and
individual level must exceed a minimum
threshold before any STI award can be made.
With the IPF and the CPF each at a maximum
possible percentage of 140.0%, the maximum
STI is capped at 137.2% of guaranteed
package.
The committee retains the discretion to
review and moderate any STI awards to avoid
unexpected outcomes. The Board approves
the STI awards, taking into account the
recommendations made by the committee.
Awards under the STIP are not guaranteed
and the Board reserves the right to amend
the design of the plan from time to time.

The CPF is determined through the careful
selection
of
corporate
performance
indicators that are aligned to the Company’s
strategy. These corporate KPIs are regularly
reviewed and approved each year by the
committee for ratification by the Board.
Achievement against these KPIs will
determine the CPF.
For 2018, the corporate KPIs approved were
as follows:
●● Forecast
distribution. The budgeted
distribution approved by the Board was
the primary indicator of corporate
performance for the STIP. This target must
be met before any STI awards can be made
and acts as a “gatekeeper”. Where
performance meets this forecast (minimum
level of performance), the CPF equates to
100.0%. A performance below the forecast
does not deliver an STI award (CPF = 0%).
A stretch target for forecast distribution
was also set by the Board. Where
performance is at the stretch target, the
CPF equates to a maximum of 140.0%.
Where the forecast distribution is between
the forecast and stretch target, a pro rata
award is made available on a straight-line
basis.
●● Loan to value and debtors. The secondary
indicators of corporate performance are
budgeted loan to value and debtors.
Performance below the budgeted values
of these measures serves to reduce the
CPF by up to 30.0%.
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Remuneration and Nomination
Committee report (continued)
The IPF is determined from the personal appraisal rating as indicated below:

Performance appraisal rating

Individual performance factor
IPF

Description

1

Poor performance

2

Below average performance

0%
0%

3

Satisfactory performance

0%

Above 3, up to 4

Excellent performance

Above 4, up to 5

Outstanding performance

Up to 100.0%
Between 100.0% and 140.0%

Individual performance must therefore exceed a minimum standard, which is a performance
rating above three (3) to be eligible for an STI award.
The committee has assessed the 2018 targets against the actual KPIs achieved, with the audited
results summarised as follows:
Actual 2018

Forecast 2019

Corporate KPI

Target

Stretch

Actual

Target

Stretch

Distribution per
share (cents)

97.24

98.00

97.24

94.01

98.71

Loan to value (“LTV”) (%)

45.0

41.3

41.0

Debtors outstanding (%)

5.0

4.9

5.0

The achievement of target distribution has resulted in a CPF of 100%, with the design of the STI
being consistent with prior years.

LTIP

The LTIP is designed in line with shareholder
requests to attract, motivate and retain
executives and key talent. The LTIP is based
on current best practice, King IV guidelines
and JSE Listings Requirements.
The objective of the LTIP is to align the
interests of the executives with those of the
shareholders by motivating them, through
participation, to increase the long-term
growth in shareholder returns.
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The LTIP is a full value performance unit plan.
The performance units constitute a right to
the value of a share on vesting. Rights are
granted annually to qualifying participants to
acquire shares or to be paid the equivalent in
cash (which option will be determined by the
Board on vesting) on a specific vesting date
conditional on tenure and performance
conditions. The value of the rights is the same
value of Delta shares listed on the JSE
(30-day volume weighted average price
(“VWAP”)).

Vesting of each annual grant occurs at the
end of the third anniversary. On vesting, at
the end of year three, performance measures
are applied to determine if any rights vest
and if so how many. The performance
measures are compound annual growth rate
in distributions per share and net asset value.
A strategic project may be included if
relevant and appropriate.
On granting of the rights, the targets for
distribution per share and NAV per share are
determined for when the rights vest in three
years’ time. If strategic objectives are
included, then the performance levels for
these must also be agreed at grant.
The two (or three) performance measures
used to modify the quantity of rights vesting
have the following weighting:
●● 60%
weighting: Compounded annual
growth in distribution per share over the
three years relative to the sector average
less a specified percentage.
●● 40% weighting: NAV at the end of year
three compared to the targeted NAV.
●● Should the Board decide, at the time of
granting the rights, it may at its own
discretion include strategic objective/s for
the three-year period. Should the Board

decided to do so, then the weighting given
to the strategic objective/s may not be
more than 20% which will reduce equally
the weighting for the first two performance
measures unless decided otherwise by
the Board.
On vesting, the Board will decide whether to
settle in cash or equity. The value realised on
vesting by the participant who will be paid
out in cash or settled in equity is the value of
the rights at vesting multiplied by the total
number of rights vesting after applying the
performance criteria.

Executive director contracts

The executive directors do not have fixedterm contracts with the Company. A threemonth notice period is required for the
executive directors for the termination of
services. The employment contracts of the
executive directors contain a restraint of
trade clause with a period of one year. There
is no provision in the contracts for loss of
office payments, other than those required
by employment law.

Non-executive directors’ appointment
letters

Appointment letters have been issued to all
the non-executive directors.

Part 3: Remuneration for executive and non-executive directors

Executive directors’ remuneration
The remuneration and benefits approved for the executive directors were as follows:

Salary
R’000
SH Nomvete (CEO)
S Maharaj (CFO)
ON Tshabalala (COO)

Other Retirement
benefits*
benefits
R’000
R’000

STIs#
R’000

LTIs$
R’000

Total
2018
R’000

4 321
2 306
2 514

239
176
105

280
151
160

3 140
1 692
1 760

–
–
–

7 980
4 325
4 539

9 141

520

591

6 592

–

16 844

* Other benefits comprise car-related allowances, UIF/SDL and cellphone.
#
STI payments awarded for the year ended 2018 and paid in the 2019 financial year.
$
No LTI awards were made during the year under review.
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Remuneration and Nomination
Committee report (continued)
Salary
R’000
SH Nomvete
BA Corbett
(resigned
31 August 2016)
S Maharaj
ON Tshabalala
(appointed
1 June 2016)

Other Retirement
benefits*
benefits
R’000
R’000

STIs#
R’000

LTIs
R’000

Total
2017
R’000

4 034

227

262

4 224

–

8 747

1 046
2 049

86
123

–
132

–
2 173

–
–

1 132
4 477

1 715

18

110

2 007

–

3 850

8 844

454

504

8 404

–

18 206

* Other benefits comprise car-related allowances, UIF/SDL and cellphone.
#
STI payments awarded for the year ended 2017 and paid in the 2018 financial year.

Non-executive directors’ fees
The table below sets out the actual fees paid based on the current shareholder approved fees
for the non-executive directors.

JB Magwaza
N Khan
DN Motau
ID Macleod
NN Afolayan
JJG da Costa (resigned 31 August 2016)
M de Lange (resigned 23 February 2017)
MJN Njeke (appointed 1 April 2017)
MCR Rampheri (appointed 1 June 2017)
A König (resigned 29 June 2017)
BA Corbett (resigned 12 April 2018)
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2018
R’000

2017
R’000

604
425
383
426
426
–
–
337
285
84

562
433
356
396
356
202
484
–
–
235

294

118

3 264

3 142

Board and committee fees
The table below sets out the non-executive directors’ fees template per the Board
and committees.

Role

Forecast
2019
R’000

2018
R’000

Board

Chairman
Member

558
267

529
253

Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

Chairman
Member

134
91

127
86

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Chairman
Member

79
58

75
55

Investment Committee

Chairman
Member

134
91

127
86

Transformation, Social, Ethics

Chairman

79

75

and Sustainability Committee

Member

58

55

A 5.5% inflationary linked increase will be proposed to the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting on 7 August 2018 for the 2019 fees.
Note that:
(1)	No fees are paid to any invitees to the Board or committee meetings.
(2)	The executive directors are not paid any fees for their membership or attendance at the
Board or committee meetings.
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Strategic risks

Key risk
●●

Regulatory risk,
including JSE
and government
leasing policy

Business impact
●●

●●

Fines and public
censures if noncompliance occurs
Negative impact on
company reputation

Strategic
goal affected
●●

●●

Growth in
distribution
and share price
Governance
and compliance

Mitigation measures
implemented
●●

●●

●●

Lack of B-BBEE
rating and
monitoring
mechanisms

●●

●●

Inability to secure
long-term leases with
government tenants
Loss of investor
confidence

●●

●●

Sovereign
tenant
relationships
and retention
Governance
and compliance

●●

●●

●●

●●

Reputational
risk

●●

Loss of investor
confidence resulting in
share price volatility

●●

Growth in
distribution
and share price

●●
●●

●●

●●
●●

●●

Non-compliance
with REIT
requirements

●●

●●
●●

●●

Political
uncertainty

●●

●●

Potential tax liabilities
resulting in a decreased
distribution
Loss of REIT status
Loss of investor
confidence
Loss of investor
confidence resulting in
share price volatility
Possible increased
vacancies

●●

●●

Growth in
distribution
and share price
Governance
and compliance

●●

●●

●●
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Growth in
distribution
and share price

●●

●●

Continuous active
monitoring by
corporate sponsor and
Company Secretary,
including completion
of annual compliance
checklist
Appointment of
consultants in
specialised areas
Active monitoring of
rating and regular
assessment of suppliers
to improve rating
Adherence to the
Property Sector Charter
Procurement policy in
place
Oversight by the Board
AGM to address issues
and queries
Regular communication
with stakeholders
Transparent culture
Continuous active
monitoring by
corporate sponsor
REIT compliance
monitored on a
continuous basis by
management and
external consultants
Following REIT best
practice
recommendations
Introduction of
longer-term leases
Strategic relationships
with tenants and users

Key risk
●●

Currency risk
– foreign loans
and derivative
instruments

Business impact
●●

●●

●●

Downgrading of
South Africa’s
sovereign rating

●●

●●

●●

Lack of a
properly
structured
succession
plan

Excessive volatility
in exchange rates
resulting in higher
interest charges in
ZAR which may impact
distributions payable
Excessive volatility
in exchange rates
resulting in an increase
in ZAR capital balance
owing at maturity of
foreign currency loans
and derivative
instruments which may
impact distributions
payable
Potential downgrading
of country and Delta’s
own rating
Reduced availability of
funding which could
limit liquidity and
increase funding costs

Departure of key
executives can lead to:
●● Increased general
business risk
●● Lack of strategy
execution
●● Damage to
relationships with key
stakeholders

Strategic
goal affected
●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

Growth in
distribution and
share price
Management of
finance costs

Growth in
distribution and
share price
Management of
finance costs
Going concern
Growth in
distribution and
share price
Stakeholder
relationships
and retention

Mitigation measures
implemented
●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

●●

Retention of
key staff

●●

●●

●●

Decline in investor
confidence
Loss of key
management reduces
the Company’s ability
to grow and implement
its strategic objectives
Damaged morale of
remaining employees

●●

●●

Growth in
distribution and
share price
Tenant
relationships
and retention

●●

Foreign loans are
entered into to finance
foreign investment. The
exposure of the loan
to volatile exchange
rates is offset by the
potential gains from
dividends receivable
from the investment

Diversification
of funding
Hedging of debt
funding

Executives are subject
to a three-month notice
period should they wish
to terminate their
employment with Delta.
This ensures a sufficient
hand-over process to
successors taking up
key positions at Delta
Appointments of
executives are made
from within Delta’s own
talent pool where
possible. For example,
the appointment of
Otis Tshabalala to COO
who has been involved
in the asset
management team of
Delta since listing
Retention strategy
which encompasses
performance incentives
(short term and long
term), remuneration
benchmarking,
performance evaluation
and personal
development plans
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Sustainability, transformation and
corporate citizenship report
Introduction
As a responsible corporate citizen, Delta, through its Board, applies a triple
bottomline approach to its business. In addition to profitability, key investment
decisions and priorities are informed by the Company’s impact on the environment
and society, its footprint reduction and overall responsible corporate conduct.
The Board, through its Transformation, Social, Ethics and Sustainability Committee
(“SETCOM”), is in the process of implementing an integrated engagement approach
with key objectives and measurables aligned to its sustainability objectives.
The objective is to consolidate Delta’s CSI strategy to drive sustainability ethics and
empowerment deliverables in a more measurable and progressive way.
Key focal areas of this strategy will initially include community development through
early childhood education and safe-care facilities, housing initiatives and property
market-related studies. As a second phase, a more formal socio-economic
development (“SED”) framework will be adopted, focusing on business and skills
development.
Work in this regard has already commenced and will be communicated to stakeholders
via the Company’s website, the integrated annual report and social media.
Unpacking CSI and its supporting elements
Gender equality
Ethical business
practices

Corporate social
responsibility

Corporate governance
B-BBEE
Sustainability

Corporate social
investment

Local economic
development (“LED”)

Socio-economic
development (“SED”)

CSI refers to a company’s total non-commercial contribution to society, which is not part of
employee benefits or commercial sponsorships. This includes all SED initiatives, as defined by
the BEE Codes of Good Practice, and most of what constitutes an LED programme, as set out
in the social and labour plan.
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Transformation

Delta as one of the most empowered REITs
listed on the JSE and remains a sector
leader. As landlord of choice to government
and other empowerment-sensitive tenants,
transformation is not only a corporate
responsibility for Delta, but a business
imperative.
Feedback from the Department of Public
Works (“DPW”) in terms of its new leasing
policy is that empowerment status
specifically related to ownership level, will
play a major part in determining a company’s
ability to negotiate longer-term leases with
the government’s Property Management
Trading Entity (“PMTE”).
The Company is proud to report that we have
achieved a level 2 B-BBEE contributor status
on the new property sector codes as at
31 May 2018. This achievement has been
testament
to
our
commitment
to
transformation within our industry and the
economy in general.

During the year under review, Delta continued
to focus on procurement and enterprise
development as catalyst for transformation.
Further progress was made in procuring, as
far as practically possible, from suppliers with
a level 1 to level 4 B-BBEE contributor rating,
focusing on 100% black-owned or majority
female-owned businesses as well as suppliers
qualifying as small, medium and microenterprises (“SMMEs”).

Sustainability

As one of the largest landlords in the city
centres of eThekwini and Tshwane, Delta has
taken a strategic decision to play an
important role in inner city rejuvenation and
maintenance, focusing on environmental
management, security and rejuvenation via
its UIP involvement.
Defensive capital expenditure initiatives are
also undertaken in line with environmental
best practice, which in turn have a direct
positive impact on its social and economic
bottom line.

The Group’s proposed transaction currently
under negotiation is expected to significantly
improve its empowerment at ownership level,
further improving its B-BBEE contributor
status.
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Sustainability, transformation and
corporate citizenship report (continued)
Corporate social responsibility

Delta’s corporate social responsibility (“CSR”)
strategy for the year under review continued
its focus on education, early childhood
development, women empowerment and
skills development.
As part of this SETCOM mandate, Delta has
recognised the need to make a sustainable,
tangible difference in the lives of the
communities where it has a dominant nodal
footprint, aligned to the objectives of the
Amended Property Sector Code of 9 June
2017.

Key considerations are to enhance the skill
set within the property sector, early childhood
education and tertiary development.
In addition, Delta plans to further promote
supplier and enterprise development that will
contribute to improving the housing and
living conditions of identified communities.
Focus on women empowerment, SMME
development and level 1 to 4 B-BBEE
contributors will be maintained.

To maintain and improve traction gained in skills transfer in the form of time donated by senior
management, donation of rentable space and financial contributions, the following initiatives/
institutions were supported during the year under review:

Women’s Property Network Education Trust

Formed in 2008, the trust’s primary goal is the promotion
of the role women play in the property sector. The trust
identifies and supports female students (mostly from
disadvantaged backgrounds) who are studying towards
property-related qualifications through bursaries.
More info at: www.wpn.co.za/wpn-educational-trust.htm
Why does Delta support it?
The trust supports both education and women empowerment in the property industry,
and adheres to strict excellence standards, with criteria for the bursaries including:
●● limited strictly to property-related studies;
●● only applications for undergraduate studies considered;
●● students have to be able to study full time; and
●● an average mark of 60% has to be maintained.
What support did Delta contribute?
A monetary donation was made that enabled the trust to offer 10 full bursaries to
qualifying applicants. Delta also sponsors WPN membership for DPAM female staff
members. In addition to the monetary support, involvement has been expanded
to include mentorship programmes, including exposing students to networking
programmes, vacation work, allowing them to obtain practical, on-the-job experience.
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Total Spend R12 000.00

3. PROPERTY CHARTER CAREER WEEK
Property Charter Week

An initiative for the built environment held in KwaZulu-Natal and Gauteng to support
transformation in the sector.
More info at: www.propertycharter.co.za
Why does Delta support it?
The initiative supports both transformation and education in the sector in which Delta
operates. The Property Charter hosts over 30 schools between the two provinces to
promote property and construction as career option to the Grade 10 to 12 learners.

Delta participates and makes monetary donations to the Prope
What support did Delta contribute?
Delta enabled a number ofKZN
students
to participate
in the Property
Charter
Week. The Property Chart
Property
& Construction
Career
Week.
Support included paying for transport to the event, catering, venue and document
the 2 provinces to promote Property & Construction as Careers
bags and material.
Further to this, Delta
ensures that one of its
staff members is always
part of the panel
presenting to the
students on property
as a career.

Total Donation R56 205.26
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Sustainability, transformation and
corporate citizenship report (continued)

Stop Hunger Now Southern Africa (SHN SA) is a volunteer based meal pa
Stop Hunger Now SA
oriented Mandela
nutrition
programme,
Day/Million
Meal Challenge. which was started in South Africa i
More info at: www.stophungernowsa.org
currently two full-time operations (Johannesburg and Cape Town).
Why does Delta support it?
Charitable donations.

The packaged food is donated to Early Childhood Development Centres n
What support did Delta contribute?
Delta participates on a yearly basis in the Stop Hunger campaigns. The Durban team
participated this year at the Durban ICC and managed to fill 100 meal boxes in their
allotted 67 minutes. The meals are distributed to early childhood development centres
nationally.

The Durban team participated yet again this year at the Durban IC
uccessfully pack 100 meal boxes.

Total Spend
Total R12
Spend
000.00
R12 000.00
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Utshani Fund is an NGO supporting KZN rural communities mostly with the upg
informal settlements to decent housing. Their office is based at Delta Towers in
They occupy 108 m² and have also been in occupation for more than 10 years. T
rental with Delta started in 2015 and is reviewed yearly. The donation amounts to
R 100 000.00 per annum.
Habitat for Humanity

This is a non-profit organisation that builds houses with people
in need, regardless of race or religion. Since 1976, Habitat has
helped 6.8 million people find strength, stability and
independence through safe, decent and affordable shelter.

7. HABITAT FOR HUMANITY

Habitat builds, rehabilitates and repairs simple, decent houses
with the help of homeowner families, volunteer labour and
donations of money and materials.
Why does Delta support it?
Habitat holds annual world habitat days where its focus is on a chosen community where
it builds houses for the members of the community that have been identified as the most
in need. Through company donations and volunteers, Habitat for Humanity is able to fulfil
its mandate.
As part of Delta’s CSI strategy, the Company encourages employee volunteerism and
Habitat
Humanity
is oneisofathe
initiatives supported.
Habitatforfor
Humanity
non-profit,
ecumenical Christian ministry that

builds with
need
regardless
of
race
or
religion.
Since
1976,
Habitat
has
helped
6.8
million pe
What support did Delta contribute?
Team
Delta
was
part
of
this
initiative
when
Habitat
visited
the
rural
urban
area
of
Orange
strength, stability and independence through safe, decent and affordable shelter
Farm to build, rehabilitate and clean up.
builds, rehabilitates and repairs simple, decent houses with the help of homeowner
Further
to that,
Delta has
to cultivate
an ongoing
with the
volunteer
labour,
andchosen
donations
of money
andrelationship
materials.
beneficiaries of the homes they initially built in the Orange Farm Project.

Team association
Delta yetwith
again
participated
onaims
thetobuild
week
and managed
Delta’s
Habitat
is ongoing and
encourage
all corporates/South
Africans
days. to join hands to alleviate the housing backlog in South Africa.

to build a ho

The total donation for Building Materials was R112 534.30
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Sustainability, transformation and
corporate citizenship report (continued)
Utshani Fund

Utshani Fund is a non-governmental organisation (“NGO”)
supporting KZN rural communities mostly with the upgrading
of informal settlements to decent housing.
Why does Delta support it?
Utshani has been provided with office accommodation, based
at Delta Towers in Durban, at no cost. It occupies 108m2 and
has been operating from the premises for more than 10 years.
Its rental agreement with Delta started in 2015 and is reviewed annually. The donation
is in line with Delta’s objective to assist in addressing the backlog of housing in South
Africa as a foundation
for creatingSCHOOL
a suitable environment
for early stage education
EMPLOYEE
DEPENDANT’S
FEES
and learning.

8.

Delta has been paying school fees for one of their employee’s dependants. (BM
Sinjenjabulo
Crèche
and
Pre-school
This
was part
of the
section
197 transfer of employees from Golden Pond (p
Sinjenjabulo is in the rural area of Impendle outside Pietermaritzburg, KZN, and is
Liberty
Towers
building
in
Durban).
TheIt terms
are
that both 80
dependants’
school f
registered as a non-profit organisation (“NPO”).
caters for
approximately
children
between
ages
of six months and six years. The parents are all high school learners
paid
upthe
until
Matric.
and therefore can barely afford to pay the minimum school fees of R25 a child per
month.

This year the amount paid was R7 300.00

The crèche survives on a minimal grant from the Department of Social Services, which
is not adequate to sustain the organisation, making donations from companies,
individuals and the community imperative to its continuation.

9. SINENJABULO
CRECHE
Why does Delta support
it? AND PRE SCHOOL

The donations are in line with Delta’s support of early childhood education and safe care

facilitiesProperty
for childrenFund
in the communities
operates.a list of items that they had provide
Delta
donated towhere
theitcrèche
consisted
ofdid
cot
beds,
swings, slides etc. The crèche caters for 80 children in tota
What support
Delta
contribute?
Delta expressed
donated goods
perthey
a “needs”
list of help
items provided
crèche.
The
list consisted
had
that
needed
in termsbyofthethe
tools
they
use for the kids.
of cot beds, swings, slides, etc.
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JZ Education Trust

JZ Education Trust is a tenant at Delta’s Embassy
Building in Durban occupying 158.70m2.
Why does Delta support it?
The tenant has been in occupation for more than 10 years
on a rental basis put in place by the previous landlords.
Delta has continued with the lease and the tenant is only
required to pay for utilities.

4. THUBALETHU CRECHE

Upgrades and renovations have been completed at the creche. In addition, the
electricity
connection
Thubalethu
Crèche was paid and connections done.
Located in rural KwaZulu-Natal, this small crèche offers shelter, food and education to

children
in theopening
village where
little
no funds
are available. in due course and Delta Setcomm
The
official
date
willto be
communicated
will
advised
accordingly.
Why be
does
Delta support
it?

4. considerable
THUBALETHU
CRECHE
After making donations in 2015 with
support
from the suppliers and service
providers, Delta decided to embark on the full upgrade of the crèche which saw a
Upgrades
andwas
renovations
have
been 2017.
completed at the cre
significant project kick-off in June 2016.
The project
completed in
February
electricity connection was paid and connections done.

What support did Delta contribute?
Additional upgrades to the school during
reporting
period
connection ofin due course
The the
official
opening
dateinclude
will bethe
communicated
electricity to the supply grid and covering
of advised
associated
costs, installation of new doors,
will be
accordingly.
JoJo tanks and kitchen appliances.

Total Donation R100 932.89
Total Donation R100 932.89
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Sustainability, transformation and
corporate citizenship report (continued)
Benjamin Generation – Child Care Centre

Registered as an NPO, the Benjamin Generation exists to rescue and raise orphaned,
abandoned, abused and neglected children. They receive no funding from the
government.
Why does Delta support it?
The donations are in line with Delta’s support of early childhood education and safe care
facilities for children.
What support did Delta contribute?
Delta contributed towards the daily operation of the facility.

Gauteng Children’s Rights Committee

Gauteng Children’s Rights Committee is an NGO established in 1999 as a provincial
structure of the defunct NCRC and acquired its independent status in 2002.
More info at: gncrc@mail.ngo.za
Its main mandate is to promote and protect the rights of children in Gauteng. This is done
through various programmes that address the four main areas of children’s rights, namely
the rights to protection, development, survival and participation as outlined by the United
Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child, section 8 of the Bill of Rights in the South
African Constitution and the African Charter for the Rights and Welfare of the Child.
GCRC presently implements diverse child protection programmes and projects in various
communities in Gauteng, including Diepsloot, Evaton, Weilers’ Farm, Soweto and
Braamfontein, including the following:
●● General advocacy programme on the rights and responsibility of children
●● Sexual harassment against learners at schools
●● Clinical/psychosocial services in Evaton and Braamfontein
●● HIV/AIDS care and support project (Diepsloot)
●● 100 children resilience project (Diepsloot)
Why does Delta support it?
The donations are in line with Delta’s support of early childhood education and safe care
facilities for children.
What support did Delta contribute?
Delta contributed towards the daily operation of the facility.
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10. URBAN IMPROVEMEN
Urban Improvements Precincts Company (“UIP”)

The UIP (RF) non-profit company through its collaboration with
local government, stakeholders and various partners aims to
create a solid foundation for the upliftment of the inner city. UIP
occupies 24.9m2 at the Embassy Building, 22nd floor and parking
is free.
Why does Delta support it?
UIP occupies 24.9m2 of offices at the Embassy Building, and
parking at no charge, as part of Delta’s support of urban
rejuvenation.

The Urban Improvements P
stakeholders, and various p
inner city. UIP occupies 24.8
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Stakeholder engagement
Delta is fully committed to the principles of the Code of Corporate Practices
and Conduct set out in King IV. Delta has adopted a stakeholder-inclusive
approach to corporate governance.
The directors recognise the need to conduct
the enterprise with integrity and in
accordance with generally acceptable
corporate practices. This includes timely,
relevant and meaningful reporting to
shareholders
and
other
stakeholders
providing an objective perspective of Delta
and its activities.
The directors have established mechanisms
and policies appropriate to the Company’s
business in keeping with its commitment to
best practices in corporate governance. The
Board is currently undergoing a full review of
all its mechanical processes and policies in
order to ensure alignment and compliance
with King IV.
The directors recognise that creating wealth
and delivering value to all stakeholders are
prerequisites for sustainability of the business
as a going concern.
Delta is committed to reporting openly on
the key issues affecting the Company’s
operations, its corporate governance
practices and any other information which
may have a material effect on the decisions
of stakeholders. The directors are cognisant
that stakeholder perception may have an
impact on the reputation of the Company
Stakeholder group

Engagement

Shareholders and investors

ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
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and, as such, the Board, as the ultimate
custodian of corporate reputation and
stakeholder relationships, considers a blend
of shareholder and stakeholder interests in
the context of its overarching duty to act in
the best interests of the Company.
Management engages with analysts and
shareholders on a regular basis to ascertain
expectations and perceptions of the
Company. They also take particular
responsibility for managing the relationship
with the Department of Public Works, as
government is a major tenant in Delta’s
commercial property portfolio.
Delta is a member of SAPOA, IPD, SACSC
and South African REITs.
The Company manages its capital to ensure
that it will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to the
stakeholders through the optimisation of the
debt equity balance. The capital structure of
the Company consists of equity attributable
to equity holders, comprising issued capital
and retained earnings.
Delta is in the process of finalising a formal
documented stakeholder policy. Once
finalised, the policy will be uploaded on the
Company’s website.

Annual General Meetings
Annual and interim reports
Results presentations (bi-annual)
Ongoing one-on-one meetings with investors
and analysts
Roadshows
Media announcements
SENS announcements
Website updates
Compliant and transparent reporting
Pre-close calls (interim and financial year-end pre-close
financial information)
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Stakeholder group

Engagement

Banks and financiers

ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü

Tenants

Suppliers/service providers

Employees

Media

Regulatory bodies
National government

Communities

Industry bodies

ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü

Regular one-on-one meetings between management
and funders
Cash flow and solvency forecasts
Report to financial stakeholders
Monitoring of key financial ratios
Fixing of interest rates
Property visits
Ongoing negotiations with bankers and financiers
to offer better rates and conditions
Consideration of alternative sources of capital by
the Board and corporate advisors
Integrated annual report
Government – management liaises regularly with the
Department of Public Works
Regular site visits
Formal communication via email and letters
Management meetings with senior staff of major tenants
Supplier performance is monitored regularly
Tenders are awarded based on B-BBEE credentials, price
and quality
Performance and development reviews
Direct communication
Open door policy by CEO, COO and CFO
Flat reporting structure
Press releases
Television interviews
One-on-one meetings
Invitation to presentations
Regular contact with JSE and SARS
Engaging with government at national, provincial,
council and local levels
Regulatory submissions
Corporate social investment
Constructive and transparent engagement
Bursaries
Investment in inner city enhancement projects
Memberships of SAPOA, IPD, SACSC and South African
REITs Association
Relationships
Events
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Catalyst for inner city
rejuvenation

CHAMBERS OF CHANGE
Location: 62 – 72 Pritchard Street, Johannesburg CBD
GLA: 5 944m2
Province: Gauteng
Property description: Four adjacent multi-storey buildings
Building sector: Commercial offices
Acquisition date: 18 December 2015

A collaboration with Propertuity Group (the developers of the
Maboneng precinct in the Johannesburg CBD), the Chambers will
bring some of the city back, and promises to cater specifically for
the legal and business fraternities and their many changing demands.
The development boasts tailored retrofit offices, providing the
support for modern law firms and professionals’ demands.
Chambers of Change is a collection of four buildings, consisting of
Dunvegan Chambers, The Royalty, Hilson House and the Cuthbert
Building.
The name was inspired by the buildings’ proximity to Johannesburg
High Court and their historical use as advocate chambers. The
building’s primary use will be offices and is in close proximity to the
Rea Vaya Station, Gautrain Station and key highways as well as
food and retail outlets.
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Directors’ responsibilities and approval
The directors are required in terms of the
Companies Act of South Africa to maintain
adequate accounting records and are
responsible for the content and integrity of
the Group annual financial statements and
related financial information included in this
report. It is their responsibility to ensure that
the Group annual financial statements fairly
present the state of affairs of the Group as at
the end of the financial year and the results of
its operations and cash flows for the period
then ended, in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and
the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as
issued by the Accounting Practices
Committee and Financial Pronouncements as
issued by the Financial Reporting Standards
Council and Companies Act of South Africa.
The external auditors are engaged to express
an independent opinion on the Group
financial statements.
The Group annual financial statements are
prepared in accordance with IFRS and the
SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued
by the Accounting Practices Committee and
Financial Pronouncements as issued by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council and
Companies Act of South Africa and are
based on appropriate accounting policies
consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are
ultimately responsible for the system of
internal financial control established by the
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Group and place considerable importance on
maintaining a strong control environment. To
enable the directors to meet these
responsibilities, the Board of directors sets
standards for internal control aimed at
reducing the risk of error or loss in a costeffective manner. The standards include the
proper delegation of responsibilities within
a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting procedures and adequate
segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable
level of risk. These controls are monitored
throughout the Group and all employees are
required to maintain the highest ethical
standards in ensuring the Group’s business is
conducted in a manner that in all reasonable
circumstances is above reproach. The focus
of risk management in the Group is on
identifying, assessing, managing and
monitoring all known forms of risk across the
Group. While operating risk cannot be fully
eliminated, the Group endeavours to
minimise it by ensuring that appropriate
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the
information and explanations given by
management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that
the financial records may be relied on for the
preparation of the Group annual financial
statements. However, any system of internal
financial control can provide only reasonable,
and not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash
flow forecast for the year from the date of
approval of this report and, in light of this
review and the current financial position, they
are satisfied that the Group has or has access
to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable
future.
The external auditors are responsible for
independently auditing and reporting on the
Group’s financial statements. The Group
financial statements have been examined by
the Group’s external auditors and their report
is presented on pages 90 to 93.

The Group annual financial statements set
out on pages 94 to 156, which have been
prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the Board of directors on
31 May 2018 and were signed on its behalf by:

SH Nomvete
S Maharaj
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
31 May 2018

Declaration by Group Company Secretary
Declaration by the Group Company Secretary in respect of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act.
In terms of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act of South Africa, as amended, I certify that the
Group has lodged with the Commissioner all such returns as are required of a public company
in terms of the Companies Act and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.

P Nel
Company Secretary
31 May 2018

Published: 29 June 2018
These annual financial statements have been audited in compliance with section 30(ii)(a) of the
Companies Act of South Africa and were prepared under the supervision of the CFO, Mr Shaneel
Maharaj CA(SA), HDip Tax.
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Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
report
The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
is an independent statutory committee and,
in addition to having specific statutory
responsibilities to the shareholders in terms
of the Companies Act of South Africa, also
assists the Board through advising and
making submissions on financial reporting,
oversight of the risk management process
and internal financial controls, the external
and internal audit functions as well as the
statutory and regulatory compliance of the
Company.

Terms of reference

The committee has adopted a formal charter
which has been approved by the Board and
has been incorporated in the Board charter.

Composition and meetings

The committee consists of three nonexecutive directors, all of whom are
independent.
At the date of this report, the Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee comprised the
following directors:
Director
Ian Macleod
Nombuso Afolayan
JJ Njeke
(Chairman)

Period served
5 November 2014 – current
13 May 2016 – current
25 May 2017 – current

The CEO, the CFO, the COO, senior financial
management of the asset manager and
representatives from the external and internal
auditors attend the committee meetings by
invitation only. The external auditors have
unrestricted access to the committee.
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The committee met five times prior to the
end of the financial year. This being in
accordance with its charter, King IV and the
Companies Act, which requires that the
committee meets a minimum of four times
prior to the end of the financial year.

Statutory duties

In the execution of its statutory duties
relating to the financial year under review, the
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee:
●● nominated and recommended BDO for
appointment as external auditors of the
Company under section 90 of the
Companies Act, a registered auditor who,
in the opinion of the committee, is
independent;
●● determined the fees to be paid to the
auditors and the auditors’ terms of
engagement;
●● ensured
that the appointment of the
auditors complied with the provision of the
Companies Act, and any other legislation
relating to the appointment of auditors;
●● determined the nature and extent of any
non-audit services that the auditors may
provide to the Company or Group;
●● pre-approved any proposed agreement
with the auditors for the provision of nonaudit services to the Company or Group;
●● prepared a report, which has been included
in the annual financial statements of the
Company for the financial year under
review; received and dealt appropriately
with any concerns or complaints, whether
from within or outside the Company, or on
its own initiative, in relation to the matters
as set out in the Companies Act; and
●● made submissions to the Board on any
matter
concerning
the
Company’s
accounting policies, financial control,
records and reporting.

Delegated duties

In addition to its statutory duties, the Audit,
Risk and Compliance Committee also
performed the following duties:
●● Oversight
of risk management by
reviewing and approving the key risks
facing the Group.
●● Reviewed the scope and report provided
by the internal auditors.
●● Reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
financial controls.
●● Assisted the Board in its review of the
Group’s risk management and compliance
policies.
●● Reviewed the expertise and experience of
the CFO, and the finance function.
Monitored
compliance
with
REIT
requirements, in accordance with the JSE
Listings Requirements and confirmed that
the risk management policy has been
complied with in all material respects.

Regulatory compliance

The committee has complied with all the
applicable regulatory and legal responsibilities.

External audit

We reported last year that it was the
committee’s intention to go out to tender for
the provision of the external audit function in
the year ending 28 February 2019. On further
consideration the committee recommended
to the Board that, until certainty is obtained
around the nature and timing of the proposed
transaction, it would be advisable to hold off
on the tender process for the foreseeable
future. The Board agreed. Consideration will
be given to this matter in due course.

Internal audit

The committee approved the appointment of
Grant Thornton for internal audit services for
the Group.
Richard Walker, a partner at Grant Thornton,
fulfils the role of Chief Audit Executive
(“CAE”). The CAE is invited to participate in
all the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
meetings as well as participate in the annual
detailed risk workshop that the committee
holds.

Terms of engagement and fees paid to
external auditor

Based on processes followed by the
committee and assurances received from the
external auditor, nothing has come to our
attention with regard to the independence of
the external auditor.

The committee, in consultation with executive
management, agreed to the engagement
letter, terms, audit plan and budgeted audit
fees for the financial year ended 28 February
2018. The committee considered the fee to
be fair and appropriate.

The committee has requested that they be
provided with any decision letters/
explanations issued by IRBA or any other
regulator and any summaries relating to
monitoring procedures/deficiencies issued
by the audit firm. There were no matters
pertaining to Delta that were raised by IRBA
or any other regulator.

Information relating to non-audit services
provided by the appointed external auditors
of the Company has been disclosed in the
notes to the annual financial statements.
Separate disclosures have been made of the
amounts paid to the appointed external
auditors for non-audit services as opposed to
audit services.
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Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
report (continued)
Finance function

Based on the processes and assurances
obtained the committee is of the view that
the accounting practices are effective and
that
appropriate
financial
reporting
procedures exist and are working.

The external auditor has expressed an
unqualified opinion on the financial statements
for the year ended 28 February 2018.

Going concern

The committee has reviewed the consolidated
and separate ﬁnancial statements of the
Group, and is satisﬁed that they comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The committee is satisfied that Shaneel
Maharaj, the CFO, has the appropriate
expertise and experience to meet his
responsibilities in that position as required by
the JSE.
The committee is further satisfied with:
●● the expertise and adequacy of resources
within the finance function; and
●● the
experience of the senior financial
management staff.
In making these assessments the committee
has obtained feedback from the external
auditors.
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The committee through its review of the 2019
budget, cash flows, and discussions with
executive management reported to the
Board that it supports management’s view
that the Company will continue to operate as
a going concern for the foreseeable future.

Integrated annual report

The committee has reviewed and commented
on the financial statements and the disclosure
of sustainability issues included in this
integrated annual report to ensure that they
are reliable and do not conflict with the
financial information disclosed in this
integrated annual report. This integrated
annual report was recommended by the
committee to the Board for approval.

Directors’ report
The Board has the pleasure in submitting
the directors’ report for the year ended
28 February 2018.

Nature of business

Delta is the dominant sovereign listed
property fund in South Africa, is black
managed and with its level 2 B-BBEE
contributor status is one of the highest
empowered funds in the sector. The primary
focus of the Fund is long-term investment in
quality, rental income generating properties
situated in strategic nodes attractive to
sovereign entities and other tenants requiring
empowered landlords.

In terms of developing the strategy, the
Board, together with the asset manager, will
identify each of these capitals, assess how
they will impact Delta, how they will be
treated by Delta and what impact Delta will
have on them. These capitals are part of dayto-day operations, as well as part of both the
short and long-term strategies. The Board
will also identify the challenges and
opportunities linked to each of these capitals.
The Board acknowledges that Delta
addresses all of these capitals in its current
strategy and business operations.

Management and the Board are aligned and
committed to Delta’s current sovereign
strategy.

Overlaying these capitals and built into the
strategy will be the creation of sustainable
value for stakeholders, understanding that
different capitals have different definitions of
“value” as do the different stakeholders.

As you are aware, Delta has been under
cautionary since April 2017 pending
finalisation of what has become known as the
proposed transaction.

The Board is mindful that following successful
conclusion of the proposed transaction there
may be a need to reassess the current Board
and committee compositions.

Pending the finalisation of this transaction
the Board has delayed its strategy session
with the intention of holding a session once
the details of the transaction are certain,
pending shareholder approval.

Review of activities

Strategy

The results of the Group and the Company
are commented on in the Chairman’s, CEO’s,
COO’s and CFO’s reports on pages 24 to 41
and are set out in the financial statements on
pages 94 to 156.

It is the Board’s intention to expand on the
current strategy so as to also align closely
with the King IV recommendations and to
further explore the six capitals (financial,
manufactured, human, intellectual, natural,
and social and relationship) and link them
into the strategy.
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Directors’ report (continued)
Distributions

Non-executive directors
●● JB Magwaza – Chairman*
●● N Khan
●● BA Corbett (resigned 12 April 2018)
●● DN Motau*
●● ID Macleod*
●● NN Afolayan*
●● MJN Njeke* (appointed 1 April 2017)
●● MCR Rampheri* (appointed 1 June 2017)

The following distributions were declared
during the 2018 financial period:
●● Distribution number 10 of 46.40 cents
per share for the six months ended
31 August 2017.
●● Distribution number 11 of 50.84 cents
per share for the six months ended
28 February 2018.

* Independent.

Directorate

Directors’ interests

Executive directors
●● SH Nomvete – CEO
●● S Maharaj – CFO
●● ON Tshabalala – COO

Executive
directors
SH Nomvete
Nonexecutive
directors
JB Magwaza
N Khan
BA Corbett

The interest of the directors in the shares of
the Company at the date of this report was
as follows:

Direct
beneficial
holding

Indirect
beneficial
holding

Total
2018

Direct
beneficial
holding

Indirect
beneficial
holding

Total
2017

–

18 882 039

18 882 039

–

18 882 039

18 882 039

2 035 201
–
50 000 32 484 616
–
–

2 035 201
32 534 616
–

2 035 201
50 000
100 000

–
32 484 616
5 092 214

2 035 201
32 534 616
5 192 214

2 085 201

53 451 856

51 366 655

2 185 201 56 458 869 58 444 070

All changes in the directors’ interests between financial year-end and the date of approval of the
annual financial statements have been recorded above. BA Corbett remains a shareholder in
Delta post her resignation as a director.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

Events after the reporting period

The fee payable by Delta to DPAM for all
asset
management
and
operational
management services is a monthly fee of half
of 0.35% of the aggregate of the market
capitalisation and the borrowings of Delta
(“Enterprise Value”).

Going concern

Asset management
DPAM, a company in which Sandile Nomvete
serves as an executive director, is the
appointed asset manager of Delta.

There were no significant events after the
reporting period except for the declaration
of the final distribution of R361.9 million on
31 May 2018.

The directors are of the opinion that the
Group and Company have adequate
resources to continue operating for the
foreseeable future and that it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the Group’s financial statements.

Property management
From
1
September
2016,
property
management services have been provided by
DPAM. A management fee is payable to
DPAM by Delta equal to 1.85% of monthly
collections from tenants.

The directors have satisfied themselves that
the Group and Company are in a sound
financial position and that they have access
to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its
foreseeable cash requirements.

Executive directors’ service contracts

Registered office

The executive directors have service
contracts with the Company which include a
three-month notice period.

Silver Stream Office Park
10 Muswell Road South
Bryanston
Johannesburg, 2021
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Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Delta Property
Fund Limited
Report on the audit of the
consolidated and separate financial
statements

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated and
separate financial statements of Delta
Property Fund Limited and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 94 to 156,
which comprise the consolidated and
separate statements of financial position as
at 28 February 2018 and the consolidated
and separate statements of profit or loss and
other
comprehensive
income,
the
consolidated and separate statements of
changes in equity and the consolidated and
separate statements of cash flows for the
year then ended, and the notes to the
consolidated
and
separate
financial
statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the consolidated and separate
financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated and
separate financial position of Delta Property
Fund Limited and the Group as at
28 February 2018, and its consolidated and
separate financial performance and its
consolidated and separate cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) and the requirements of the
Companies Act of South Africa.
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Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (“ISA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated
and
separate
financial
statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with
the Independent Regulatory Board for
Auditors Code of Professional Conduct for
Registered Auditors (“IRBA Code”) and other
independence requirements applicable to
performing audits of financial statements in
South Africa. We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IRBA Code and in accordance with other
ethical requirements applicable to performing
audits in South Africa (N6). The IRBA Code is
consistent with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A
and B). We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in
our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated
and separate financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated
and separate financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. The key audit matters noted below
relate to the consolidated and separate
financial statements.

Key audit matter

Audit response

Valuation of investment property – refer to note 24
The Group’s investment property
Our audit procedures to address the risk of material
represents a majority of the total
misstatement relating to the valuation of investment
amount of its assets and is
property, which was considered to be a significant risk,
accounted for using the fair value
included among others:
●● reviewing the supporting documentation for the
model. The valuation of these
revaluation which included external valuation
properties are based on a combined
reports, Rode report and rent rolls;
discounted cash flow method and
●● ensuring
that the measurement basis for the
income capitalisation rate method
valuation was in accordance with IFRS;
and not on quoted prices in active
●● confirming
the independence of management’s
markets.
Therefore,
there
is
expert (the valuer) including their experience and
significant measurement uncertainty
qualifications;
involved in this valuation as a result,
●● satisfying ourselves that the techniques used by the
the valuation of these properties
valuer are appropriate in the circumstances and
were significant to our audit.
have been applied consistently;
●● reviewing the assumptions used by the valuer for
reasonableness including assessing the accuracy of
the data provided to the valuer by agreeing it to the
source documents obtained from the client. Where
possible, the key assumptions were supported by
external evidence; and
●● evaluating
whether disclosures in the financial
statements related to the valuation of properties is in
accordance with IFRS.
Other information
The directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises
the directors’ report, Audit, Risk and
Compliance
Committee’s
report
and
Company Secretary’s certificate, as required
by the Companies Act of South Africa, which
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report and the integrated annual report. The
other information does not include the
consolidated
and
separate
financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate
financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form
of assurance or conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the
consolidated
and
separate
financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
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Independent auditor’s report (continued)
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed on
the other information that we obtained prior
to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
When we read the integrated annual report,
if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to the Audit
Committee and consider whether a
reportable irregularity exists in terms of the
Auditing Professions Act, which must
be reported to the IRBA. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated and separate financial
statements
The directors are responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated and separate financial
statements in accordance with IFRS and the
requirements of the Companies Act of South
Africa, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated and separate
financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
In preparing the consolidated and separate
financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated and separate financial
statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated
and separate financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISA will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated
and
separate
financial
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISA,
we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:
●● identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated and
separate financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;
●● obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control;

●●

●●

●●

●●

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting
estimates
and
related
disclosures made by management;
conclude on the appropriateness of the
directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated
and separate financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern;
evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the consolidated and
separate financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated and separate financial
statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation; and
obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence
regarding
the
financial
information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated and
separate financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors
regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a
statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the
directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated
and
separate
financial
statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements
In terms of the IRBA Rule published in
Government Gazette Number 39475 dated
4 December 2015, we report that BDO South
Africa Incorporated has been the auditor of
Delta Property Fund Limited for eight years.

BDO South Africa Incorporated
Per Stephen Shaw
Registered auditor
Director
Practice number: 905526
22 Wellington Road
Parktown
31 May 2018
Delta Property Fund integrated annual report 2018 /

93

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of financial position
as at 28 February 2018

Group
2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

10 535 000
10 342 418
192 582
2 557
–
–
381 868
–
–
10 919 425

10 053 921
9 861 449
192 472
3 302
–
–
391 013
–
35
10 448 271

10 268 200
10 076 207
191 993
2 557
62 273
–
381 868
423 268
–
11 138 166

9 793 123
9 600 791
192 332
3 302
62 273
2
429 587
405 152
35
10 693 474

55 243
48 465
526
338 845
–
100 177
543 256
972 600
12 435 281

108 483
–
1 153
276 091
1 721
196 115
583 563
1 327 500
12 359 334

55 243
48 465
–
302 985
–
96 864
503 557
744 600
12 386 323

108 483
–
–
256 400
1 721
194 372
560 976
1 101 700
12 356 150

15

4 854 032
144 230
2 160 330
7 158 592

4 845 248
139 779
2 056 589
7 041 616

4 854 032
139 425
2 117 907
7 111 364

4 845 248
139 425
2 056 438
7 041 111

18
19
9

31 475
2 688 755
–
2 720 230

29 623
4 112 646
–
4 142 269

31 475
2 688 755
4 190
2 724 420

29 623
4 112 646
4 190
4 146 459

19
20
18
13

2 263 935
183 983
11 426
97 115
2 556 459
5 276 689
12 435 281

986 581
121 823
23 768
43 277
1 175 449
5 317 718
12 359 334

2 263 935
177 453
11 426
97 725
2 550 539
5 274 959
12 386 323

986 581
114 954
23 768
43 277
1 168 580
5 315 039
12 356 150

Notes
ASSETS
Non‑current assets
Investment property
Fair value of investment property
Straight-line rental income accrual
Property, plant and equipment
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in joint venture
Investment in associate
Loans due from subsidiaries
Derivative financial instruments
Current assets
Loans due from related parties
Loan receivable
Current tax receivable
Trade and other receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents
Non‑current assets held-for-sale
Total assets
EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves
Retained income
Total equity
LIABILITIES
Non‑current liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Interest‑bearing borrowings
Loans due to subsidiaries
Current liabilities
Interest‑bearing borrowings
Trade and other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Bank overdraft
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Company

3
4
5
6
8
9
18

10
11
12
18
13
14
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Statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income
for the year ended 28 February 2018

Group

Company

Notes

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

21
4

1 562 033
2 020

1 612 481
4 863

1 505 471
1 134

1 557 344
4 432

Property operating expenses

1 564 053
(414 168)

1 617 344
(464 003)

1 506 605
(406 068)

1 561 776
(455 703)

Net property rental and related
income
Other income
Dividend income
Gain on foreign exchange differences
Administration expenses

26

1 149 885
20 287
–
16 881
(53 329)

1 153 341
6 215
–
20 336
(68 169)

1 100 537
20 278
50 812
16 881
(52 838)

1 106 073
6 027
80 798
20 336
(66 649)

Net operating profit
Fair value adjustments

22
24

1 133 724
104 759

1 111 723
(34 887)

1 135 670
99 975

1 146 585
(49 904)

Profit from operations
Finance costs
Interest income
Share of profit in associate
Impairment of investment in associate

25
26
8
8

1 238 483
(482 179)
19 696
43 970
(21 900)

1 076 836
(470 580)
27 168
1 526
–

1 235 645
(482 624)
50 497
–
(47 719)

1 096 681
(470 578)
54 930
–
(80 586)

Profit before taxation
Taxation

27

798 070
–

634 950
–

755 799
–

600 447
–

798 070

634 950

755 799

600 447

4 451

44 150

–

–

802 521

679 100

755 799

600 447

798 070

634 950

755 799

600 447

802 521

679 100

755 799

600 447

112.26

89.49

–

–

Revenue
Rental income
Straight-line rental income accrual

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit and loss
Share of foreign currency translation
reserve of associate

8

Total comprehensive income for
the year
Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Basic and diluted earnings per
share (cents)

29
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 28 February 2018

Group

Foreign
currency
Share translation
capital
reserve
R’000
R’000

Balance at 1 March 2016
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Issue of shares – issued as
consideration for investment
property
Capital issue expenses
Deferred consideration settled
– issue of shares
Deferred consideration raised
Distributions paid

3 450 593

(43 796)

Deferred
consideration
R’000

Total
reserves
R’000

Retained
income
R’000

Total
equity
R’000

259 720

215 924

1 990 112

5 656 629
679 100
634 950
44 150

–
–
–

44 150
–
44 150

–
–
–

44 150
–
44 150

634 950
634 950
–

1 255 834
(604)

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

139 425
–
–

–
–
–

Balance at 1 March 2017
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Distribution reinvestment
(note 14)
Distributions paid

4 845 248

Balance at 28 February 2018
Notes

(139 425)
19 130
–

(139 425)
19 130
–

354

139 425

139 779

2 056 589

7 041 616

–
–
–

4 451
–
4 451

–
–
–

4 451
–
4 451

798 070
798 070
–

802 521
798 070
4 451

8 784
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
(694 329)

8 784
(694 329)

4 854 032

4 805

139 425

144 230

2 160 330

7 158 592

15

16

17
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–
–
(568 473)

1 255 834
(604)
–
19 130
(568 473)

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 28 February 2018

Company

Foreign
currency
Share translation
capital
reserve
R’000
R’000

Deferred
consideration
R’000

Total
reserves
R’000

Retained
income
R’000

Total
equity
R’000

Balance at 1 March 2016
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Issue of shares – issued as
consideration for investment
property
Capital issue expenses
Deferred consideration settled
– issue of shares
Deferred consideration raised
Distributions paid

3 450 593

–

259 720

259 720

2 024 464

5 734 777

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

600 447
600 447
–

600 447
600 447
–

1 255 834
(604)

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

139 425
–
–

–
–
–

(139 425)
19 130
–

(139 425)
19 130
–

Balance at 1 March 2017
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Distribution reinvestment
(note 14)
Distributions paid

4 845 248

–

139 425

139 425

2 056 438

7 041 111

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

755 799
755 799
–

755 799
755 799
–

8 784
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
(694 329)

8 784
(694 329)

Balance at 28 February 2018

4 854 032

–

139 425

139 425

2 117 907

7 111 364

15

16

17

Notes

–
–
(568 473)

1 255 834
(604)
–
19 130
(568 473)
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Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 28 February 2018

Group
Notes
Cash generated from operations
Interest received
Dividend received
Finance costs
Taxation refund
Dividends paid

2018
R’000

(6 532)

(7 407)

5

(498)
–

(260)
(60 300)

(498)
–

(260)
(60 300)

3, 14

(185 436)

(202 965)

(182 905)

(196 217)

205 200

268 500

205 200

268 500

31

1 100 863
42 504
33 733
(475 899)
–
(694 329)

2017
R’000

1 016 482
7 823
18 851
(482 090)
–
(568 473)

Net cash from investing activities
Distribution reinvestment
Capital issue expenses
Increase in interest-bearing
borrowings
Repayment of interest-bearing
borrowings
Repayment of other financial
liabilities

2017
R’000

1 132 324
12 158
18 587
(475 899)
627
(694 329)

28

Net cash from operating activities
Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment
Acquisition of investment property
Capital expenditure on investment
property and assets held-for-sale
Proceeds on disposal of assets
held-for-sale
Gross movement in loans with
related parties
Increase in loan receivable
Loans advanced to subsidiaries

2018
R’000

Company

6 872

967 411
35 584
60 159
(482 090)
–
(568 473)
12 591

26 223
(48 465)
–

18 634
–
–

26 223
(48 465)
(18 115)

(2 976)

23 609

(18 560)

2 814

8 784
–

–
(604)

8 784
–

15

–
(604)

18 634
–
(27 543)

220 358

418 800

220 358

418 800

(360 385)

(387 313)

(360 385)

(387 313)

(9 025)

–

(9 025)

–

Net cash from financing activities

(140 268)

30 883

(140 268)

30 883

Net movement in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash at the beginning of the year

(149 776)
152 838

47 085
105 753

(151 956)
151 095

46 288
104 807

152 838

(861)

151 095

Total cash/(overdraft) at the end
of the year

98
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Accounting policies
1.

Presentation of Group annual financial statements
The Group annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the interpretations adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee of the IASB. The consolidated and separate financial statements
comply with the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices
Committee and Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting
Standards Council, the JSE Listings Requirements and the requirements of the Companies
Act of South Africa.
The financial statements are prepared on the historic cost basis, except for investment
property, non-current asset held-for-sale and certain financial instruments which are
carried at fair value, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below.
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. They are presented in rand
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (R’000) except where otherwise
indicated.
The accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year.
1.1

Basis of consolidation
The Group annual financial statements incorporate the annual financial statements
of the Company and all entities which are controlled by the Company.
The Company controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity.
The results of the subsidiaries are included in the Group annual financial statements
from the effective date of acquisition to the effective date of disposal. On acquisition,
the Group recognises the subsidiary’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities at fair value, except for assets classified as held-for-sale, which are recognised
at fair value less costs to sell.
Adjustments are made when necessary to the annual financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those of the Group.
All intra‑group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
Transactions which result in changes in ownership levels, where the Group has control
of the subsidiary both before and after the transaction, are regarded as equity
transactions and are recognised directly in the statement of changes in equity.
The difference between the fair value of consideration paid or received and the
movement in non‑controlling interest for such transactions is recognised in equity
attributable to the owners of the parent.

1.2 Investment in subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Company has the ability to control the financial
and operating activities so as to obtain benefit from the activities. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases. In the
separate financial statements of the Company, investments in subsidiaries are carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment.
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Accounting policies (continued)
1.

Presentation of Group annual financial statements (continued)
1.3 Investment in associate and joint venture
An associate is an entity over which the Company can exercise significant influence,
through participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but where it does not have control or joint control over those policies.
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of
the arrangement have benefits derived from the net assets of the joint arrangement.
The profits and losses as well as the assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held-for-sale, in
which case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost and thereafter
the carrying value is adjusted to recognise the investor’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee after the date of acquisition, distributions received and
any adjustments that are required. The profits or losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.
An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
When the reporting period of the investor is different to that of the associate or joint
venture, the associate or joint venture prepares for the use of the investor, annual
financial statements as at the same date as the financial statements of the investor
except when the entity is listed and the financial information of the associate or joint
venture is not publicly available. In such cases the latest published results will be used
for equity accounting.
1.4 Interest in joint operation
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to
the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement which exists when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
When a Group entity undertakes its activities under joint operations, the Group as a
joint operator recognises in relation to its interest in a joint operation:
●● its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;
●● its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;
●● its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation; and
●● its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.
The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to its
interest in a joint operation in accordance with the IFRS applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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1.

Presentation of Group annual financial statements (continued)
1.5 Investment property
Investment property consists of land and buildings and installed equipment held to
earn rental income for the long term and subsequent capital appreciation. Investment
property is recognised as an asset when, and only when, it is probable that the future
economic benefits that are associated with the investment property will flow to the
Company, and the cost of the investment property can be measured reliably.
Investment property is initially recognised at cost including transaction costs. Cost
includes initial costs, costs incurred subsequently to extend or refurbish investment
property as well as the cost of any development rights.
Investment properties are valued annually and adjusted to fair value as at statement
of financial position date. Independent valuations are obtained on a rotational basis,
ensuring that every property is valued by an independent valuer once in every three
years. The directors value the remaining properties annually. Valuations are done on
the open market value basis and the valuers use either the discounted cash flow
method or the capitalisation of net income method or a combination of the methods.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in profit or loss for the
period in which the fair value adjustments arise.
Gains and losses on the disposal of investment properties are recognised in profit or
loss as fair value adjustments and are calculated as the difference between the
proceeds received and the carrying value of the property.
1.6 Non‑current assets held-for-sale
Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, that are
expected to be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use,
are classified as held-for-sale. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the non-current asset or disposal group is available for sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
assets. For the sale to be highly probable, the appropriate level of management must
be committed to a plan to sell the asset or disposal group.
Investment properties classified as held-for-sale are measured in accordance with
IAS 40 Investment Property at fair value with gains and losses on subsequent
measurement being recognised in profit or loss.
1.7 Property, plant and equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
●● it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company; and
●● the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant
and equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to or replace part of it.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis over their
expected useful lives to their estimated residual value.
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Accounting policies (continued)
1.

Presentation of Group annual financial statements (continued)
1.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the
asset or the lease term.
Item

Average useful life

Furniture and fittings
Motor vehicles
Computer equipment

6 – 25
5
3

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period. If the expectations differ from previous estimates,
the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and
equipment is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss
arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of the item.
1.8 Financial instruments
Financial instruments are contracts that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial
position when the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on
initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. All transaction costs relating to
financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss are immediately
expensed.
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred
financial assets that is created or retained by the entity is recognised as a separate
asset or liability. The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
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Presentation of Group annual financial statements (continued)
1.8 Financial instruments (continued)
Subsequent to initial recognition, these instruments are measured as follows:
Financial assets
1.8.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
other short‑term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a
known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. These are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Cash and cash equivalents are classified as loans and
receivables.

1.8.2 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are measured on initial recognition at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Trade and other receivables are presented net of an allowance for
impairment. The allowance for impairment is based on the difference between
the carrying value of the receivables and the present value of expected future
cash flows using the discount rate calculated at initial recognition. Movements
in the allowance is recognised in profit or loss. Unrecoverable amounts are
written off against the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
previously written off amounts are credited to profit or loss.
1.8.3 Loans receivables
These include loans to subsidiaries and related parties and are recognised
initially at fair value plus direct transaction costs. Loans receivable are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any accumulated
impairments. Interest earned is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method.
Financial liabilities
1.8.4 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method.

1.8.5 Bank overdraft and borrowings
Bank overdraft and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method.
1.8.6 Loans payables
These include loans owing to subsidiaries and related parties and are recognised
initially at fair value plus direct transaction costs. Loans payable are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Accounting policies (continued)
1.

Presentation of Group annual financial statements (continued)
1.8 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
1.8.7 Derivative instruments
Derivatives are initially and subsequently measured at fair value. The fair value
is the estimated amount that the entity would receive or pay to terminate the
instrument at the reporting date, taking into account current interest rates and
the current creditworthiness of the counterparties to the transaction. The gain
or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or
loss. Any directly attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.
1.9 Taxation
1.9.1 Current taxation
Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and
included in profit or loss for the year.
The charge for current taxation includes expected tax payable or receivable on
the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment for taxation payable
or receivable for previous years.
Current taxation liabilities/(assets) for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be paid to/(recovered from) the taxation
authorities, using the taxation rates and taxation laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
1.9.2 Deferred taxation
Deferred taxation is recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred taxation is not recognised for the
following temporary differences:
●● The initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit.
●● Differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
No deferred tax was recognised on the fair value of investment property as
capital gains tax is no longer applicable in terms of section 25BB of the Income
Tax Act.
No deferred tax is provided on any other timing differences as the Group does
not expect to have taxable income in the foreseeable future.
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Presentation of Group annual financial statements (continued)
1.10 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
Operating leases – lessor
Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. The difference between the amounts recognised as income and the
contractual amounts received are recognised as an operating lease asset. This asset is
not discounted.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are
capitalised to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.
Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in profit or loss.
Operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight‑line basis over
the lease term. The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and
the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease liability. This liability is
not discounted.
Any contingent rents are expensed in profit or loss in the period they are incurred.
1.11 Impairment
1.11.1 Financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any evidence of
impairment. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence
indicates that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flow of that asset. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
1.11.2 Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value-in-use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash flows,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.
An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or
its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Presentation of Group annual financial statements (continued)
1.11 Impairment (continued)
1.11.2 Non-financial assets (continued)
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount and there is an indication that the
impairment loss no longer exists.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
1.12 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. External costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares are shown as a deduction in equity from the proceeds.
1.13 Deferred consideration
The deferred consideration that will be settled through the issue of a fixed number of
the entity’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.
Judgement is required when assessing the classification of the deferred consideration
as either an equity or liability financial instrument.
1.14 Employee benefits
1.14.1 Short‑term benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense during
the period in which the employees render the related service.
Short-term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis. The
accrual for employee entitlements to salaries, incentives and annual leave
represents the amount which the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay as a result of the employees’ services provided up to the
reporting date.
1.14.2 Long‑term benefits
Share-based payments
The Group implemented a long-term incentive plan effective March 2018 with
the primary intention to attract, retain, motivate and reward employees on a
basis which aligns their interests with those of the Company’s shareowners.
Participants will be allocated units that will be eligible to vest on the third
anniversary of the date on which such units were allocated (“vesting date”). The
number of units that vest is subject to performance conditions. The performance
conditions are set by the Board on allocation and are aligned to the strategy of
the Company. At below threshold performance, zero units vest. At target
performance, the target units vest. There is a cap on the number of units
that can vest. All units determined to be eligible to vest by the Board shall
be referred to as “eligible units” and will be deemed to have vested on the
vesting date.
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1.14 Employee benefits (continued)
1.14.2 Long‑term benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)
On the date on which a unit is deemed to vest, a participant shall be entitled to
be settled with shares based on the 30-day volume weighted average price on
the JSE immediately prior to the date of vesting using a cash amount (“due
amount”). The Board may, instead of settling a participant as aforesaid,
determine that he shall be paid a cash amount equal to the due amount. In any
event, the employer company shall be obliged (or, where appropriate, shall be
obliged to procure) the settlement of a participant.
Where the total number of shares to be settled is not a whole number, the
number of shares shall be rounded downwards to the nearest whole number.
A unit/eligible unit which has not vested shall be deemed to have been
cancelled, and accordingly not entitle a participant to settlement of any shares
or cash.
All share-based remuneration is ultimately recognised as an expense in profit or
loss, with a corresponding increase in equity. If vesting periods or other vesting
conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the vesting period, based on the
best available estimate of the number of shares expected to vest.
1.15 Revenue
Revenue from letting of investment property in terms of rental agreements comprises
gross rental income and recoveries of operating costs, net of value added taxation.
Rental income is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the rental agreement.
Interest earned on cash invested with financial institutions is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.
Dividends are recognised, in profit or loss, when the Company’s right to receive
payment has been established.
1.16 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of a
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period during which these costs are incurred.
A qualifying asset is an asset that takes a substantial period of time to prepare for its
intended use.
Any costs that are incurred on raising interest-bearing borrowings are offset against
the debt balance and recognised as additional interest using the effective interest rate
method over the term of the loan.
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1.17 Segment reporting
The Group determines and presents operating segments based on information that is
provided internally to the Executive Management Committee (“EXCO”) and to the
Board of directors. The EXCO reviews internal management reports of each segment
monthly, while the Board reviews internal management reports in respect of each
segment at least quarterly.
The operations are arranged into five business segments: retail, office government,
office other, industrial and administration and corporate costs.
1.18 Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions are translated to the respective functional currency of
the Group which are presented in rand, at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date
are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rates at that date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
measured at fair value are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rates
at the dates that the fair values were determined.
Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognised in profit or loss.
1.19 Earnings, headline earnings and distributable earnings per share
Earnings per share are calculated based on the weighted average number of shares in
issue for the year and profit attributable to shareholders. Headline earnings per share
are calculated in terms of the requirements set out in Circular 2/2015 issued by SAICA.
Distributable earnings per share are calculated based on the recommendation
provided by the REIT’s best practice guidance.
1.20 Key estimations and uncertainties
Estimates and assumptions are an integral part of financial reporting and as such have
an impact on the amounts reported for the Group’s income, expenses, assets and
liabilities. Judgement in these areas is based on historical experience and reasonable
expectations relating to future events. Information on the key estimations and
uncertainties that have the most significant effect on amounts recognised is set out
below:
1.20.1 Investment property valuations
The valuation of investment properties requires judgement in determination of
the future cash flows and appropriate discount rates. See note 3.
1.20.2 Impairment of trade and other receivables and loans due from related parties
Management assesses impairments of trade and other receivables and loans
due from related parties on an ongoing basis. Impairment adjustments are
raised when collectability is considered doubtful. Management believes that all
trade receivables that are doubtful have been adequately provided for. See
notes 9, 10 and 11.
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1.20 Key estimations and uncertainties
1.20.3 Fair value of derivative financial instruments
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk arising from its financing activities. The Group held interest rate
swap and currency swap instruments. The fair value of interest rate swaps is the
estimated amount that the entity would receive or pay to terminate the swap at
the reporting date, taking into account current interest rates and the current
creditworthiness of the swap counterparties. The fair value of cross-currency
swaps are based on the projected present value of net future cash payments
and receipts, which fluctuate based on changes in market interest rates and the
dollar/rand exchange rate.
1.20.4 Taxation
The Group exercises judgement in determining the provision for income taxes
due to the complexity of legislation.
The Group recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that the deductible temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred
income tax assets requires the Group to make significant estimates related to
expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future taxable income are
based on forecast cash flows from operations and the application of existing
tax laws in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and taxable
income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the Group to realise the
net deferred tax assets recorded at the end of the reporting period could be
impacted.
1.20.5 Equity accounting investment in associate
The directors have exercised their judgement in determining whether the
shareholding in the foreign listed entity should be accounted for as an
investment in associate or as an investment. In the current period, this
investment was accounted for as an investment in associate as the Company
exercised significant influence over the investee in terms of IAS 28. See note 8.
1.20.6 Segmental reporting
Judgement is applied in aggregating the segments within the Group.
The judgements used have been disclosed in note 41.
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New standards and interpretations
2.1

Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year
At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, certain new
accounting standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have
been published but are not yet effective, and have not been early adopted by
the Group.
Management anticipates that all of the pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the
pronouncement. Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that
are expected to be relevant to the consolidated financial statements is provided
below. Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but are not
expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements, namely:
●● IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment (effective periods beginning on/after 1 January 2018).
●● IAS 40 Investment Property (effective periods beginning on/after 1 January 2018).
●● IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative (effective periods beginning on/after 1 January 2017).
●● IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (effective periods
beginning on/after 1 January 2017).
●● IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations (effective
periods beginning on/after 1 January 2018).
●● IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective periods beginning on/
after 1 January 2019).
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
A final version of IFRS 9 has been issued which replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. The completed standard comprises guidance on
classification and measurement, impairment hedge accounting and derecognition:
●● IFRS 9 introduces a new approach to the classification of financial assets, which is
driven by the business model in which the asset is held and their cash flow
characteristics. A new business model was introduced which does allow certain
financial assets to be categorised as “fair value through other comprehensive
income” in certain circumstances. The requirements for financial liabilities are
mostly carried forward unchanged from IAS 39. However, some changes were
made to the fair value option for financial liabilities to address the issue of own
credit risk.
●● The new model introduces a single impairment model being applied to all financial
instruments, as well as an “expected credit loss” model for the measurement of
financial assets.
●● IFRS 9 contains a new model for hedge accounting that aligns the accounting
treatment with the risk management activities of an entity, in addition enhanced
disclosures will provide better information about risk management and the effect of
hedge accounting on the financial statements.
●● IFRS 9 carries forward the derecognition requirements of financial assets and
liabilities from IAS 39.
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2.1

Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year (continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
The Group expects to adopt the amendments for the first time in the 2019 annual
financial statements and the amendments will be applied retrospectively, subject to
transitional provisions.
The Group expects IFRS 9 to have an immaterial impact on the accounting for ﬁnancial
assets and liabilities. The Group does not recognise any available-for-sale ﬁnancial
assets. In addition to this, the Group measures investments in equity instruments at
fair value through proﬁt or loss. It is noted that IFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for
hedge effectiveness; however, these amendments will not affect the Group as the
Group does not utilise hedge accounting in respect of interest rate and currency
derivatives used to hedge risk.

2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts from Customers
New standard that requires entities to recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
This core principle is achieved through a five step methodology that is required to be
applied to all contracts with customers.
The new standard will also result in enhanced disclosures about revenue, provide
guidance for transactions that were not previously addressed comprehensively and
improve guidance for multiple-element arrangements.
The new standard supersedes:
(a) IAS 11 Construction Contracts;
(b) IAS 18 Revenue;
(c) IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes;
(d) IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate;
(e) IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers; and
(f) SIC-31 Revenue – Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments for the first time in the 2019 annual
financial statements and the amendments will be applied retrospectively, subject to
transitional provisions.
The Group’s revenue comprises primarily lease rentals, which is scoped out of IFRS 15.
Management has accordingly assessed that the standard will have minimal impact on
the recognition of income from lease rentals. Furthermore, the Group does not expect
IFRS 15 to have a significant impact on the provision of services that fall under the
scope of IFRS 15.
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2.

New standards and interpretations (continued)
2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective (continued)
IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 Leases is a new standard that introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset
and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. A lessee
measures right-of-use assets similarly to other non-financial assets (such as property,
plant and equipment) and lease liabilities similarly to other financial liabilities. As a
consequence, a lessee recognises depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest
on the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a
principal portion and an interest portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows applying IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows.
IFRS 16 contains expanded disclosure requirements for lessees. Lessees will need to
apply judgement in deciding upon the information to disclose to meet the objective
of providing a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that leases
have on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the lessee.
IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance
leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently.
IFRS 16 also requires enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessors that will improve
information disclosed about a lessor’s risk exposure, particularly to residual value risk.
IFRS 16 supersedes the following standards and interpretations:
(a) IAS 17 Leases.
(b) IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease.
(c) SIC 15 Operating Leases – Incentives.
(d) SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of
a Lease.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments for the first time in the 2020 annual
financial statements and the amendments will be applied retrospectively, subject to
transitional provisions.
The Group is a lessor and since the accounting requirements for a lessor have remained
largely unchanged, the Group does not expect a significant impact on current
accounting practices.
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Group
Notes

3.

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

8 640 334
1 702 084

8 481 704
1 379 745

8 450 532
1 625 675

8 294 025
1 306 766

10 342 418

9 861 449

10 076 207

9 600 791

9 861 449
–
322 339

8 500 183
1 335 264
96 420

9 600 791
–
318 909

8 247 733
1 335 264
94 820

Investment property
Fair value of investment
property
Cost
Fair value adjustments
Movement for the year:
Fair value at the beginning
of the year
Acquisitions
Fair value adjustments
Transfer to non‑current
assets held-for-sale
Transfer from non-current
assets held-for-sale
Disposals
Capital expenditure
Borrowing cost capitalised

24

–

25

Fair value at year-end
Reconciliation of
investment property:
Fair value of investment
property
Straight-line rental income
accrual
Investment property at
year-end

4

(411 151)

–

(411 151)

–
–
142 961
15 669

130 138
–
194 716
15 879

–
–
141 292
15 215

130 138
–
188 108
15 879

10 342 418

9 861 449

10 076 207

9 600 791

10 342 418

9 861 449

10 076 207

9 600 791

192 582

192 472

191 993

192 332

10 053 921 10 268 200

9 793 123

10 535 000
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Investment property (continued)
Investment properties have been encumbered as security for interest-bearing borrowings
(refer to note 19) as follows:
Investment properties with a market value of R2.4 billion (2017: R1.7 billion) are mortgaged
to the Standard Bank of South Africa Limited to secure borrowing facilities amounting to
R0.9 billion (2017: R0.9 billion).
Investment properties with a market value of R6.3 billion (2017: R6.9 billion) are mortgaged
to Nedbank Limited to secure borrowing facilities amounting to R3.1 billion (2017:
R3.2 billion).
Investment properties with a market value of Rnil (2017: R0.8 billion) are mortgaged to
Sanlam Limited and Standard Bank of South Africa Limited to secure borrowing facilities
amounting to Rnil (2017: R0.1 billion).
Investment properties with a market value of R2.0 billion (2017: R1.7 billion) are mortgaged
to Investec Limited to secure borrowing facilities amounting to R0.7 billion (2017:
R0.7 billion).
Investment properties with a market value of R0.7 billion (2017: R0.7 billion) are held as
security by the Bank of China for borrowing facilities in respect of a second continuous
mortgage bond amounting to R0.2 billion (2017: R0.2 billion).
Investment property valuation
A detailed register of investment property owned by the Group is available for inspection
by shareholders at the registered office of the Company. Investment property is leased to
tenants (mainly sovereign) on an operating lease basis for a fixed term period, with annual
escalations linked to CPI.
During the current year all investment property was valued by external valuers. The
independent valuations were performed by LDM Valuation Solutions Proprietary Limited,
Realworx Property Valuations Proprietary Limited, Taboo Trading 242 Proprietary Limited,
Graham Mulligan (sole proprietor), and Lightstone Property Proprietary Limited, all of
whom are registered valuers in terms of section 19 of the Property Valuers Professional Act
(Act No 47 of 2000).
The valuations were performed using the discounted cash flow and income capitalisation
methodology. These methods are based on open market values with consideration given
to the future earnings potential and applying an appropriate discount rate to the property.
The Group’s discount rate range applied for valuations performed on the discounted cash
flow method ranged between 13.1% and 17.3% and for valuations performed on the income
capitalisation methodology, the capitalisation rate applied ranged between 8.3% and 12.0%.
Other significant inputs used in the valuations were vacancy rates based on current and
expected future market conditions; terminal value taking into account rental, maintenance
projections and vacancy expectations; as well as additional bulk where applicable. Factors
taken into account in arriving at the discount rates are geographical position, grading of
building and the tenant grading.
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Investment property (continued)
Investment property valuation (continued)
The fair value adjustments on investment property are included in profit and loss. Refer to
note 24 and the fair value hierarchy note 38.
Capital commitments are set out in note 32.
Changes in discount rates attributable to changes in market conditions can have a
significant impact on property valuations:
●● A 0.25% basis point increase in the average discount rate will decrease the value of
investment property by R293.7 million (2017: R284.4 million).
●● A 0.25% basis point increase in the capitalisation rate will decrease the value of
investment property by R435.9 million (2017: R331.1 million).
Group

4.

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

Balance at the beginning of the year
Straight-line lease adjustment for the year
Disposal of investment property
Non‑current assets held-for-sale

192 472
2 020
(5 654)
3 744

184 517
4 863
7 785
(4 693)

192 332
1 134
(5 654)
4 181

183 665
4 432
7 785
(3 550)

Balance at the end of the year

192 582

192 472

191 993

192 332

Straight‑line rental income accrual

Delta Property Fund integrated annual report 2018 / 115

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
Leasehold
improvement
R’000

5.

Computer
Furniture
equipment and fittings
R’000
R’000

Motor
vehicles
R’000

Total
R’000

6 278

Property, plant and
equipment
Group – 2018
Cost
Accumulated
depreciation

412

1 889

3 873

104

(412)

(1 102)

(1 410)

(52) (2 976)

2 463

Opening carrying value

–

787

Movement for the year:
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation

–
–
–

307
(27)
(597)

Closing carrying value

–

Cost
Accumulated
depreciation
Closing carrying value
Group – 2017
Cost
Accumulated
depreciation

52

3 302

15
–
(584)

176
–
(35)

498
(27)
(1 216)

470

1 894

193

2 557

–

2 143

3 887

280

6 310

–

(1 673)

(1 993)

(87) (3 753)

–

470

1 894

193

2 557

367

1 717

3 830

104

6 018

(291)

(546)

(833)

(17)

(1 687)

87

4 331

–
(35)

260
(1 289)

Opening carrying value

76

1 171

Movement for the year:
Additions
Depreciation

45
(121)

172
(556)

Closing carrying value

(0)

787

2 463

52

3 302

412

1 889

3 873

104

6 278

(412)

(1 102)

(1 410)

(52)

(2 976)

787

2 463

52

3 302

Cost
Accumulated
depreciation
Closing carrying value

–
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2 997
43
(577)

Leasehold
improvement
R’000

5.

Computer
Furniture
equipment and fittings
R’000
R’000

Motor
vehicles
R’000

Total
R’000

6 278

Property, plant and
equipment (continued)
Company – 2018
Cost
Accumulated
depreciation

412

1 889

3 873

104

(412)

(1 102)

(1 410)

(52) (2 976)

2 463

Opening carrying value

–

787

Movement for the year:
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation

–
–
–

307
(27)
(597)

Closing carrying value

–

470

Cost
Accumulated
depreciation

–

Closing carrying value
Company – 2017
Cost
Accumulated
depreciation

52

3 302

(584)

176
–
(35)

498
(27)
(1 216)

1 894

193

2 557

2 143

3 887

280

6 310

–

(1 673)

(1 993)

(87) (3 753)

–

470

1 894

193

2 557

367

1 717

3 830

104

6 018

(291)

(546)

15

(833)

(17)

(1 687)

87

4 331

–
(36)

260
(1 289)

Opening carrying value

76

1 171

Movement for the year:
Additions
Depreciation

45
(121)

172
(556)

Closing carrying value

(0)

787

2 463

52

3 302

412

1 889

3 873

104

6 278

(412)

(1 102)

(1 410)

(52)

(2 976)

787

2 463

52

3 302

Cost
Accumulated
depreciation
Closing carrying value

–

2 997
43
(577)
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Name of company

6.

Place of
incorporation

Shareholding
2018
2017
%
%

Company
2018
2017
R’000
R’000

Investment in
subsidiaries
Choice Decisions 300
Proprietary Limited#
Hendisa Investments
Proprietary Limited#
Atterbury Parkdev
Consortium Proprietary
Limited#
Phamog Properties
Proprietary Limited#
Hestitrix Proprietary
Limited
K2014000273 Proprietary
Limited
277 Vermeulen Street
Properties Proprietary
Limited
#

South Africa

100

100

–

–

South Africa

100

100

–

–

South Africa

100

100

–

–

South Africa

100

100

–

–

South Africa

100

100

–

–

South Africa

100

100

–

–

South Africa

100

100

62 273

62 273

62 273

62 273

 hese subsidiaries distributed their respective investment properties to Delta as in specie distributions
T
in terms of section 23K of the Income Tax Act prior to their anticipated liquidation. Delta is in the
process of deregistering these subsidiaries in terms of section 47 of the Income Tax Act and all four
entities have been placed in voluntary liquidation. We await conclusion on the matter from the
liquidators and the regulators.

Hestitrix is the owner of Block G, K2014000273 is the owner of Capital Towers and
277 Vermeulen Street is the owner of Regents Place, all being government tenanted office
buildings.

7.

Interest in joint operation
The Company and Redefine Properties Limited entered into a co-ownership agreement
(50:50) with joint control in respect of Building 3 located in Silver Stream Business Park in
Bryanston. This co-ownership is classified as a joint operation in terms of IFRS 11 and the
Group recognises its 50% proportionate share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of the entity.
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% ownership held
by the Group
Name of associate

8.

Principal
activity

Place of
incorporation

2018

2017

11.45

21.35

Investment in associate
Grit Real Estate Income Group
Limited (“Grit”)

African
Property
Income Fund Mauritius

Grit is a dual listed African property income fund on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange
Limited (“JSE”) and Stock Exchange of Mauritius (“SEM”). Delta holds its investment in this
entity through the JSE and the fair value at year-end was R381.9 million (23 865 976 shares
at a fair value of R16.00 per share) (2017: R429.6 million at R18 per share). The dilution in
shareholding is due to Delta not following its rights, while still exercising significant
influence in terms of IAS 28 and accordingly continuing to equity account this investment.
Significant influence was assessed at year-end due to the CEO of Delta being the Chairman
of Grit while the CEO of Grit was a Board member of Delta. A non-executive director of
Delta was also an appointee on the Grit Board.
Group
2018
R’000

2017
R’000

Investment property
Other non-current assets
Current assets

4 905 283
2 765 918
628 384

3 587 821
1 174 428
310 210

Total assets

8 299 585

5 072 459

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

3 405 649
804 632

1 530 628
1 011 327

Summarised financial information

Total liabilities

4 210 281

2 541 955

4 089 304

2 530 504

Group’s share of net assets

468 225

540 263

Revenue

285 555

332 401

Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income

347 142
34 705

18 900
164 936

Total comprehensive income for the period

381 847

183 836

Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income:
Share of profit for the period
Share of foreign currency translation reserve

43 970
4 451

1 526
44 150

48 421

45 676

Net assets
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Group
Reconciliation of investment in
associate

8.

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

–

–

510 173

510 173

Investment in associate (continued)
Investment at cost
Carrying value at the beginning of
the year
Share of post‑acquisition profit
Dividend income
Prior year impairment of investment
Current year impairment of
investment

391 013
48 421
(35 666)
–

Carrying value at the end of the year

381 868

(21 900)

383 327
45 676
(37 990)
–
–
391 013

–
–
–
(80 586)

–
–
–
–

(47 719)

(80 586)

381 868

429 587

Grit’s financial year-end is 30 June and accordingly Delta uses the most recent publicly
available financial information for the purposes of equity accounting. This investment
has been impaired at Group and Company by R21.9 million (2017: Rnil) and R47.7 million
(2017: R80.6 million) respectively to its fair market value as quoted on the JSE at
28 February 2018.
Group

9.

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

–
–

–
–

(2 177)
249 221

(2 177)
247 805

–

–

–

–

(1 917)

(1 917)

–
–

–
–

(96)
153 781

(96)
138 550

Loans due from/(to) subsidiaries
Choice Decisions 300 Proprietary
Limited
Hestitrix Proprietary Limited*
Hendisa Investments Proprietary
Limited
Atterbury Parkdev Consortium
Proprietary Limited
Phamog Properties Proprietary
Limited
K2014000273 Proprietary Limited*
277 Vermeulen Street Properties
Proprietary Limited*
Non‑current assets
Non‑current liabilities
* Loans are secured by investment property.
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34

34

–

–

20 233

18 763

–

–

419 078

400 962

–
–

–
–

423 268
(4 190)

–

–

419 078

405 152
(4 190)
400 962

9.

Loans due from/(to) subsidiaries (continued)
Loans to wholly owned subsidiaries bear interest at a fixed rate of 7.5% (2017: 7.5%) and are
repayable within 30 years from November 2012. The Company’s current weighted average
cost of debt is 9.2% (2017: 9.2%).
The directors are of the opinion that the carrying value of these loans approximate their fair
value as they bear interest at market-related rates.
Group

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

16 663

–

16 663

–

Baystone Holdings Limited
The loan is unsecured and bears
interest at the differential between
the weighted average cost of debt
of Delta and the rate earned on
funds invested in the cash backed
guarantee account (refer to note 13).
The loan was settled in full during
the current year.

–

56 634

–

56 634

Somnipoint Proprietary Limited
The loan is unsecured and bears
interest at the ruling prime overdraft
interest rate. The loan is repayable
on demand.

32 739

46 586

32 739

46 586

Grit Property Holdings Limited
The loan is unsecured and bears
interest at the ruling prime overdraft
interest rate. The loan is repayable
on demand.

5 841

5 263

5 841

5 263

55 243

108 483

55 243

108 483

10. Loans due from related parties
Delta Property Asset Management
Proprietary Limited
The loan is unsecured and bears
interest at the weighted average
cost of debt of Delta (refer to
note 19). The loan is repayable
on demand.
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
Group

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

48 465

–

48 465

–

11. Loan receivable
Educor Property Holdings Proprietary
Limited

This vendor loan arose on the sale of a portfolio of assets comprising 1 and 3 Ferreira
Street, Damelin House and Presidia to the Educor Holdings Group. The total transaction
value was for a consideration of R208 million with a vendor loan of R46 million granted.
This vendor loan is repayable in full by September 2018 and includes interest accrued at the
ruling prime overdraft rate.
Group

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

Trade receivables
Provision for doubtful debt

102 216
(11 994)

78 727
(5 519)

92 070
(11 994)

78 376
(5 519)

Amounts due from vendors
Accrued income
Deposits paid
Dividend receivable from associate
Deferred expenditure
Other receivables

90 222
33 282
80 153
22 804
17 080
36 359
58 945

73 208
4 545
117 227
20 956
19 134
11 990
29 031

80 076
33 282
59 736
22 717
17 080
32 523
57 571

72 857
4 286
98 196
20 960
19 134
11 921
29 046

338 845

276 091

302 985

256 400

12. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
Trade and other receivables are generally collected within 30 days of invoice, which
represents normal terms. A provision is made for all debtors where legal action has been
taken. All other debtors older than 30 days which are past due but not impaired, are
considered collectible based on historic payment behaviour and extensive analysis of the
individual circumstances in respect of each tenant.
As at 28 February 2018 trade receivables of R76.2 million (2017: R48.3 million) for the
Group and R74.1 million (2017: R48.3 million) for the Company were past due but not
impaired.
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Group

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

17 917
10 983
47 293

12 486
8 856
26 963

17 535
9 269
47 298

12 476
8 852
26 960

76 193

48 305

74 102

48 288

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

(5 519)
(966)
(5 509)

(4 251)
–
(1 268)

(5 519)
(966)
(5 509)

(4 251)
–
(1 268)

(11 994)

(5 519)

(11 994)

(5 519)

100 177
–
(97 115)

79 983
116 132
(43 277)

96 864
–
(97 725)

78 240
116 132
(43 277)

3 062

152 838

100 177
(97 115)

196 115
(43 277)

3 062

152 838

12. Trade and other receivables
(continued)

Ageing of trade receivables past
due but not impaired
Neither past due nor impaired
30 days
60 days
90 days and over

Group

Provision for doubtful debt
Opening balance
Bad debts written off
Increase in provision

Company

13. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank
Short‑term deposits
Bank overdraft
Current assets
Current liabilities

(861)
96 864
(97 725)
(861)

151 095
194 372
(43 277)
151 095

The Company has overdraft facilities with the Standard Bank of South Africa Limited
and Nedbank Limited totalling R115 million (2017: R115 million), bearing interest at prime
less 1% and prime respectively.
Short-term deposits represented a cash-backed guarantee in favour of Baystone Holdings
Limited which was released upon disposal of the investment in the joint venture.
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
Group
2018
R’000

Company
2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

14. Non-current assets held-for-sale
Investment property

972 600

1 327 500

744 600

1 101 700

972 600

1 327 500

744 600

1 101 700

Non-current assets held-for-sale are pledged as security for interest-bearing borrowings
(refer to note 19) and were fairly valued at financial year-end in terms of IAS 40. These
properties are non-core to the business and were approved by the Board for disposal with
the intention of utilising funds generated from the sale to reduce gearing and capital
investment into the core portfolio.
However, due to the tough trading and economic environment experienced during the
current financial year, we were not successful in disposing of all the properties as banks
tightened their lending policies in light of potential downgrades and uncertain sociopolitical environment. Management remains committed to its disposal plan and expects to
conclude the sale of the remaining properties held-for-sale within 12 months following
financial year-end.
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14. Non-current assets held-for-sale (continued)
The following properties have been classified as non-current assets held-for-sale:
Group
GLA
(m2)

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

Building name

Location

Segment

Block G
Damelin Building
Top Trailers site 1
Protea Coin Cape Town
Protea Coin Pretoria
Beacon Hill

Pretoria
Durban
Johannesburg
Cape Town
Pretoria
King William’s
Town
Mthatha
Pretoria
Nelspruit
Nelspruit
Johannesburg
Johannesburg
Johannesburg
Durban
Johannesburg
Johannesburg
Johannesburg
Johannesburg

Office
Office
Industrial
Industrial
Industrial
Office

7 991
3 933
15 741
5 700
7 640
13 648

228 000
–
50 000
4 100
18 000
220 500

225 800
55 800
50 000
23 000
35 500
194 900

–
–
50 000
4 100
18 000
220 500

–
55 800
50 000
23 000
35 500
194 900

Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office
Industrial
Office
Office
Office
Office
Office

4 934
12 577
898
2 282
2 463
2 368
11 177
7 672
3 696
5 375
11 860
6 188

33 000
–
–
–
–
17 500
114 700
–
34 300
77 600
174 900
–

33 000
115 000
11 300
26 700
17 600
17 500
108 000
45 300
27 700
73 500
212 900
54 000

33 000
–
–
–
–
17 500
114 700
–
34 300
77 600
174 900
–

33 000
115 000
11 300
26 700
17 600
17 500
108 000
45 300
27 700
73 500
212 900
54 000

972 600

1 327 500

744 600

1 101 700

Broadcast House
Presidia
1 Ferreira Street
3 Ferreira Street
14 New Street
12 New Street
In 2 Fruit Building
Samora House
3 Simba Road
5 Simba Road
Enterprise Park
Edcon Building

Reconciliation of non-current assets
held-for-sale:
Fair value at the beginning of the year
Disposals
Capital expenditure
Fair value adjustments
Fair value at year-end
Straight-line rental income accrual
Non-current assets held-for-sale

1 308 519 1 669 420 1 090 264 1 464 722
(320 046) (281 458) (320 046) (281 458)
26 806
8 249
26 398
8 109
(57 813) (87 692)
(59 167) (101 109)
957 466 1 308 519
737 449 1 090 264
15 134
18 981
7 151
11 436
972 600

1 327 500

744 600

1 101 700

During the current year Samora House, Damelin, Presidia, 1 Ferreira Street, 3 Ferreira Street,
14 New Street and Edcon were disposed of.
The properties continue to be measured under IAS 40 and all requirements of IFRS 5 have
been met.
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
Group

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

4 854 032

4 845 248

4 854 032

4 845 248

4 845 248

3 450 593

4 845 248

3 450 593

–

1 255 834

–

1 255 834

15. Share capital
Authorised
3 000 000 000 ordinary shares
of no par value
Issued
711 844 486 ordinary shares of no
par value (2017: 710 632 182 ordinary
shares of no par value)
Movement for the year:
Balance at 1 March 2017
Issue of shares – consideration for
investment property
Deferred consideration settled –
issue of shares
Capital issue expenses
Distribution reinvestment
Balance at 28 February 2018

–
–
8 784
4 854 032

139 425
(604)
–
4 845 248

–
–
8 784
4 854 032

139 425
(604)
–
4 845 248

The unissued shares are under the control of the directors. This authority remains in force
until the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.
Delta shareholders holding 19 195 584 shares elected to receive the distribution reinvestment
alternative for the six months ended 31 August 2017. As a result, 1 212 304 additional Delta
shares were issued on 1 December 2017 at R7.24525.
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16. Foreign currency translation reserve
Translation reserve comprises exchange differences from the conversion of Grit’s functional
currency, US dollar, to South African rand on consolidation and subsequently through
equity accounting of the associate.
The closing exchange rate at 28 February 2018 was R12.36:USD1 (2017: R13.02:USD1).
The average exchange rate for the 12 months ended 28 February 2018 was R12.80:USD1
(2017: R14.12:USD1).
Group
2018
R’000

Company
2017
R’000

354

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

(43 796)

–

–

Balance at 1 March 2017
Share of foreign currency translation
reserve of associate

4 451

44 150

–

–

Balance at 28 February 2018

4 805

354

–

–

17. Deferred consideration
The deferred consideration arose upon the acquisition of the Free State property portfolio,
which was treated as an asset acquisition in terms of IAS 40, whereby the deferred
consideration for the properties acquired will be repaid by the issuance of 30 983 334 new
shares at a fixed price of R9 per share. The first tranche of 15 491 667 shares was issued on
6 June 2016 and the second tranche issuance was extended from 18 November 2016 to
1 November 2017. However, due to the share price being suppressed, further negotiations
have resulted in the final issuance being extended into the 2019 financial year with a strike
date to be confirmed.
Group

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

Balance at 1 March 2017
Deferred consideration settled – issue
of shares
Deferred consideration raised

139 425

259 720

139 425

259 720

Balance at 28 February 2018

139 425

–
–

(139 425)
19 130
139 425

–
–
139 425

(139 425)
19 130
139 425
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
Group

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

–

35

–

35

18. Derivative financial instruments
Standard Bank of South Africa
Limited
Non‑current assets
Interest rate swap
Non‑current liabilities
Interest rate swap
Cross-currency swap
Current liabilities
Interest rate swap
Cross-currency swap
Foreign exchange contract
Nedbank Limited
Current assets
Interest rate swap
Non‑current liabilities
Interest rate swap
Current liabilities
Interest rate swap
Reconciliation to the statement
of financial position
Non‑current assets
Current assets
Non‑current liabilities
Current liabilities

(3 576)
(1 186)

(13 137)
–

(3 576)
(1 186)

(13 137)
–

(7 640)
–
–

–
(14 964)
(8 804)

(7 640)
–
–

–
(14 964)
(8 804)

–
(26 713)
(3 786)

1 721
(16 486)
–

–
(26 713)
(3 786)

1 721
(16 486)
–

(42 901)

(51 635)

(42 901)

(51 635)

–
–
(31 475)
(11 426)

35
1 721
(29 623)
(23 768)

–
–
(31 475)
(11 426)

35
1 721
(29 623)
(23 768)

(42 901)

(51 635)

(42 901)

(51 635)

Interest rates in respect of 85.4% (2017: 85.1%) of total borrowings excluding revolving
facilities were hedged at year-end. This comprised of a combination of interest rate
and cross-currency swaps together with fixed interest rate facilities. Refer to note 38 for
fair value hierarchy.
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19. Interest‑bearing borrowings
Group
Bank
Sanlam
Sanlam
Commercial
paper
Sanlam
Nedbank
Nedbank
Standard Bank
Nedbank
Nedbank
Standard Bank
Standard Bank
Nedbank
Standard Bank
Nedbank
Nedbank
Sanlam
Standard Bank
Standard Bank*
Nedbank
Nedbank
Sanlam
Nedbank
Nedbank
Nedbank
Standard Bank
Nedbank
Nedbank
Nedbank
Nedbank
Sanlam
Nedbank
Standard Bank
Standard Bank
Nedbank
Nedbank

Facility
R’000 Nominal interest rate Maturity
– 3-month JIBAR + 1.90%
– 3-month JIBAR + 1.90%
125 000 3-month JIBAR + 2.07%
–
40 114
350 000
128 100
270 000
200 000
86 200
11 550
380 000
40 000
80 000
100 000
–
64 913
140 000
100 000
248 889
–
52 000
122 205
134 400
40 522
55 600
180 000
31 625
159 257
–
125 000
128 675
20 070
150 000
200 000

3-month JIBAR + 2.00%
3-month JIBAR + 2.06%
3-month JIBAR + 2.30%
3-month JIBAR + 2.09%
3-month JIBAR + 2.02%
3-month JIBAR + 1.97%
3-month JIBAR + 1.65%
3-month JIBAR + 1.65%
3-month JIBAR + 1.97%
3-month JIBAR + 1.75%
3-month JIBAR + 1.96%
3-month JIBAR + 1.96%
3-month JIBAR + 2.00%
3-month JIBAR + 2.00%
Prime
3-month JIBAR + 1.75%
3-month JIBAR + 2.09%
3-month JIBAR + 2.10%
3-month JIBAR + 2.24%
3-month JIBAR + 2.53%
3-month JIBAR + 1.75%
3-month JIBAR + 1.75%
3-month JIBAR + 1.75%
3-month JIBAR + 1.85%
3-month JIBAR + 1.75%
3-month JIBAR + 1.79%
3-month JIBAR + 2.10%
Prime + 5%
3-month JIBAR + 1.92%
3-month JIBAR + 1.90%
3-month JIBAR + 1.85%
3-month JIBAR + 1.85%

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

Mar 17
Sep 17
Oct 17

–
–
–

13 356
9 763
125 026

–
–
–

13 356
9 763
125 026

Dec 17
Dec 17
Dec 17
May 18
May 18
May 18
May 18
May 18
Jun 18
Jul 18
Aug 18
Aug 18
Sep 18
Sep 18
Oct 18
Nov 18
Nov 18
Dec 18
Dec 18
Dec 18
Feb 19
Feb 19
Feb 19
May 19
May 19
Aug 19
Sep 19
Sep 19
Nov 19
Nov 19
Dec 19
Dec 19

–
–
–
131 043
271 572
201 097
86 792
11 630
382 075
40 282
81 546
102 409
–
65 859
129 897
100 920
245 727
–
52 302
125 062
137 573
41 419
56 731
184 207
32 102
160 980
–
4 481
131 474
–
150 809
201 083

13 359
40 670
334 497
128 133
271 572
201 124
87 498
11 553
382 126
40 290
81 587
102 409
20 547
65 862
122 230
101 285
191 367
13 463
52 297
–
137 573
40 532
56 766
184 207
32 126
160 148
20 551
–
128 708
55 084
150 828
201 110

–
–
–
131 043
271 572
201 097
86 792
11 630
382 075
40 282
81 546
102 409
–
65 859
129 897
100 920
245 727
–
52 302
125 062
137 573
41 419
56 731
184 207
32 102
160 980
–
4 481
131 474
–
150 809
201 083

13 359
40 670
334 497
128 133
271 572
201 124
87 498
11 553
382 126
40 290
81 587
102 409
20 547
65 862
122 230
101 285
191 367
13 463
52 297
–
137 573
40 532
56 766
184 207
32 126
160 148
20 551
–
128 708
55 084
150 828
201 110
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19. Interest‑bearing borrowings (continued)
Group
Bank
Nedbank*
Nedbank
Investec
Standard Bank
Bank of China
Standard Bank
Nedbank
Investec
Standard Bank
Nedbank
Standard Bank
Investec
Standard Bank
Standard Bank
Debt structure
fees#

Facility
R’000 Nominal interest rate Maturity
150 000
122 205
422 620
24 570
142 620
28 100
123 791
54 109
45 900
350 000
51 600
229 040
46 130
51 700

3-month JIBAR + 1.85%
3-month JIBAR + 2.82%
Prime - 0.25%
3-month JIBAR + 1.90%
Libor + 3.50%
3-month JIBAR + 1.90%
3-month JIBAR + 2.91%
Prime - 0.5%
3-month JIBAR + 2.00%
3-month JIBAR + 2.30%
3-month JIBAR + 2.10%
Prime - 1%
3-month JIBAR + 2.10%
3-month JIBAR + 2.00%

Dec 19
Dec 19
Feb 20
Apr 20
Oct 20
Nov 20
Dec 20
Jan 21
Apr 21
Aug 21
Sep 21
Nov 21
Apr 22
Sep 22

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

150 812
125 035
384 501
24 739
141 180
28 302
125 120
65 623
46 237
351 292
52 411
229 005
46 855
52 505

150 833
–
432 547
15 202
158 732
32 808
–
35 417
33 313
352 028
31 896
229 896
33 451
31 993

150 812
125 035
384 501
24 739
141 180
28 302
125 120
65 623
46 237
351 292
52 411
229 005
46 855
52 505

150 833
–
432 547
15 202
158 732
32 808
–
35 417
33 313
352 028
31 896
229 896
33 451
31 993

–

(16 533)

–

(16 533)

4 952 690 5 099 227

4 952 690 5 099 227

* Represents a revolving credit facility, within which excess funds are invested.
#
Current year debt structure fees have been included within the facility balances.

At 28 February 2018 the Group’s unutilised loan facilities amounted to R79 million (2017:
R87.8 million), the loan to value ratio was 41.3% (2017: 41.5%) and the average inclusive rate
of interest was 9.2% (2017: 9.2%). This excludes the availability of the overdraft facility
amounting to R113.4 million (2017: R115 million).
The interest-bearing borrowings are secured over investment properties and non-current
assets held-for-sale with a carrying value of R11.5 billion (2017: R11.4 billion). Refer to notes
3 and 14.
Group

Non‑current liabilities
At amortised cost
Current liabilities
At amortised cost

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2 688 755

4 112 646

2 688 755

4 112 646

2 263 935

986 581

2 263 935

986 581

4 952 690

5 099 227

4 952 690

5 099 227
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Group

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

43 284
54 003
48 721
1 180
24 496
12 299

15 931
36 275
40 950
1 211
16 083
11 373

42 161
52 216
45 958
999
24 496
11 623

14 280
34 470
38 330
1 026
15 947
10 901

183 983

121 823

177 453

114 954

1 301 756
260 277

1 307 980
304 501

1 258 237
247 234

1 265 232
292 112

1 562 033

1 612 481

1 505 471

1 557 344

–

–

50 812

80 798

272 426
60 206
36 344
26 623

311 210
53 744
35 863
27 936

267 731
58 704
36 344
25 592

305 831
52 674
35 863
26 931

1 216
21 948
5 509

1 289
19 430
1 268

1 216
21 948
5 509

1 289
19 430
1 268

833
130
116
285

1 101
35
16
279

661
130
116
285

933
35
16
279

20. Trade and other payables
Trade payables
Income received in advance
Accrued expenses
Accrual for audit fees
Tenant deposits
Value added taxation

21. Rental income
Contractual rental income
Recoveries
Revenue comprises gross rental
income and recoveries.

22. Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after
crediting:
Dividend income from associate
and subsidiaries
Operating profit is stated after
charging:
Municipal expenses
Service contracts
Asset management fees
Property management fees
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
Directors’ emoluments
Provision for doubtful debt
Audit fees – current year
Audit fees – other services
Tax and secretarial services
Internal audit fees
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23. Directors’ emoluments
Fees paid to executive directors
Other Retirement
benefits*
benefits
R’000
R’000

Group
2018

Salary
R’000

SH Nomvete
S Maharaj
ON Tshabalala

4 321
2 306
2 514

239
176
105

9 141

520

STIs#
R’000

LTIs
R’000

Total
R’000

280
151
160

4 526
2 173
1 733

–
–
–

9 366
4 806
4 512

591

8 432

–

18 684

* Other benefits comprise car-related allowances, UIF/SDL and cellphone.
#
Short-term incentive (“STI”) payments awarded for year ended 2017 and paid in financial year 2018.

Group
2017
SH Nomvete
BA Corbett (resigned
31 August 2016)
S Maharaj
ON Tshabalala
(appointed 1 June
2016)

Salary
R’000

Other Retirement
benefits*
benefits
R’000
R’000

STIs#
R’000

LTIs
R’000

Total
R’000

4 034

227

262

3 132

–

7 655

1 046
2 049

86
123

–
132

2 953
401

–
–

4 085
2 705

1 715

18

110

–

–

1 843

8 844

454

504

6 486

–

16 288

* Other benefits comprise car-related allowances, UIF/SDL and cellphone.
#
STI payments awarded for year ended 2016 and paid in financial year 2017.
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23. Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Fees paid to non‑executive directors
Group

JB Magwaza
JJG da Costa (resigned
31 August 2016)
N Khan
BA Corbett (resigned 12 April 2018)
DN Motau
ID Macleod
M de Lange (resigned
23 February 2017)
A König – Redefine (resigned
29 June 2017)
NN Afolayan
MJN Njeke (appointed 1 April 2017)
MCR Rampheri (appointed
1 June 2017)

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

604

562

604

562

–
425
294
383
426

202
433
118
356
396

–
425
294
383
426

202
433
118
356
396

–

484

–

484

84
426
337

235
356
–

84
426
337

235
356
–

285

–

285

–

3 264

3 142

3 264

3 142

The executive directors are the only employees of Delta Property Fund Limited.
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
Group

Company

Notes

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

3

322 339

96 420

318 909

94 820

(57 813)

(87 692)

(59 167)

(101 109)

(117 915)

(52 545)

(117 915)

(52 545)

146 611

(43 817)

141 827

(58 834)

24. Fair value adjustments
Investment properties
Investment properties
held-for-sale
Investment properties
disposed

13

Fair value adjustments
Investment in joint venture
disposed
Derivative financial
instruments

(41 562)
(290)

–
8 930

(41 562)
(290)

–
8 930

104 759

(34 887)

99 975

(49 904)

476 010

467 457

476 010

467 455

10 052

–

10 052

–

11 681
97

14 726
272

11 681
97

14 726
272

8
–
(15 669)

–
4 004
(15 879)

–
–
(15 215)

–
4 004
(15 879)

25. Finance costs
Interest-bearing borrowings
Amortisation of debt
structuring fees#
Interest on deferred
consideration
Bank
South African Revenue
Service
Occupational interest
Borrowing cost capitalised

3

482 179

470 580

482 624

470 578

Dividend income
Dividend income from listed
investment and subsidiaries

–

–

50 812

80 798

Interest income
Bank and cash guarantee
Loans to subsidiaries
Interest on loan receivable
Interest income on deposits

7 765
–
2 464
9 467

20 387
–
–
6 781

7 762
30 804
2 464
9 467

20 387
27 763
–
6 780

19 696

27 168

50 497

54 930

26. Investment income

#

 3.9 million of fees in the prior year were included in interest-bearing borrowings, which were separated
R
in the current year for better disclosure.
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Group

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

27. Taxation

Major components of the tax
expense:
Current
Local income tax – current period
Local income tax – recognised in
current tax for prior periods

Deferred
Originating and reversing temporary
differences
Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between accounting
profit and tax expense:
Accounting profit
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 28%
(2017: 28%)
Tax effect of adjustments on
taxable income:
Fair value adjustment to investment
properties
Fair value adjustment to investment
in joint venture
Fair value adjustment to derivative
financial instruments
Fair value adjustment to listed
property securities
Non‑taxable income
Non‑deductible expenditure
Straight‑line rental income
adjustment
Deferred tax asset/(liability)
not recognised (S25BB)
REIT qualifying distribution

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

798 070

634 950

755 799

600 447

223 460

177 786

211 624

168 125

12 269

(39 712)

16 473

(41 088)
11 637

–

11 637

–

(2 446)

(2 501)

(2 446)

(2 501)

7 907
(10 133)
812

–
(4 525)
1 557

13 361
(14 247)
786

22 564
(10 637)
1 358

1 154

(1 362)

1 295

8 767
(200 071)

(11 727)
(171 497)

9 888
(192 186)

(1 241)
(11 278)
(182 864)

The estimated tax loss available for set off against future taxable income is R16.2 million
(2017: R16.2 million) (Company: Rnil; 2017: Rnil). There is no regulatory expiry date for
unused tax losses.
The deferred tax asset on tax losses has not been recognised due to the fact that the
Company distributes a qualifying distribution, which is estimated to offset any future
taxable income.
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
Group

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

798 070

634 950

755 799

600 447

22

1 216

1 289

1 216

1 289

5

27

–

27

–

Notes

28. Cash generated from
operations
Profit before taxation
Adjustments:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Unrealised gain on foreign
exchange differences
Dividend income from
associate and subsidiaries
Interest income
Finance costs
Share of profit in associate
Fair value adjustment to
investment properties
Fair value adjustment to
investment in joint venture
Fair value adjustment to
derivative financial
instruments
Impairment of investment
in associate
Accrual for cash-settled
share-based payment
Straight‑line rental income
accrual
Operating profit before
working capital changes
Changes in working capital:
Increase in trade and other
receivables
Increase in trade and other
payables
Cash generated from
operations

(16 881)

(20 103)

(16 881)

(20 336)

8

–
(19 696)
482 179
(43 970)

–
(27 168)
470 580
(1 526)

(50 812)
(50 497)
482 624
–

(80 798)
(54 930)
470 578
–

24

(146 611)

(8 728)

(141 827)

24

41 562

24

290

8

21 900
–

4

(2 020)
1 116 066
16 258

–

(8 930)
–
(559)
(4 863)

41 562

290
47 719
–
(1 134)

1 034 942 1 068 086
(18 460)
32 777

6 289
–

(8 930)
80 586
(559)
(4 432)
989 204
(21 793)

(38 135)

(38 050)

(21 966)

(38 037)

54 393

19 590

54 743

16 244

1 132 324

1 016 482

1 100 863

967 411

136 / Delta Property Fund integrated annual report 2018

Group
2018
R’000

2017
R’000

29. Earnings, headline earnings and
distributable earnings
Profit for the year
Fair value adjustment to investment properties
Change in fair value of Delta’s investment properties
Change in fair value of associate’s investment properties

798 070
(148 562)
(146 611)
(1 951)

634 950
103 922
43 817
60 105

Headline earnings
Fair value adjustment to financial instruments
(net of deferred taxation)
Change in fair value of financial instrument
Deferred taxation
Fair value adjustment to investment in joint venture
(net of deferred taxation)
Fair value adjustment on disposal of Baystone
Deferred taxation
Straight-line rental income accrual
(net of deferred taxation)
Straight-line rental income accrual
Deferred taxation
Antecedent distribution
Unrealised foreign exchange gain
Dividend income from associate
Share of profit in associate
Change in fair value of associate’s investment properties
Impairment of investment in associate
Prior year retained earnings distributed

649 508

738 872

Distributable earnings attributable to owners
of the parent
Less: Distribution declared
Interim
Final (declared after 28 February 2018)
Distributable earnings retained

290
290
–
41 562
41 562
–

(8 930)
(8 930)
–
–
–
–

(2 020)
(2 020)
–
257
(16 881)
35 666
(43 970)
1 951
21 900
3 378

(4 863)
(4 863)
–
–
(20 336)
37 990
(1 526)
(60 105)
–
–

691 641
691 641
329 724
361 917

681 102
677 724
313 119
364 605

–

3 378
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
Group
2018
R’000

2017
R’000

Weighted average number of shares in issue
Shares in issue at the beginning of the year
Shares issued during the year
Distribution reinvestment
Deferred consideration shares allocated

710 632 182
–
295 603
–

533 097 436
160 941 759
–
15 491 667

Weighted average number of shares in issue

710 927 785

709 530 862

Actual number of shares in issue
Number of shares in issue at interim
Number of shares in issue at year-end

710 632 182
711 844 486

681 722 806
710 632 182

Basic and diluted earnings and headline earnings
per share (cents)
Basic and diluted earnings per share
Basic and diluted headline earnings per share

112.26
91.36

89.49
104.14

Distribution per share (cents)
Interim
Final (declared after 28 February 2018)

46.40
50.84

45.93
51.31

Distribution per share declared for the full year

97.24

97.24

29. Earnings, headline earnings and
distributable earnings (continued)

The Fund has no dilutionary instruments in issue.
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Group

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

1 153

1 153

–

–

(526)

(1 153)

30. Taxation refund

Taxation receivable at the beginning
of the year
Taxation receivable at the end
of the year

627

31. Distributions paid

Final distribution – prior year
Interim distribution – current year

–

–

–

–

–

(364 605)
(329 724)

(255 354)
(313 119)

(364 605)
(329 724)

(255 354)
(313 119)

(694 329)

(568 473)

(694 329)

(568 473)

Distributions are paid from
revenue profits.

32. Commitments and guarantee
Capital commitments
Approved and committed
Approved but not yet committed

Operating leases – as lessor
Minimum lease payments receivable
Within one year
In second to fifth year inclusive
Later than five years

78 178
–

52 849
4 500

78 178
–

52 849
4 500

78 178

57 349

78 178

57 349

853 509
1 182 183
123 557

792 238
1 484 383
138 489

808 093
1 119 141
123 557

764 988
1 412 293
138 489

2 159 249

2 415 110

2 050 791

2 315 770

Minimum lease payments comprise rental income due in terms of signed lease agreements
on investment property. These figures exclude the straight-line rental income accrual
adjustments.
The Group’s investment property is held to generate rental income. Rental of investment
property is expected to generate forward rental yields of 9.9% (2017: 10.3%) on an ongoing
basis. Forward yield was calculated on the basis of the fair value of the building and the
year 1 forward net income. Lease agreements are non‑cancellable and range from two to
10 years. There are no contingent rentals.
Guarantee
A guarantee has been provided to Investec Bank Limited (“Investec”) in respect of the debt
obligations of Freedom Property Fund SARL and Delta Africa (also known as Grit) Property
Holdings Limited (as “borrower”) for the lower of EUR30 million or 58% of the outstanding
debt of Grit. The discharge date is on settlement in full of all outstanding debt by Grit.
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
33. Related parties
Parties are considered related if one party has the ability to exercise control or significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. All transactions
with related parties are at arm’s length.
Relationships
Subsidiaries

Atterbury Parkdev Consortium Proprietary Limited
Choice Decisions 300 Proprietary Limited
Hendisa Investments Proprietary Limited
Hestitrix Proprietary Limited
K2014000273 Proprietary Limited
Phamog Properties Proprietary Limited
277 Vermeulen Street Properties Proprietary Limited

Associate

Grit Property Holdings Limited

Joint venture

Baystone Holdings Limited

Members of key management

SH Nomvete – Chief Executive Officer
S Maharaj – Chief Financial Officer
ON Tshabalala – Chief Operating Officer

Common directors

Delta Property Asset Management Proprietary Limited
Grit Property Holdings Limited
Mesidox Proprietary Limited
MPI Property Asset Management Proprietary Limited
Retail Property Solutions Proprietary Limited
Shameless Way Trading Proprietary Limited
Somnipoint Proprietary Limited
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33. Related parties (continued)
Group
Related party
Atterbury Parkdev Consortium
Loan payable
Choice Decisions 300
Loan payable
Hendisa Investments
Loan receivable
Hestitrix
Loan receivable
Interest income
Dividend income
K2014000273
Loan receivable
Interest income
Dividend income
Phamog Properties
Loan payable
277 Vermeulen Street Properties
Loan receivable
Interest income
Dividend income
Grit Property Holdings
Loan receivable
Interest income
Dividend income
Baystone Holdings
Loan receivable
Trade and other receivables
Interest income
Delta Property Asset Management
Loan receivable
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Interest income
Asset management fees paid
Property management fees paid
Recoveries and reimbursement
income
Shameless Way Trading
Travel expenses
Somnipoint
Loan receivable
Interest income

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

–

–

(1 917)

(1 917)

–

–

(2 177)

(2 177)

–

–

–
–
–

–
–
–

249 221
(18 764)
(4 573)

247 805
(17 367)
(18 843)

–
–
–

–
–
–

153 781
(10 727)
(3 216)

138 550
(9 384)
(16 739)

–

–

(96)

(96)

–
–
–

–
–
–

20 233
(1 313)
(7 357)

18 763
(1 012)
(7 226)

34

2017
R’000

34

(5 000)
(579)
–

(5 000)
(263)
–

(5 000)
(579)
(35 666)

(5 000)
(263)
(37 990)

–
–
(4 042)

56 634
4 803
(10 193)

–
–
(4 042)

56 634
4 803
(10 193)

16 663
2 218
(19 565)
(453)
36 344
15 599

–
3 642
(3 669)

–
3 642
(3 669)

35 863
14 032

16 663
2 218
(19 565)
(453)
36 344
15 599

35 863
14 032

(7 435)

(8 366)

(7 435)

(8 366)

388
32 739
(4 153)

137
46 586
(3 264)

388
32 739
(4 153)

137
46 586
(3 264)
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
34. Risk management

Financial risk management
The Group’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, interest-bearing
liabilities, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables. Exposure to market,
credit and liquidity risk arises in the normal course of business.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial commitments
as and when they fall due. This risk is managed by holding cash balances, overdraft facilities
and a revolving loan facility and by regularly monitoring cash flows.
The Company will utilise undrawn facilities and cash on hand to meet its short‑term funding
requirements.
The non‑current financial liabilities will be serviced through cash generated from operations
and the restructuring of debt instruments upon maturity.
The tables below set out the maturity analysis of the Group and Company’s financial assets
and liabilities based on the undiscounted contractual cash flows.
Group
Interest
rate Less than
%† one year

2018 (R’000)
Financial assets
Trade and other
receivables
(excluding VAT)
Cash and cash
equivalents
Loans due from
related parties
Loan receivable
Derivative financial
instruments
Financial liabilities
Interest-bearing
borrowings*
Trade and other
payables#
Bank overdraft
Derivative financial
instruments

One to
five years

More than
five years

Total

–

338 845

–

–

338 845

0 – 6.0

100 177

–

–

100 177

9.2 – prime
Prime

55 243
48 465

–
–

–
–

55 243
48 465

–

–

–

–

–

542 730

–

–

542 730

9.2 2 475 854

2 941 726

–

5 417 580

–
–

–
–

117 681
97 115

–
–

117 681
97 115

–

–

30 289

–

30 289

2 690 650

2 981 303

–

5 671 953

* Represents undiscounted future settlement of capital and interest.
#
Excludes income received in advance and VAT.
† Weighted average effective interest rate.
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34. Risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Group
Interest
rate
%†
2017 (R’000)
Financial assets
Trade and other
receivables
(excluding VAT)
Cash and cash
equivalents
Loans due from
related parties
Derivative financial
instruments
Financial liabilities
Interest-bearing
borrowings*
Trade and other
payables#
Bank overdraft
Derivative financial
instruments

Less than
one year

One to
five years

More than
five years

Total

–

276 091

–

–

276 091

0 – 6.3

196 115

–

–

196 115

108 483

–

–

108 483

9.2

1 721

35

–

1 756

582 410

35

–

582 445

1 516 512

4 153 397

–

5 669 909

–

43 277

–

–

43 277

–

23 768

29 623

–

53 391

–

74 175

–

–

74 175

1 657 732

4 183 020

–

5 840 752

* Represents undiscounted future settlement of capital and interest.
#
Excludes income received in advance and VAT.
† Weighted average effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
34. Risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Company

2018 (R’000)
Financial assets
Trade and other
receivables
(excluding VAT)
Cash and cash
equivalents
Loans due from
related parties
Loan receivable
Loans to subsidiaries
Derivative financial
instruments
Financial liabilities
Loans from subsidiaries
Interest-bearing
borrowings*
Trade and other
payables#
Bank overdraft
Derivative financial
instruments

Interest
rate
%†

Less than
one year

One to
five years

More than
five years

Total

–

302 985

–

–

302 985

0 – 6.0

96 864

–

–

96 864

9.2 – prime
Prime
7.5

55 243
48 465
–

–
–
423 268

–
–
–

55 243
48 465
423 268

–

–

–

–

–

503 557

423 268

–

926 825

7.5

–

4 190

–

4 190

9.2

306 034

210 340

–

516 374

–

113 614

–

–

113 614

97 725

–

–

97 725

–

30 289

–

30 289

2 687 193

2 985 493

–

5 672 686

–

* Represents undiscounted future settlement of capital and interest.
#
Excludes income received in advance and VAT.
† Weighted average effective interest rate.
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34. Risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Company
Interest
rate
%†
2017 (R’000)
Financial assets
Trade and other
receivables
(excluding VAT)
Cash and cash
equivalents
Loans due from
related parties
Loan to subsidiaries
Derivative financial
instruments
Financial liabilities
Loans from subsidiaries
Interest-bearing
borrowings*
Trade and other
payables#
Bank overdraft
Derivative financial
instruments

Less than
one year

One to
five years

More than
five years

Total

–

256 400

–

–

256 400

6.3

194 372

–

–

194 372

7.5

108 483
–

–
405 152

–
–

108 483
405 152

1 721

35

560 976

405 187

–

966 163

7.5

–

4 190

–

4 190

9.2

1 516 512

4 153 397

–

5 669 909

–

69 583

–

–

69 583

43 277

–

–

43 277

23 768

29 623

–

53 391

1 653 140

4 187 210

–

5 840 350

–

1 756

* Represents undiscounted future settlement of capital and interest.
#
Excludes income received in advance and VAT.
† Weighted average effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
34. Risk management (continued)
Interest rate risk
The Group manages its exposure to changes in interest rates by entering into fixed interest
rate swap and facility agreements in respect of borrowings. The Group is exposed to
interest rate risk through its variable rate cash balances and interest-bearing borrowings.
At year‑end, interest rates in respect of 85.4% (2017: 85.1%) of total borrowings excluding
revolving facilities were hedged.
The effective rate of interest for the year was 9.2% (2017: 9.2%) based on interest rates on
the current borrowings.
An increase of 1% in the interest rate on floating rate borrowings, including the effect of
interest rate swap instruments will result in an increase to finance charges of R4.8 million
(2017: R4.7 million) post‑tax per annum. This was based on calculating the effective interest
rate of the Group and Company and adding a 1% escalation to this effective interest rate.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from
trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans to subsidiaries and other
financial assets. There is no significant concentration of credit risk as exposure is spread
over a large number of counterparties.
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
Group
Financial instrument
Cash and cash equivalents/
(bank overdraft)
Trade and other receivables
Loans due from subsidiaries
Loans due from related parties
Loan receivable
Derivative financial instruments

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

3 062
338 845
–
55 243
48 465
–

152 838
276 091
–
108 483
–
1 756
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2018
R’000
(861)
302 985
423 268
55 243
48 465
–

2017
R’000
151 095
256 400
405 152
108 483
–
1 756

34. Risk management (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents
It is the Group’s policy to deposit short‑term cash investments with reputable financial
institutions.
Trade and other receivables
Credit risk arises from the risk that a tenant may default or not meet its obligations
timeously. The financial position of the tenants is monitored on an ongoing basis. Allowance
is made for specific doubtful debts and credit risk is therefore limited to the carrying
amount of the financial assets at financial year‑end.
Management has established a credit policy under which each new tenant is analysed
individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment terms and conditions
are offered, which include in certain cases the provision of a deposit.
Loans to subsidiaries
The credit risk on loans to subsidiaries is negligible due to the fact that the three operational
subsidiaries, being Hestritrix Proprietary Limited, K2014000273 Proprietary Limited and
277 Vermeulen Street Properties Proprietary Limited have properties which are currently
generating rental income. Loan balances between Delta and its dormant subsidiaries,
being Choice Decisions 300 Proprietary Limited, Hendisa Investments Proprietary Limited,
APC Parkdev Consortium Proprietary Limited and Phamog Properties Proprietary Limited
are insignificant.
Financial assets
Financial assets comprise loans to related parties and loan receivables, and the credit risk
on these loans is monitored by management on an ongoing basis. No other financial assets
were impaired during the year (2017: nil).
Foreign exchange risk
The Group has an investment in a foreign listed company, whose net assets are exposed to
foreign currency translation risk. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of this
investment is managed primarily through borrowings and cross-currency swaps
denominated in US dollar.
At 28 February 2018, if the currency had weakened or strengthened by 1% against the US
dollar with all other variables held constant, post‑tax profit for the year would have been
R0.1 million (2017: R0.5 million) higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains
or losses on translation of US dollar denominated borrowings.
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
34. Risk management (continued)
Bank of China loan which relates to future commitments
Group
Non-current liabilities
USD12.0 million (2017: USD12.0 million)
at a spot rate of R11.75:USD1
(2017: R13.02:USD1)

Company

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

140 989

156 262

140 989

156 262

Cross-currency swap which relates to future commitments
Amount (USD)
USD12 000 000

Swap rate

Maturity date

Rand

USD1 = R11.5600

9 April 2019

138 720 000

The Group reviews its foreign currency exposure, including commitments, on an ongoing
basis. The Company expects its foreign exchange contracts to hedge foreign exchange
exposure.
Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of an investment in a listed
property security held by the Group and classified on the Group statement of financial
position as an investment in associate. Equity investments are held for strategic purposes
and the Group does not actively trade these instruments.
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35. Financial assets by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:
Group

2018 (R’000)
Loans due from related parties
Loan receivable
Trade and other receivables
(excluding VAT)
Cash and cash equivalents
2017 (R’000)
Loans due from related parties
Trade and other receivables
(excluding VAT)
Cash and cash equivalents
Derivative financial instruments

Loans and
receivables

Fair value
through
profit
or loss

Total

55 243
48 465

–
–

55 243
48 465

338 845
100 177

–
–

338 845
100 177

542 730

–

542 730

108 483

–

108 483

276 091
196 115
–

–
–
1 756

276 091
196 115
1 756

580 689

1 756

582 445
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
35. Financial assets by category (continued)
Company

2018 (R’000)
Loans due from subsidiaries
Loans due from related parties
Loan receivable
Trade and other receivables
(excluding VAT)
Cash and cash equivalents
2017 (R’000)
Loans due from subsidiaries
Loans due from related parties
Trade and other receivables
(excluding VAT)
Cash and cash equivalents
Derivative financial instruments
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Loans and
receivables

Fair value
through
profit
or loss

Total

423 268
55 243
48 465

–
–
–

423 268
55 243
48 465

302 985
96 864

–
–

302 985
96 864

926 825

–

926 825

405 152
108 483

–
–

405 152
108 483

256 400
194 372
–

–
–
1 756

256 400
194 372
1 756

964 407

1 756

966 163

36. Financial liabilities by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:
Group

2018 (R’000)
Interest-bearing borrowings
Trade and other payables#
Bank overdraft
Derivative financial instruments
2017 (R’000)
Interest-bearing borrowings
Trade and other payables#
Bank overdraft
Derivative financial instruments

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

Fair value
through
profit
or loss

Total

4 952 690
117 681
97 115
–

–
–
–
42 902

4 952 690
117 681
97 115
42 902

5 167 486

42 902

5 210 388

5 099 227
74 175
43 277
–

–
–
–
53 391

5 099 227
74 175
43 277
53 391

5 216 679

53 391

5 270 070

Company

2018 (R’000)
Interest-bearing borrowings
Trade and other payables#
Loans due to subsidiaries
Bank overdraft
Derivative financial instruments
2017 (R’000)
Interest-bearing borrowings
Trade and other payables#
Loans due to subsidiaries
Bank overdraft
Derivative financial instruments

#

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

Fair value
through
profit
or loss

Total

4 952 690
113 614
4 190
97 725
–

–
–
–
–
42 902

4 952 690
113 614
4 190
97 725
42 902

5 168 219

42 902

5 211 121

5 099 227
69 583
4 190
43 277
–

–
–
–
–
53 391

5 099 227
69 583
4 190
43 277
53 391

5 216 277

53 391

5 269 668

Excludes income received in advance and VAT.
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
Group

Company

Notes

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

2018
R’000

2017
R’000

3

10 535 000

10 053 921

10 268 200

9 793 123

14

972 600

1 327 500

744 600

1 101 700

8

381 868

429 588

381 868

429 587

6

–

–

62 273

62 273

9, 10
11

55 243
48 465

108 483
–

478 510
48 465

513 635
–

11 993 176

11 919 492

11 983 917

11 900 318

37. Capital
management
Investment property
Non‑current assets
held-for-sale
Investment in
associate at quoted
market value
Investment in
subsidiaries
Loans due from
related parties and
subsidiaries
Loan receivable
50% thereof
Total borrowings
(net of bank balances)

5 996 588

5 959 746

5 991 958

5 950 159

4 954 249

4 946 389

4 958 172

4 948 132

Unutilised borrowing
capacity
Loan to value (“LTV”) (%)

1 042 339
41.3

1 013 357
41.5

1 033 786
41.4

1 002 027
41.6

Management is committed to a maximum gearing level for the Group of 50% (2017: 50%)
of Delta’s consolidated property portfolio including listed property securities and loans
receivable. Delta’s maximum gearing ratio is in line with banking covenants (maximum
gearing of 50%) as well as the JSE Listings Requirements of a REIT which currently permit
a maximum gearing level of 60%.
Total borrowings include both interest-bearing borrowings as well as other financial
liabilities, and is reduced by bank balances, which is in line with a REIT’s best practice. Refer
to notes 13 and 19.
Capital comprises shareholders’ equity, including capital and reserves. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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38. Fair value hierarchy
The different levels have been defined as:
Level 1 – fair value is determined from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 – fair value is determined through the use of valuation techniques based on
observable inputs, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 – fair value is determined through the use of valuation techniques using significant
inputs.
Level 1
2018 (R’000)
Investment property*
Interest rate swap
Cross-currency swap
2017 (R’000)
Investment property*
Interest rate swap
Cross-currency swap

Level 2

Level 3

Fair value

–
–
–

–
(41 715)
(1 186)

11 507 600
–
–

11 507 600
(41 715)
(1 186)

–

(42 901)

11 507 600

11 464 699

–
–

–
(27 867)
(23 768)

11 381 421
–
–

–

(51 635)

11 381 421

11 381 421
(27 867)
(23 768)
11 329 786

* Includes investment property classified as non-current assets held-for-sale.

The derivative financial instruments comprise interest rate swaps and cross-currency
swaps. The valuation techniques used are as follows:
Interest rate swaps
Future cash flows are discounted using the Jibar swap curve.
Cross-currency swap
Represents the present value of net future cash payments and receipts, which fluctuate
based on changes in market interest rates and the dollar/rand exchange rate.
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
39. Events after the reporting period
There were no significant events after the reporting period except for the declaration of the
final distribution of R361.9 million on 31 May 2018.

40. Going concern
The directors are of the opinion that the Group has adequate resources to continue
operating for the foreseeable future and that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the Group’s financial statements. The directors have satisfied themselves
that the Group is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing
facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements.

41. Segmental information
The Group has five reportable segments based on the type of property, i.e. retail, office
sovereign, office other, industrial and administration and corporate costs. Where a property
has more than one tenant the segment is classified based on the majority tenant type. For
each strategic business segment, the entity’s executive directors review internal
management reports on a monthly basis. All operating segments are located in South Africa
with a foreign investment in associate. There are no single major customers.
The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those applied in the Group. There
were no inter-segment sales during the period.
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41. Segmental information (continued)
The following summary describes the operations in each of the entity’s reportable
segments:

Industrial

Admin and
corporate
costs

Total

358 925
3 620
(139 131)

26 303
(1 228)
(6 677)

–
–
–

1 562 033
2 020
(414 168)

879 238
14 488
–

223 414
4 201
–

18 398
127
–

–
1 360
16 881

1 149 885
20 287
16 881

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

(52 113)
(1 216)

(52 113)
(1 216)

Net operating profit/(loss)
Fair value adjustment to investment
properties
Fair value adjustment to investment
in joint venture disposed
Fair value adjustment to derivative
financial instruments

28 946

893 726

227 615

18 525

(35 088)

1 133 724

35 781

346 503

(87 379)

(30 379)

(117 915)

146 611

–

–

–

–

(41 562)

(41 562)

–

–

–

–

(290)

(290)

Profit/(loss) from operations
Finance costs
Interest income
Share of profit in associate
Impairment of investment in associate

64 727
–
–
–
–

1 240 229
–
–
–
–

140 236
–
–
–
–

(11 854)
–
–
–
–

(194 855)
(482 179)
19 696
43 970
(21 900)

1 238 483
(482 179)
19 696
43 970
(21 900)

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Taxation

64 727
–

1 240 229
–

140 236
–

(11 854)
–

(635 268)
–

798 070
–

Profit for the year

64 727

1 240 229

140 236

(11 854)

(635 268)

798 070

Reportable segment assets and liabilities
Assets
Fair value of investment property
Straight-line rental income accrual
Non‑current assets held-for-sale
Other assets

318 572
11 428
–
30 252

7 431 687
158 613
593 400
174 895

2 592 159
22 541
192 400
119 752

–
–
186 800
3 856

–
–
–
598 926

10 342 418
192 582
972 600
927 681

360 252

8 358 595

2 926 852

190 656

598 926

12 435 281

187 411

4 696 358

1 947 170

105 236

(1 659 486)

5 276 689

Retail

Office
sovereign

Office
other

Rental income
Straight-line rental income accrual
Property operating expenses

38 544
4 091
(13 800)

1 138 261
(4 463)
(254 560)

Net property rental and related income
Other income
Gain on foreign exchange differences
Administration expenses
(excluding depreciation)
Depreciation

28 835
111
–

2018 (R’000)

Liabilities
Total liabilities
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Notes to the Group annual financial
statements (continued)
41. Segmental information (continued)

Industrial

Admin and
corporate
costs

Total

216 403
(278)
(76 792)

21 895
312
(6 959)

–
–
–

1 612 481
4 863
(464 003)

957 386
1 050

139 333
203

15 248
2

–
4 873

1 153 341
6 215

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

(66 880)
20 336
(1 289)

(66 880)
20 336
(1 289)

41 461

958 436

139 536

15 250

(42 960)

1 111 723

40 239

33 874

(74 826)

9 548

(52 652)

(43 817)

Retail

Office
sovereign

Office
other

71 198
(2 001)
(27 823)

1 302 985
6 829
(352 429)

Net property rental and related income
Other income
Administration expenses (excluding
goodwill impaired and depreciation)
Loss on foreign exchange differences
Depreciation

41 374
87

Net operating profit/(loss)
Fair value adjustment to investment
properties
Fair value adjustment to derivative
financial instruments

–

–

–

–

8 930

8 930

Profit/(loss) from operations
Finance costs
Interest income
Share of profit in associate

81 700
–
–
–

992 310
–
–
–

64 710
–
–
–

24 798
–
–
–

(86 682)
(470 580)
27 168
1 526

1 076 836
(470 580)
27 168
1 526

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Taxation

81 700
–

992 310
–

64 710
–

24 798
–

(528 568)
–

634 950
–

Profit/(loss) for the year

2017 (R’000)
Rental income
Straight-line rental income accrual
Property operating expenses

81 700

992 310

64 710

24 798

(528 568)

634 950

Reportable segment assets and liabilities
Assets
Fair value of investment property
Straight-line rental income
Non‑current assets held-for-sale
Other assets

439 242
9 295
–
23 650

8 185 019
172 693
900 400
301 417

1 237 188
10 484
269 100
(64 757)

–
–
158 000
1 243

–
–
–
712 947

9 861 449
192 472
1 327 500
974 500

Total assets

472 187

9 559 529

1 452 015

159 243

712 947

12 355 921

Liabilities
Total liabilities

339 641

73 382

15 244

1 632

4 887 819

5 317 718

The segmental report has been populated based on a per building classification which is in
accordance with the majority tenant.
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Property portfolio statistics
Geographic profile

Weighted average rental and escalations per sector
Geographic
profile by
GLA
(%)

Province
Gauteng
KwaZulu-Natal
Free State
Limpopo
Western Cape
Northern Cape
Mpumalanga
Eastern Cape
North West
Tenant grading profile

Tenant
grade

42.5
29.2
9.0
4.7
4.4
3.9
3.2
2.5
0.6

44.2
24.6
6.6
9.3
5.3
3.7
2.8
3.0
0.5

100.0

100.0

Vacancy profile

Tenant
grade by
GLA
(%)

A
B
C

Geographic
profile by
rental
(%)

84.2
4.3
11.5
100.0

Office
– sovereign
Office – other
Retail
Industrial

Sector
Office – sovereign
Office – other
Retail
Industrial

120.05
93.87
89.22
53.07

Weighted
average
escalation
(%)
5.8
7.0
7.3
3.0

Sectoral profile
Vacancy
by sector
by GLA
(%)

Sector

Weighted
average
rental
(per R/m2)

41.1
51.5
0.6
6.8

Sectoral
profile by
GLA
(%)

Sector
Office – sovereign
Office – other
Retail
Industrial

Sectoral
profile by
rental
(%)

66.9
26.4
2.5
4.2

76.4
19.5
2.2
1.9

100.0

100.0

100.0
Building sectorial spit by GLA (%)

Segment
Office – sovereign
Office – other
Retail
Industrial

28 Feb
2019

29 Feb
2020

28 Feb
2021

28 Feb
2022

28 Feb
2023

Beyond
28 Feb
2023

20.2
10.2
0.8
14.2

31.4
25.1
13.4
27.8

11.8
14.8
14.4
0.0

19.8
17.5
3.2
39.1

6.3
3.5
8.3
0.0

0.7
3.9
0.0
0.0

2.5
2.0
56.7
0.0

Month
Vacant to month

28 Feb
2019

29 Feb
2020

28 Feb
2021

28 Feb
2022

28 Feb
2023

Beyond
28 Feb
2023

33.9
39.8
20.0
49.8

12.3
19.4
24.9
0.0

21.6
21.9
16.1
37.1

6.0
7.4
18.8
0.0

1.1
1.6
6.1
0.0

3.4
3.6
11.4
0.0

Month
Vacant to month
7.2
23.0
3.1
19.0

Tenant sectorial spit by rental (%)

Segment
Office – sovereign
Office – other
Retail
Industrial

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

21.6
6.4
2.8
13.1
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Property portfolio
No. Property name

Physical address

Province

1 Forum Building

Bosman Street, Pretoria

Gauteng

2 NPA Cape Town

115 Buitengracht Street, Cape Town

3 110 Hamilton

110 Hamilton Street, Pretoria

4 Thuto House

155 St Andrews Street, Bloemfontein

5 Tivoli

58 OR Tambo Street, Klerksdorp

6 Block G^

Corner Schoeman Street, Nelson Mandela Drive
and Meintjies Street, Pretoria

7 5 Walnut Road

5 Walnut Road, Durban

8 Old Mutual Building

27 – 29 Maitland Street, Bloemfontein

9 Beacon Hill^

Corner Hargreaves and Hockley Close, Buffalo
Industrial Area, King William’s Town

10 SARS Springs

20 8th Street, Springs

11 SARS Kimberley

14 – 16 Bean Street and 6 – 10 Crossman Road, Kimberley

12 PWC Polokwane

73 Biccard Street, Polokwane

13 88 Field Street

88 Field Street, Durban

14 Cape Road

Corner CJ Langenhoven Drive and Cape Road,
Port Elizabeth

Eastern Cape

15 Broadcast House^

Corner of Sission Street and Queenstown Road, Mthatha

Eastern Cape

16 Liberty Towers

214 Dr Pixley Kaseme Street, Durban

KwaZulu-Natal

17 North Ridge Road

215 Peter Mokaba Road, Morningside, Durban

KwaZulu-Natal

18 WB Centre

48 – 54 Chapel Street, Kimberley

Northern Cape

Western Cape
Gauteng
Free State
North West
Gauteng
KwaZulu-Natal
Free State
Eastern Cape
Gauteng
Northern Cape
Limpopo
KwaZulu-Natal

Office – sove

^ Non-current assets held-for-sale.
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ereign

Annual report
property description

Tenancy
(multi/
single)

Building
sector

6-storey single-tenant office

83

S

83

S

83

6-storey single-tenant office

83

S

Office – sovereign

83

M

24

M

24

M

83

S

83

S

Office – sovereign

27-storey multi-tenant office
with arcade and high street
retail

83

S

24

M

83

M

83

83

High street retail with second
24
2
floor offices
Industrial

Office – other

24

M

402 093

24

S

32 354

M

7 639

0.00

163.35 3

0.00

72.20

23.70

3

65.83

88.07

06/11/2012
2
Retail

01/08/2012
2
Retail

01/08/2012
2
Retail

02/10/2012
3

06/11/2012
2

$3

0.00

$3

0.00

$3

0.00

151.28

38.45

135.25 3

31.15

132.28 3

19.18

108.61 3

36.95

92.58

3.55

*

0.00

106.83

1.68

Retail

05/11/2012
2

Retail

Industrial

05/11/2012
2

Retail

Industrial

31/10/2012
3

06/11/2012
Retail

Industrial

3

05/11/2012

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Retail

4 934
24

Office – other

Office – other

3-storey single-tenant office
83

524
135

M

3

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

14-storey multi-tenant office
83

21 24
792

$3

Retail

02/11/2012

Retail

Office – other

83

2-storey multi-tenant office

1 951

2

M

Office – sovereign

02/11/2012
2

Industrial

Industrial

Office – sovereign

Office – sovereign

2 950
24

0.44

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – other

5-storey multi-tenant office

Office – sovereign

1 24
922

$3

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

3-storey multi-tenant office
83

13 648
24

0.00

01/08/2012
2

Retail

Office – other

Office – sovereign

2-storey single-tenant office

22 784

$3

Retail

01/08/2012
2

Retail

Industrial

Office – sovereign

2-storey single-tenant office

132 787

0.00

01/08/2012
2

Industrial

Industrial

Office – other

3-storey single-tenant office

7 24
991

$3

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – other

5-storey single-tenant office
83
Office – sovereign

2 24
075

0.00

01/08/2012
2

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

6-storey multi-tenant office
83

224111

$3

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

83

4-storey multi-tenant office

424511

S

Office – sovereign

04/02/2010
2

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

5-storey single-tenant office

10 24
552

S

Office – sovereign

Effective
date of
acquisition

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

6-storey single-tenant office

41 003
24
Office – other

Office – sovereign

4-storey single-tenant office

Total
GLA
(m2)

Weighted
average
rental/m2
(excluding
parking and
storage) Vacancy
R
(%)

3

05/11/2012
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Property portfolio (continued)
No. Property name

Physical address

Province

19 Hallmark Building

233 Proes Street, Pretoria

Gauteng

20 Delta Heights

167 Andries Street, Pretoria

Gauteng

21 Delta House

Corner Pretorius and Thabu Sehume (Andries) Streets,
Pretoria

Gauteng

22 Continental Building Corner Bosman and Visagie Street, Pretoria

Gauteng

23 Hensa Towers

Corner Landdros Mare and Rabie Streets, Polokwane

Limpopo

24 Embassy Building

Corner Anton Lembede and Samora Machel Streets,
Durban

KwaZulu-Natal

25 Unisa House

29 Rissik Street, Johannesburg

Gauteng

26 12 New Street^

12 New Street South, Johannesburg

Gauteng

27 Du Toitspan

95 Du Toitspan Street, Kimberley

Northern Cape

28 13 Elliot Street

13 Elliot Street, Kimberley

Northern Cape

29 5/7 Elliot Street

7 Elliot Street, Kimberley

Northern Cape

30 Bestmed Building

36 Hamilton Street, Arcadia

Gauteng

31 In 2 Fruit Building^

67 Middle Road, Bartlett, Boksburg

Gauteng

32 CMH Building

196 – 206 West Street/119 – 123 Proes Street, Durban

33 539 Church Street

539 Church Street, Arcadia, Pretoria

KwaZulu-Natal

Office – sove

34 Protea Coin Pretoria^ 20 Vonkprop Street, Samcore Park, Silverton, Pretoria East
35

Protea Coin^
Cape Town

36 Anchor House

Corner Jerepiko and Van Riebeeck Street,
Saxenburg Park 2, Cape Town
63 Maitland Street, Bloemfontein

^ Non-current assets held-for-sale.
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Gauteng
Gauteng
Western Cape
Free State

ereign

Annual report
property description
25-storey single-tenant office
with high street retail
21-storey multi-tenant office
with high street retail
11-storey multi-tenant office
with high street retail

Tenancy
(multi/
single/
vacant)

Building
sector
83

S

83

S

83

83

83

Office – sovereign

Office – other

Office – sovereign

Office – other

10-storey single-tenant office
with high street retail 83

83

M

83

Single-tenant office

V

83

S

83

Single-tenant food processing
24
complex83

Office – sovereign

83

Office – other

Industrial

2-storey high security office
24
83
and warehouse

3

S

83

S

2

Office – other

Industrial

Office – sovereign

Office – other

Industrial

S

01/05/2013
2

0.70

$3

0.00

$3

0.00

*

2.27

175.47

0.00

98.12 3

15.71

0.00 3

100.00

$3

0.00

$3

0.00

Retail

Retail

01/05/2013
2
Retail

25/03/2013
2
Industrial

$3

Retail

77.17

0.00

13 091

17/05/2013

53.28

0.00

4 488
24

01/03/2013
2

3

Industrial

7 640
3

5 700
Retail

83
Office – sovereign

S

01/05/2013
2

2.48

10/05/2013

Retail

2

6-storey single-tenant office

V

3

$3

9.74

3

03/05/2013

0.00

87.68

17/05/2013

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

3

$3

11 177
Retail

Retail

Office – sovereign

2-storey high security office
24
83
and warehouse

S

2

23/05/2013

Industrial

3 684
24

Industrial

7-storey single-tenant office

4 400
24
2 300
24

S

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

24
Motor showroom
and parkade
2
Office – other

9 485
24

Office – other

Office – sovereign

Retail

15/03/2013
2

Retail

Office – other

Office – sovereign

5-storey single-tenant office

22 368

Office – other

Office – sovereign

Retail

02/05/2013
2

Retail

Industrial

Office – sovereign

Single-tenant office

102 055

M

02/05/2013
2

Retail

Industrial

24

13-storey multi-tenant office

322 788

S

Retail

Industrial

Industrial

24

8-storey multi-tenant office
with high street retail 83

13 24
675

M

02/05/2013
2

Industrial

Office – other

24
Office – other

424
133

S

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

Office – sovereign

11 439
24

S

02/05/2013
2

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

29-storey multi-tenant office
with high street retail 83

1924
122

S

Office – sovereign

Effective
date of
acquisition

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

8-storey single-tenant office

26 24
255
Office – other

Office – sovereign

10-storey single-tenant office

Total
GLA
(m2)

Weighted
average
rental/m2
(excluding
parking and
storage) Vacancy
R
(%)

3

2 645
24
Office – other

Retail

$3

0.00

07/05/2013

0.00

100.00

30/04/2013

39.84

0.00

01/03/2013
2
Industrial

Retail

$3

0.00
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Property portfolio (continued)
No. Property name

Physical address

Province

37 SARS Randburg

Corner Hill and Kent Street, Randburg

Gauteng

38 Top Trailers site 1^

Corner Lamp and Lantern Street, Wadeville

Gauteng

39 SARS Bellville

Corner Voortrekker and Durban Roads, Bellville,
Cape Town

40 3 Simba Road^

3 Simba Road, Sunninghill, Johannesburg

Gauteng

164 Tortius Street, Groenkloof, Pretoria

Gauteng

42 Azmo Place

49 Joubert Street, Polokwane

Limpopo

43 CCMA House

192 Hans van Rensburg Street, Polokwane

Limpopo

44 Phomoko Towers

37 Kerk Street, Polokwane

Limpopo

45 Temo Towers

67 Biccard Street, Polokwane

Limpopo

46 Commission House

566 Ziervogel Street, Pretoria

Gauteng

47 5 Simba Road^

5 Simba Road, Sunninghill, Johannesburg

Gauteng

48 Enterprise Park^

15 Simba Road, Sunninghill, Johannesburg

Gauteng

49 101 De Korte

101 De Korte Street, Braamfontein

Gauteng

96 First Avenue, Greyville, Durban

KwaZulu-Natal

51 Capital Towers

121 Chief Albert Luthuli Road, Pietermaritzburg

KwaZulu-Natal

52 Sleepy Hollow

9 Armitage Road, Pietermaritzburg

KwaZulu-Natal

41

50

Harlequins
Office Park

Standard Bank
Greyville

^ Non-current assets held-for-sale.
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Western Cape

Annual report
property description

Building
sector

4-storey single-tenant office
Heavy manufacturing
complex83

83

24

3-storey single-tenant office
with high street retail

2

S

83

S

83

V

3-storey multi-tenant office

83

6-storey single-tenant office

83

S

83

S

83

S

83

S

Office – sovereign

83

S

24

S

6
610
2

24

M

Office – other

83

S

13 485
24

M

62 360
Industrial

2.15

$3

0.00

$3

0.00

$3

0.00

$3

0.00

$3

0.00

*

83.73

*

0.00

77.75

10.97

Retail

Retail

Retail

12/12/2013
2
Retail

13/12/2013
3

19/12/2013
3

13/12/2013
Retail

Office – other

24
Office – other

14
188
2

$3

13/09/2013
2

Retail

Industrial

0.00

18/09/2013
2

Retail

Industrial

Office – sovereign

Office – sovereign

112 860

151.46 3

18/09/2013
2

Industrial

Industrial

24

14-storey single-tenant office
3-storey multi-tenant linked
83
office buildings

S

Office – other

8-storey multi-tenant office
83
Office – sovereign

5 24
375

100.00

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – other

8-storey single-tenant office
83
Office – sovereign

624011

0.00 3

16/09/2013
2

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

Single-tenant office park of
83
4 buildings

7 668
24

0.00

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

3-storey single-tenant office

13 058
24

$3

16/09/2013
2

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

5-storey office

1 063
24

3

01/12/2013
2
Retail

Industrial

01/12/2013
Retail

0.00

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

01/07/2013
2
Industrial

5 24
339

64.18

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

83

18/07/2013
2

$3

40.75

Retail

Industrial

5 450
24

S

Office – sovereign

9-storey single-tenant office

01/07/2013
2

Office – other

Office – sovereign

10-storey single-tenant office

17 309
24
3 696
24

M

Retail

25/07/2013

3

Office – other

Office – sovereign

30/08/2013
2
Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

Effective
date of
acquisition

15 741
Retail

Office – sovereign

Single-storey single-tenant
office

8 496
24
Office – other

Industrial

4-storey office

Total
GLA
(m2)

S

Office – sovereign

Office – other

Office – sovereign

Tenancy
(multi/
single/
vacant)

Weighted
average
rental/m2
(excluding
parking and
storage) Vacancy
R
(%)

3

$3

106.11

0.00
8.40
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Property portfolio (continued)
No. Property name

Physical address

53 Mayors Walk

174 Mayors Walk, Pietermaritzburg

54

Land Claims Court
Nelspruit

55 Military Hospital

Province
KwaZulu-Natal

30 Samora Machel (ex Louis Trichardt) Street, Nelspruit

Mpumalanga

21 Bell Street, Nelspruit

Mpumalanga

56

Defence Force
Headquarters

8 Spruit Street, Nelspruit

Mpumalanga

57

Defence Force
Logistics

15 – 17 Cruse Circle, Nelspruit

Mpumalanga

58

Defence Force
Transport

2 – 4 Davie Street, Nelspruit

Mpumalanga

59

Department of
Statistics

11 Samora Machel (ex Louis Trichardt) Street, Nelspruit

Mpumalanga

60

SAPS – Ferreira
Street

4 Ehmke Street and 9 Ferreira Street, Nelspruit

Mpumalanga

61

Defence Force –
Old Pretoria Road

16 Old Pretoria Road, Nelspruit

Mpumalanga

62 SAPS Flying Squad

19 Danie Joubert Street, White River

Mpumalanga

63 Beaconsfield

28 Central Road, Kimberley

Northern Cape

64 Campus Building

14 Abattoir Road, Kimberley

Northern Cape

65 Servamus Building

15 – 19 Bram Fischer Road, Durban

KwaZulu-Natal

66 The Marine Building

22 Dorothy Nyembe (ex Gardiner) Street, Durban

KwaZulu-Natal

67 Delta Towers

City block bounded by Doctor Pixley Kaseme Street,
Dorothy Nyembe Street, Anton Lembede Street and
Mercury Lane, Durban

KwaZulu-Natal

68

Auditor General
Polokwane

32 Dimitri Crescent, Platinum Park, Polokwane
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Limpopo

Annual report
property description
Single-tenant low rise office
park

Tenancy
(multi/
single)

Building
sector
83

S

83

83

1-storey single-tenant office
and parking structures
4-storey multi-tenant office
with high street retail
7-storey single-tenant linked
offices
1-storey single-tenant office
and industrial structure
Single-storey single-tenant
office
Single-tenant complex of
5 office buildings
Single-tenant complex of
9 office buildings

83

S

83

S

Office – sovereign

33-storey multi-tenant office
with ground floor/high street
83
retail
Office – sovereign

2 430
24

83

S

841
24

83

M

83

S

4 24
637

83

S

2 504
24

83

S

124
125

83

S

5 24
801

83

S

4 700
24

83

S

13 24
789

24

M

Office – other

24

M

412 707

S

25.43

$3

0.00

$3

0.00

$3

0.00

$3

39.88

$3

0.00

$3

0.73

Retail

11/02/2014
2
Retail

11/02/2014
2
Retail

01/12/2013
2
Retail

01/12/2013
2
Retail

24/04/2014
2
Retail

26/09/2014
3

26/09/2014
Retail

2 24
130
Office – other

120.88 3

11/02/2014
2

Retail

Industrial

83
Office – sovereign

242 655

0.00

Retail

Industrial

Industrial

Office – other

11/02/2014
2

Industrial

Office – other

$3

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

0.00

11/02/2014
2

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

$3

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

0.00

11/02/2014
2

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

$3

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

2-storey single-tenant office

2 24
827

0.00

11/02/2014
2

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

$3

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

0.00

11/02/2014
2

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

21-storey multi-tenant office
with ground floor retail 83

224
174

$3

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

22-storey single-tenant office

3 000
24

0.00

11/02/2014
2
Industrial

Office – other

$3

Retail

Industrial

2 24
910

S

Office – sovereign

1-storey single-tenant office
and industrial structure

01/12/2013
2

Office – other

Office – sovereign

4-storey single-tenant office

5 507
24

S

Office – sovereign

5-storey single-tenant office

Effective
date of
acquisition

Office – other

Office – sovereign

5-storey single-tenant office

Total
GLA
(m2)

Weighted
average
rental/m2
(excluding
parking and
storage) Vacancy
R
(%)

3

85.63

26.94

106.64

39.81

13/10/2014
2
Industrial

Retail

$3

0.00
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Property portfolio (continued)
No. Property name

Physical address

Province

69 Die Meent

123 Peter Mokaba Street, Potchefstroom

70 Regents Place

277 Madiba (ex Vermeulen) Street, Pretoria

Gauteng

71 ABSA Florida

18E and 20 Goldman Street, Florida

Gauteng

72 142 – 144 4th Street

142 – 144 4th Street, Parkmore

Gauteng

73 Veritas Building

275 Volkstem Road, Pretoria

Gauteng
Gauteng

North West

74

Chambers of
Change

62 – 72 Pritchard Street, Johannesburg CBD

75

54 and 56 Barrack
Street

56 Barrack Street, Cape Town

76

22 and 24 George
Lubbe Street

22 and 24 George Lubbe Street, Hamilton, Bloemfontein

Free State

64 Maitland Street, Bloemfontein

Free State

Corner St Andrew and Church Street, Bloemfontein

Free State

79 Classic Building

Off Loop and Koller Streets, Bloemfontein

Free State

80 CNA Building

Maitland Street, Bloemfontein

Free State

81 Domitek Building

Corner De Kaap and Ryk Streets, Welkom, CBD, Welkom

Free State

82 Edgars Kroonstad

Corner Brand and Murray Streets, CBD, Kroonstad

Free State

83 Fort Drury

Corner Markgraaf and St Andrews Streets, Bloemfontein

Free State

84 Katleho Building

Corner Selborne and Markgraaf Street, Bloemfontein

Free State

77 Absa United
78

African Life
Building
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Western Cape

Annual report
property description

Tenancy
(multi/
single)

Building
sector

4-storey single-tenant office
12-storey multi-tenant office
with high street retail

83

S

83

S

83

83

83

S

1-storey single-tenant office
and multi-storey office,
parking and retail

8 24
272

S

83

S

1-storey single-tenant office

83

S

83

M

83

M

83

M

83

M

83

M

83

M

83

M

83
Office – sovereign

10 24
477

S

0.00

$3

0.00

$3

0.00

97.29 3

29.94

77.61 3

0.92

24.65 3

16.37

158.06 3

0.00

52.37 3

37.16

47.43 3

12.83

146.47 3

0.00

$3

0.07

Retail

01/06/2015
2
01/06/2015
2
01/06/2015
2
01/06/2015
2
01/06/2015
2
01/06/2015
2
01/06/2015
2
01/06/2015
2
Industrial

5 24
910
Office – other

*

01/08/2015
2

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

6-storey single-tenant office

5 968
24

0.00

3

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

4-storey multi-tenant office

1 24
729

$3

18/12/2015

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

4-storey multi-tenant office

2 489
24

12.99

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

4-storey multi-tenant office

3 000
24

$3

29/04/2015
2

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

4-storey multi-tenant office

8 24
567

0.00

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

2-storey multi-tenant office

624
129

148.84 3

29/04/2015
2

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

5-storey multi-tenant office

6 200
24

0.00

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

6-storey multi-tenant office

4 309
24
Office – other

Office – sovereign

10/03/2015
2

Retail

Industrial

$3

Retail

Industrial

52 944

Office – other

14.41

09/12/2014
2

Industrial

Office – other

24

83

Office – sovereign

224
812

$3

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

4 adjacent multi-storey

624
531

S

25/11/2014
2

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

8-storey single-tenant office

10 24
289

M

Office – sovereign

Effective
date of
acquisition

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

2 2-storey single-tenant office

3 705
24
Office – other

Office – sovereign

4-storey multi-tenant office

Total
GLA
(m2)

Weighted
average
rental/m2
(excluding
parking and
storage) Vacancy
R
(%)

Retail

Retail

Retail

Retail

Retail

Retail

Retail

Retail

01/06/2015
2
Industrial

Retail
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Property portfolio (continued)
No. Property name

Physical address

Province

85 Laboria House

43 Maitland Street, Bloemfontein

Free State

86 Nedbank Building

36 Maitland Street, CBD, Bloemfontein

Free State

87 SA Eagle

136 Maitland Street, CBD, Bloemfontein

Free State

88

Sediba, Fountain
and VLU Building

Corner of Markgraaf and Zastron Streets, Bloemfontein

Free State

89

Trustfontein/
Transtel

149 – 151 St Andrews Street, Bloemfontein

Free State

90

Standard Bank
Nelspruit

29 Brown Street, Nelspruit

Mpumalanga

91 Nosa

508 Proes Street, Arcadia, Pretoria

Gauteng

92 Poyntons

Church Street, Pretoria

Gauteng

93 Shorburg

429 Church Street, Arcadia, Pretoria

Gauteng

94 Domus

Corner Glenwood and Kasteel Roads, Lynnwood Glen

Gauteng

95 Hatfield Forum East

1077 Arcadia Street, Hatfield, Pretoria

Gauteng

96 Isivunyo House

135 Van Der Walt Street, Pretoria

Gauteng
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Annual report
property description
7-storey single-tenant office
6-storey multi-tenant office
building

Tenancy
(multi/
single)

Building
sector
83

S

83

M

Office – sovereign

83

Office – sovereign

4-storey mulit-tenant office
building, with ground floor
83
retail
Office – sovereign
6-storey single-tenant office
building
Office, parking and ancillary
structures of between 2 and
33 storeys with ground floor
retail
9-storey multi-tenant office
building with ground floor
retail
3-storey multi-tenant office
83
building
Office – sovereign

6-storey multi-tenant office
building with ground floor
retail

M

102 745

24

S

62 369

24

2 213

2

83

S

3 770
24
Office – other

Office – sovereign

83

M

73 369
24

Office – other

Office – sovereign

83

M

14 24
041

Office – other

Office – sovereign

24

M

Office – other

52 454

83

M

6 390
24

Office – other

Office – sovereign

83

S

23 694
24
Office – other

3

14.37

119.62

88.52

*

17.79

119.92

0.00

3

01/04/2016
3

01/04/2016
2

$3

0.00

94.70 3

11.34

93.57 3

17.11

Retail

Industrial

01/04/2016
2

Retail

Industrial

01/04/2016
2

Retail

Industrial

01/04/2016
Retail

Industrial

$3

01/06/2015

Retail

Industrial

0.31

Retail

01/06/2015

Retail

M

Office – other

68.25 3

01/06/2015
2

Retail

Industrial

0.00

Retail

Industrial

Industrial

Office – other

01/06/2015
2
Industrial

3 689
24

$3

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

24

22-storey single-tenant office
building with ground floor
Office – sovereign
retail

01/06/2015
2

2 700
24

S

Office – other

7-storey single-tenant office
83

3 995
24

Office – other

Office – sovereign

Office – sovereign

5-storey, 3-storey and
83
7-storey single-tenant office

Effective
date of
acquisition

Office – other

Office – sovereign

7-storey single-tenant office

Total
GLA
(m2)

Weighted
average
rental/m2
(excluding
parking and
storage) Vacancy
R
(%)

3

01/04/2016
2
Industrial

100.48
82.43 3

20.22

$3

0.00

Retail

01/04/2016
2
Industrial

9.78

Retail
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Property portfolio (continued)
No. Property name

Physical address

Province

Corner of Sauer and Marshall Streets, Marshalltown

Gauteng

17 Harrison Street
98 Building and Kay
Street Parkade

17 Harrison Street and Kay Street, Johannesburg

Gauteng

99 2 Devonshire Place

2 Devonshire Place, Durban

KwaZulu-Natal

221 Smith Street, Durban

KwaZulu-Natal

260 Monty Naicker Road, Durban

KwaZulu-Natal

97

Hollard House
and Parkade

100 Shell House
101 Pine Parkade

Office – sove

Standard Bank
102
Unisa

31 Brown Street, Nelspruit

103 Treasury House

145 Commercial Road, Pietermaritzburg

KwaZulu-Natal
Western Cape

104

Commissioner
House, Bellville

Rem Ext of Erf 10877, Bellville

105

Silver Stream
Office Park

10 Muswell Road South, Bryanston

Mpumalanga

Gauteng

The average annualised property yield is 9.91%.
$
	Single-tenanted property – the average gross rental for a single-tenanted office – sovereign property
is R131.85.
*	Single-tenanted property – the average gross rental for a single-tenanted office – other property is R116.86.
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ereign

Annual report
property description
9-storey single-tenant office
with ground floor retail and
connected 8-storey parking
structure
12-storey single-tenant office
with ground floor retail

Tenancy
(multi/
single)

Building
sector

83

S

83

S

83

83

7-storey parking structure
24
2
with retail
Industrial

83

Retail

3-storey multi-tenant office
with ground floor retail 83
10-storey single-tenant office
with ground floor retail
4 and 5-storey single-tenant
office with ground floor retail

3

24

M
M

83

83

90.26 3

3.50

$3

0.00

Retail

01/04/2016
2
Retail

20.18

52 589

01/06/2015

72.42

0.00

Retail

824
871

S

3

01/05/2016
2
Retail

Industrial

4 24
019
22 333
Industrial

01/04/2016
2

234.30

S

M

0.63

11/04/2016

Office – other

24
Office – other

$3

Retail

2 986

Office – other

Office – sovereign

0.00

01/04/2016
2

Industrial

Industrial

Office – sovereign

2-storey office with basement
83
parking and outdoor parking
Office – sovereign

13 24
828

$3

Retail

Industrial

Office – other

Office – other

Office – sovereign

824
122

S

01/04/2016
2

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

Office – other

12 24
379

M

Office – sovereign

Effective
date of
acquisition

Industrial

Office – other

Office – sovereign

16-storey single-tenant office

1024
415
Office – other

Office – sovereign

5-storey multi-tenant office

Total
GLA
(m2)

Weighted
average
rental/m2
(excluding
parking and
storage) Vacancy
R
(%)

01/04/2016
2
Retail

Industrial

03/05/2016
Retail

3

$3

0.00

$3

0.00

153.17

0.66
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Catalyst for
transformation

DELTA PROPERTY ASSET MANAGERS
Location: 10 Muswell Road South, Bryanston
GLA: 2 395m2
Province: Gauteng
Property description: Two-storey office building with basement
and outdoor parking
Building sector: Commercial offices
Acquisition date: 3 May 2016
In May 2015 Delta restructured its property management function by
housing the asset manager in Trust for the benefit of all black
employees. Delta Property Asset Managers was an industry first and
unique in the sector and supports Delta’s vision of being a leader
as far as broad-based black economic empowerment and
transformation in the property industry is concerned.
The property services team has extensive experience and is
instrumental in delivering on Delta’s promise to investors to ensure
that tenants perform in line with their lease obligations and that
buildings are maintained and upgraded as required.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

Analysis of ordinary shareholders
as at 28 February 2018

Shareholder spread
1 – 1 000
1 001 – 10 000
10 001 – 100 000
100 001 – 1 000 000
Over 1 000 000
Total
Distribution of
shareholders
Assurance companies
Close corporations
Collective investment
schemes
Custodians
Foundations and charitable
funds
Hedge funds
Insurance companies
Investment partnerships
Managed funds
Medical aid funds
Organs of state
Private companies
Public companies
Public entities
Retail shareholders
Retirement benefit funds
Scrip lending
Stockbrokers and nominees
Trusts
Total
Shareholder type
Non-public shareholders
Directors and associates
of the Company (direct
holdings)
Directors and associates
of the Company (indirect
holdings)
Holders holding more
than 10%
Cornwall Crescent
Proprietary Limited*
Public shareholders
Total

Number of
shareholdings

% of total
shareholdings

Number
of shares

% of issued
capital

324
548
494
229
98
1 693

19.1
32.4
29.2
13.5
5.8
100.0

87 017
2 630 014
17 244 599
87 260 677
604 622 179
711 844 486

0.0
0.4
2.4
12.3
84.9
100.0

23
24

1.4
1.4

20 413 959
6 852 920

2.9
1.0

142
52

8.4
3.1

234 628 452
37 339 700

33.0
5.3

25
6
6
5
9
12
6
45
2
6
1 076
123
5
14
112
1 693

1.5
0.3
0.3
0.3
0.5
0.7
0.3
2.7
0.1
0.4
63.6
7.3
0.3
0.8
6.6
100.0

3 763 650
3 433 912
2 098 510
49 103
2 236 133
3 684 030
74 244 435
195 066 399
2 094 883
1 626 699
17 224 847
84 331 667
3 152 141
5 120 044
14 483 002
711 844 486

0.5
0.5
0.3
0.0
0.3
0.5
10.4
27.4
0.3
0.2
2.4
11.9
0.4
0.7
2.0
100.0

7

0.5

183 086 319

25.7

3

0.2

2 085 201

0.3

3

0.2

51 366 655

7.2

1
1 686
1 693

0.1
99.5
100.0

129 634 463
528 758 167
711 844 486

18.2
74.3
100.0

* 32.4 million shares for N Khan included in directors and associates above.
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Fund managers with a holding greater than 3%
of the issued shares

Number of
shares

% of issued
capital

84 077 968
70 435 240
51 939 746
48 992 066
35 090 604
31 651 093
31 118 531

11.8
9.9
7.3
6.9
4.9
4.4
4.4

Total

353 305 248

49.6

Beneficial shareholders with a holding greater
than 3% of the issued shares
Cornwall Crescent Proprietary Limited
Government Employees Pension Fund
Nedbank Group
Coronation Fund Managers
Stanlib
Sanlam Group
Bridge Fund Managers

162 043 079
67 603 314
53 632 304
38 609 034
37 590 545
34 215 345
21 955 968

22.8
9.5
7.5
5.4
5.3
4.8
3.1

Total

415 649 589

58.4

Bridge Fund Managers
Public Investment Corporation
Coronation Fund Managers
Stanlib Asset Management
Kagiso Asset Management
Sanlam Investment Management
Mazi Capital

Total number of shareholdings

1 693

Total number of shares in issue

711 844 486

Share price performance
Opening price 1 March 2017
Closing price 28 February 2018
Closing high for period
Closing low for period
Number of shares in issue
Volume traded during period
Ratio of volume traded to shares issued (%)
Rand value traded during the period
Price/earnings ratio as at 28 February 2018
Earnings yield as at 28 February 2018
Market capitalisation at 28 February 2018

R8.30
R6.00
R9.30
R5.98
711 844 486
218 361 150
30.68
1 648 025 423
6.60
15.15
R4 271 066 916
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Shareholders’ diary
Date
Financial year-end

28 February 2018

Announcement of annual results

4 June 2018

Integrated annual report posted

29 June 2018

Annual General Meeting
Announcement of interim results
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7 August 2018
31 October 2018

Distribution details
Distribution
number

Cents

Payment date

1

23.69

27 May 2013

2

32.51

25 November 2013

3

40.18

26 May 2014

4

40.01

10 November 2014

5

44.06

15 June 2015

6

42.89

23 November 2015

7

47.90

13 June 2016

For the period 1 March 2016
to 31 August 2016

8

45.93

21 November 2016

For the period 1 September 2016
to 28 February 2017

9

51.31

26 June 2017

10

46.40

27 November 2017

11

50.84

2 July 2018

Distribution period
For the period 2 November 2012*
to 28 February 2013
For the period 1 March 2013
to 31 August 2013
For the period 1 September 2013
to 28 February 2014
For the period 1 March 2014
to 31 August 2014
For the period 1 September 2014
to 28 February 2015
For the period 1 March 2015
to 31 August 2015
For the period 1 September 2015
to 29 February 2016

For the period 1 March 2017
to 31 August 2017
For the period 1 September 2017
to 28 February 2018
* Date of listing.

In line with prior years we expect to make the distribution for the period 1 March 2018 to
31 August 2018 on or about 26 November 2018.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

PROPERTY

FUND

(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number: 2002/005129/06)
Share code: DLT ISIN: ZAE000194049
(“Delta” or “the Company”)
REIT status approved
This document is important and requires
your immediate attention. If you are in any
doubt as to what action you should take in
respect of the following resolutions, please
consult your Central Securities Depository
Participant (“CSDP”), broker, banker, attorney,
accountant or other professional adviser
immediately.
If you have sold or otherwise transferred all
your shares in Delta, please send this
document together with the accompanying
form of proxy at once to the relevant
transferee or to the stockbroker, bank or
other person through whom the sale
or transfer was effected, for transmission to
the relevant transferee.
Notice is hereby given to the shareholders of
Delta as at Friday, 22 June 2018, being the
record date to receive notice of the Annual
General Meeting in terms of section 59(1)(a)
of the Companies Act, No 71 of 2008 (“the
Companies Act”) that the Annual General
Meeting of shareholders of the Company will
be held in the boardroom at the Company’s
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registered office, Silver Stream Office Park,
10 Muswell Road South, Bryanston, on
7 August 2018, at 10:00 (Central African time)
for the purposes of the matters set out below,
which meeting is to be participated in and
voted at by shareholders registered as such
on Friday, 27 July 2018, being the record date
to participate in and vote at the Annual
General Meeting in terms of section 62(3)(a),
read with section 59(1)(b) of the Companies
Act, and to consider and, if deemed fit, to
pass the following ordinary and special
resolutions, with or without amendment:
Section 63(1) of the Companies Act –
Identification of meeting participants
Kindly note that meeting participants
(including proxies) are required to provide
reasonably satisfactory identification before
being entitled to attend or participate in
a shareholders’ meeting. Forms of
identification
include
valid
identity
documents, driver’s licences and passports.

Ordinary business

Presentation of the annual financial
statements and Transformation, Social,
Ethics and Sustainability Committee report
(“SETCOM”)
To (a) present the annual financial statements
for the year ended 28 February 2018 of the
Company and the Delta Group of companies
(“the Group”), together with the directors’
and independent auditors’ reports contained
therein as required in terms of section 30(3)
(d) of the Companies Act and (b) present the
report of the SETCOM in terms of regulation
43 of the Companies Act.
Both are included in the integrated annual
report of which this notice forms part.

Ordinary resolutions
1.

Directors’ re-election, resignation, and
ratification of appointment
In accordance with the Company’s
Memorandum of Incorporation (“MOI”)
one-third of the Company’s directors are
required to retire by rotation and, if
eligible, are able to offer themselves for
re-election.
a.	
To confirm the resignation of
Bronwyn Corbett (non-executive
director) as at 12 April 2018
b.	
To
re-elect
Ian
Macleod
(independent
non-executive
director)#
c.	
To re-elect Dumo Motau (nonexecutive director)#
#

A brief curriculum vitae of each of these
directors appears on pages 22 and 23 of the
integrated annual report of which this notice
forms part.

The Company accordingly wishes to
propose the ordinary resolutions 1 to 3
set out below:
ORDINARY RESOLUTION 1
“Resolved that Bronwyn Corbett’s
resignation as an independent nonexecutive director be confirmed as at
12 April 2018.”
ORDINARY RESOLUTION 2
“Resolved that Ian Macleod, who retires
in terms of the Company’s MOI and who,
being eligible offers himself for reelection, be re-elected as an independent
non-executive director of the Company.”

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 3
“Resolved that Dumo Motau, who retires
in terms of the Company’s MOI and who,
being eligible offers herself for reelection, be re-elected as a nonexecutive director of the Company.”
A 50% (fifty percent) majority of votes
cast by those shareholders present or
represented and voting at the Annual
General Meeting is required for
resolutions 1 to 3 to be adopted.
2.

Reappointment of auditors
In terms of section 90 of the Companies
Act, the auditors of a public company
are required to be appointed at the
Company’s Annual General Meeting. The
purpose of ordinary resolution 4 is to
confirm the reappointment of BDO
South Africa Inc. as independent
auditors of the Company, as nominated
by the Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee as required under section 90
of the Companies Act, for the ensuing
financial year, and to confirm that the
directors shall be empowered to ratify
their remuneration, as determined by
the committee in terms of the committee
charter, which amount shall be approved
and endorsed by the directors.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION 4
“Resolved that the reappointment of
BDO South Africa Inc. as independent
auditors of the Company, and
Mr Stephen Shaw as the designated
audit partner, until the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting be
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)
ORDINARY RESOLUTION 5
“Resolved that JJ Njeke, who is an
independent non-executive director, be
reappointed as a member and Chairman
of the Company’s Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee for the year
ended 28 February 2019.”

confirmed, and that their remuneration
be determined by the Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee in terms of the
committee charter, which amount the
directors shall be empowered to ratify.”
A 50% (fifty percent) majority of votes
cast by those shareholders present or
represented and voting at the Annual
General Meeting is required for this
resolution to be adopted.
3.

Reappointment and resignation of
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
members for the year ended
28 February 2019
In terms of section 94 of the Companies
Act, the Audit Committee must
constitute three members who must be
appointed by shareholders at the
Company’s Annual General Meeting, all
of whom must, in terms of the King
Code of Governance Principles (“King
Code”), be independent non-executive
directors. It is accordingly proposed to
reappoint the members of the Audit,
Risk and Compliance Committee,
proposed by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee as set
out below, for the year ended
28 February 2019. The current members
are JJ Njeke, who is the Chairman of
the committee, Ian Macleod and
Nombuso Afolayan.
A brief curriculum vitae of each of the
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
members appears on pages 22 and 23
of the integrated annual report of which
this notice forms part.
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ORDINARY RESOLUTION 6
“Resolved that subject to the passing of
ordinary resolution 2, Ian Macleod, who
is an independent non-executive
director, be reappointed as a member of
the Company’s Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee for the year
ended 28 February 2019.”
ORDINARY RESOLUTION 7
“Resolved that Nombuso Afolayan, who
is an independent non-executive
director, be reappointed as a member of
the Company’s Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee for the year
ended 28 February 2019.”
A 50% (fifty percent) majority of votes
cast by those shareholders present or
represented and voting at the Annual
General Meeting is required for these
resolutions to be adopted.
4.

Approval of remuneration policy
In terms of the King Code, shareholders
should (a) approve the Company’s
remuneration policy, and (b) approve
the implementation of this policy,
through separate non-binding advisory
votes. The purpose of ordinary
resolutions 8 and 9 is therefore to
indicate to the Board, shareholders’
approval of the Company’s remuneration
policy and its implementation.

NON-BINDING ADVISORY ORDINARY
RESOLUTION 8 – VOTE ON
REMUNERATION POLICY
“Resolved that, through a non-binding
advisory
vote,
the
Company’s
remuneration policy, as set out in the
integrated annual report of which this
notice forms part, be and is hereby
approved.”
NON-BINDING ADVISORY ORDINARY
RESOLUTION 9 – VOTE ON
IMPLEMENTATION OF
REMUNERATION POLICY
“Resolved that, through a non-binding
advisory vote, the implementation of
remuneration in accordance with the
Company’s remuneration policy, as set
out in the implementation section of the
integrated annual report, of which the
notice forms part, and is hereby
approved.”
A 75% (seventy-five percent) majority of
votes cast by those shareholders
present or represented and voting at the
Annual General Meeting is required for
these resolutions 8 and 9 to be adopted.
These resolutions have been separated
in line with the King IV requirements.
Should the resolutions not be passed
with the requisite 75% majority, further
consultation with those shareholders
voting against will take place. The overall
objective of the remuneration policy is
to guide the Board in its decisionmaking process, in particular in the
determination of the executive and nonexecutive remuneration.

5.

Issue of shares for cash
In terms of the Company’s MOI, the
Company may only issue unissued
shares for cash if such shares have first
been offered to existing shareholders in
proportion to their shareholding, unless
otherwise authorised by shareholders.
The purpose of ordinary resolution 10 is
therefore to authorise the directors of
the Company to issue shares for cash on
a non-pro rata basis, as and when they
in their discretion deem fit when
appropriate opportunities arise. The
Board has no current plans to exercise
this authority but wishes to ensure that
by having it in place, the Company will
have the flexibility to take advantage of
any business opportunity that may arise
in future. The authority will be subject to
the Companies Act and the JSE Listings
Requirements.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION 10
“Resolved that, subject to the Company’s
MOI, the directors of the Company be
and are hereby authorised until this
authority lapses at the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company
(provided that this general authority
shall not extend beyond 15 months), to
allot and issue shares for cash subject
to the JSE Listings Requirements
and the Companies Act, on the
following basis:
a.	the allotment and issue of shares
for cash shall be made only to
persons qualifying as public
shareholders and not to related
parties, as defined in the JSE
Listings Requirements;
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b.	
the number of shares issued for
cash shall not in the aggregate in
the financial year of the Company
(which commenced 1 March 2018)
exceed 5% of the Company’s
issued shares, being the equivalent
of 35 592 224 shares (excluding
treasury shares), as at the date of
the Annual General Meeting;
c.	any shares issued in terms of this
general
authority
must
be
deducted from the initial number
of shares available under this
general authority;
d.	
in the event of a sub-division or
consolidation of issued shares
during the period of this general
authority, the general authority
must be adjusted accordingly to
represent the same allocation
ratio;
e.	
the maximum discount at which
shares may be issued for cash is
5% of the weighted average price
on the JSE of those shares over
30 days prior to the date that the
price of the issue is agreed
between the Company and the
party subscribing for the shares;
f.	
after the Company has issued
shares for cash which represent,
on a cumulative basis within a
financial year 5% or more of the
number of shares in issue prior to
that issue, the Company shall
publish
an
announcement
containing full details of the issue,
including the number of shares
issued, the average discount to the
weighted average price of those
shares over 30 days and an
explanation (including supporting
information) of the intended use of
funds; and
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g.	the shares which are the subject of
this general authority must be of a
class already in issue, or where this
is not the case, must be limited to
such shares or rights as are
convertible into a class already in
issue.”
A 75% (seventy-five percent) majority of
votes cast by those shareholders
present or represented and voting at the
Annual General Meeting is required for
this resolution to be adopted in terms of
the JSE Listings Requirements.
6.

Authority to issue shares to enable
shareholders to reinvest cash
distributions
ORDINARY RESOLUTION 11
“Resolved that, subject to the provisions
of the Companies Act, the Company’s
MOI and the JSE Listings Requirements,
as applicable from time to time, that, in
the event that:
a.	
the
Company
elects,
upon
declaration by the Company of a
distribution in respect of its shares,
to afford all shareholders the
option
of
reinvesting
their
distributions by subscribing for
shares in the Company (“the
Reinvestment Option”);
b.	
some of the Company’s share
holders elect to reinvest their
distributions in accordance with
the Reinvestment Option; and
c.	
the directors be and are hereby
authorised to issue to each
shareholder who elects to reinvest
their distributions in accordance
with the Reinvestment Option
such number of shares as are
equivalent in value to the

distributions reinvested by such
shareholder, on such terms and
conditions as the directors may, at
their discretion, determine.”
A 50% (fifty percent) majority of votes
cast by those shareholders present or
represented and voting at the Annual
General Meeting is required for this
resolution to be adopted.
7.

2019
R

2018
R

Board Chairman

558 216

529 115

Non-executive
director

266 973 253 055

Annual fee

Audit, Risk and
Compliance
Committee Chairman 133 487

126 528

Audit, Risk and
Compliance
Committee member

91 014

86 269

Remuneration and
Nomination
Committee Chairman

78 878

74 766

Remuneration and
Nomination
Committee member

57 763

54 752

Investment
Committee Chairman 133 487

126 528

A 50% (fifty percent) majority of votes
cast by those shareholders present or
represented and voting at the Annual
General Meeting is required for this
resolution to be adopted.

Investment
Committee member

91 014

86 269

Transformation,
Social, Ethics and
Sustainability
Committee Chairman

78 878

74 766

Remuneration of non-executive
directors

Transformation,
Social, Ethics and
Sustainability
Committee member

57 642

54 637

Authority to action all ordinary and
special resolutions
ORDINARY RESOLUTION 12
“Resolved that any one director of the
Company or the Company Secretary be
and is hereby authorised to do all such
things as are necessary and to sign all
such documents issued by the Company
so as to give effect to all ordinary
resolutions and special resolutions
passed at the Annual General Meeting
with or without amendment.”

8.

passing of this resolution or until its
renewal, whichever is the earliest, as
follows:

SPECIAL RESOLUTION 1: APPROVAL
OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION FOR THEIR
SERVICES AS DIRECTORS
“Resolved that the fees payable by the
Company to the non-executive directors
for their services as directors (in terms
of section 66 of the Companies Act) be
and are hereby approved for the
financial year ended 28 February 2019
and for a period of two years from the

The annual escalation in fees to be
based on CPI and to be agreed by
the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.”
The fees proposed for the 2019 financial
year ended reflect an increase of 5.5%
on the 2018 financial year fees.
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The reason for and effect of special
resolution 1
To obtain shareholder approval by way
of a special resolution in accordance
with section 66 of the Companies Act,
for the payment by the Company of
remuneration to each of the nonexecutive directors of the Company for
services rendered as directors for a
period of two years from the passing of
this resolution or until its renewal,
whichever is the earliest, in the amount
set out in special resolution 1.
A 75% (seventy-five percent) majority of
votes cast by those shareholders
present or represented and voting at the
Annual General Meeting is required for
this resolution to be adopted.
9.

General authority to repurchase issued
shares
SPECIAL RESOLUTION 2: GENERAL
AUTHORITY TO REPURCHASE ISSUED
SHARES
“Resolved that the directors be
authorised in terms of the Company’s
MOI, until this authority lapses at the
next Annual General Meeting of the
Company or unless it is then renewed at
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company and provided that this
authority shall not extend beyond
15 months, to enable the Company or
any subsidiary of the Company (if
applicable) to acquire shares of the
Company subject to the JSE Listings
Requirements and the Companies Act,
on the following basis:
a.	the repurchase of shares must be
implemented through the order
book operated by the JSE trading
system
without
any
prior
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understanding or arrangement
between the Company and the
counterparty;
b.	the Company (or any subsidiary)
must be authorised to do so in
terms of its MOI;
c.	the number of shares which may
be repurchased pursuant to this
authority in any financial year
(which commenced 1 March 2018)
may not in the aggregate exceed
20% (or 10% where the repurchases
are effected by a subsidiary) of the
Company’s share capital as at
the date of this notice;
d.	repurchases may not be made at a
price more than 10% above the
weighted average of the market
value on the JSE of the shares
in question for the five business
days immediately preceding the
repurchase;
e.	
repurchases may not take place
during a prohibited period (as
defined in paragraph 3.67 of the
JSE Listings Requirements) unless
a repurchase programme is in
place and the dates and quantities
of shares to be repurchased during
the prohibited period have been
determined and full details thereof
submitted to the JSE prior to
commencement of the prohibited
period;
f.	
after
the
Company
has
repurchased
shares
which
constitute, on a cumulative basis,
3% of the number of shares in issue
(at the time that authority from
shareholders for the repurchase is
granted), the Company shall
publish an announcement to such
effect, or any other announcements
that may be required in such

regard in terms of the JSE Listings
Requirements applicable from
time to time;
g.	the Company (or any subsidiary)
shall appoint only one agent to
effect repurchases on its behalf;
and
h.	
a resolution has been passed by
the Board of directors of the
Company or the Group authorising
the repurchase, and the Company
has passed the solvency and
liquidity test as set out in section 4
of the Companies Act and that,
since the application of the
solvency and liquidity test by the
Board, there have been no material
changes to the financial position of
the Company.”
The reason for and effect of special
resolution 2
The reason for special resolution 2 is to
afford directors of the Company a
general authority for the Company (or
a subsidiary of the Company) to effect a
repurchase of the Company’s shares on
the JSE. The directors are of the opinion
that it would be in the best interests of
the Company to approve this general
authority and thereby allow the
Company or any of its subsidiaries to be
in a position to repurchase the shares
issued by the Company through
the order book of the JSE, should the
market conditions, tax dispensation and
price justify such an action. The effect of
the resolution will be that the directors
will have the authority, subject to
the JSE Listings Requirements and the
Companies Act to effect repurchases of
the Company’s shares on the JSE.

Certain information relating to the
Company as required by the JSE Listings
Requirements is set out in the attached
Annexure which forms part of this
notice.
A 75% (seventy-five percent) majority of
votes cast by those shareholders
present or represented and voting at the
Annual General Meeting is required for
this resolution to be adopted.
10. Approval of financial assistance
SPECIAL RESOLUTION 3: APPROVAL
OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE S44
“Resolved that to the extent required by
the Companies Act, the Board of
directors of the Company may, subject
to compliance with the requirements of
the Company’s MOI, the Companies Act
and the JSE Listings Requirements, each
as presently constituted and as
amended from time to time, authorise
the Company, in terms of section 44 of
the Companies Act, to provide direct or
indirect financial assistance, by way of a
loan, guarantee, the provision of security
or otherwise, to any person, for the
purpose of, or in connection with,
the subscription of any debt securities,
issued or to be issued by the Company
or a related or inter-related company, or
for the purchase of any debt securities
of the Company or of a related or interrelated company.
“Such authority shall endure until the
next Annual General Meeting of the
Company
for
the
year
ended
28 February 2019.”
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Reason for and effect of special
resolution 3
In terms of section 44 of the Companies
Act, shareholders are required to
approve by way of a special resolution
any direct or indirect financial assistance,
by way of a loan, guarantee, the
provision of security or otherwise, to
any person, for the purpose of, or in
connection with, the subscription of any
debt securities, issued or to be issued by
the Company or a related or interrelated company, or for the purchase of
any debt securities of the Company or
of a related or inter-related company.
Given that such financial assistance
exists between the companies within
the Group and may be required in future,
shareholders are requested to consider
and grant such general authority which
shall be renewed at most every 2 (two)
years.
The purpose of this special resolution is
to grant the directors of the Company
the authority to authorise the Company
to provide direct or indirect financial
assistance as contemplated in section
44 of the Act.
A 75% (seventy-five percent) majority of
votes cast by those shareholders
present or represented and voting at the
Annual General Meeting is required for
this resolution to be adopted.
SPECIAL RESOLUTION 4: APPROVAL
OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE S45
“Resolved that to the extent required by
the Companies Act, the Board of
directors of the Company may, subject
to compliance with the requirements of
the Company’s MOI, the Companies Act
and the JSE Listings Requirements, each
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as presently constituted and as
amended from time to time, authorise
the Company to provide direct or
indirect financial assistance, in terms of
section 45 of the Companies Act, by
way of loan, guarantee, the provision of
security or otherwise, to any of its
present or future subsidiaries and/or
any other company or corporation that
is or becomes related or inter-related to
the Company for any purpose or in
connection with any matter, including,
but not limited to, the acquisition of or
subscription for any option or any
securities issued or to be issued by the
Company or a related or inter-related
company, or for the purchase of any
securities of the Company or a related
or inter-related company.
“Such authority shall endure until the
next Annual General Meeting of the
Company
for
the
year
ended
28 February 2019.”
Reason for and effect of special
resolution 4
In terms of section 45 of the Companies
Act, shareholders are required to
approve by way of a special resolution
any financial assistance to related or
inter-related parties. Given that such
financial assistance exists between the
companies within the Group and may be
required in future, shareholders are
requested to consider and grant such
general authority which shall be renewed
at most every 2 (two) years.
The purpose of this special resolution is
to grant the directors of the Company
the authority to authorise the Company
to provide direct or indirect financial
assistance as contemplated in section

45 of the Act to any one or more related
or inter-related companies or within
the Group.
A 75% (seventy-five percent) majority of
votes cast by those shareholders
present or represented and voting at the
Annual General Meeting is required for
this resolution to be adopted.
11.

Authority to issue shares to
directors who elect to reinvest their
distributions under the Reinvestment
Option
SPECIAL RESOLUTION 5: AUTHORITY
TO ISSUE SHARES TO DIRECTORS
WHO ELECT TO REINVEST THEIR
DISTRIBUTIONS UNDER THE
REINVESTMENT OPTION
“Resolved that, subject to the provisions
of the Companies Act, the Company’s
MOI and the JSE Listings Requirements,
as applicable from time to time, that, in
the event that:
a.	
the
Company
elects,
upon
declaration by the Company of a
distribution in respect of its shares,
to afford all shareholders the
option
of
reinvesting
their
distributions by subscribing for
new shares of the Company (“the
Reinvestment Option”); and
b.	
some of the Company’s share
holders, who are also persons
contemplated in section 41(1) of
the Companies Act (which includes
present or future directors or
officers of the Company and
persons related or inter-related to
the Company or its directors and
officers), elect to reinvest their
distributions in accordance with
the Reinvestment Option, the

directors be and are hereby
authorised to issue to each such
shareholder who elects to reinvest
their distributions in accordance
with the Reinvestment Option
such number of shares as are
equivalent in value to the
distributions reinvested by such
shareholder, on such terms and
conditions as the directors may, at
their discretion, determine.”
Reason for and effect of special
resolution 5
The reason for special resolution 5 is to
comply with the provisions of the
Companies Act which requires an issue
of shares to present or future directors
or officers of the Company or their
related persons to be approved by
special resolution. To the extent that the
Company elects to offer shareholders
the opportunity to reinvest their
distributions in the Company by
subscribing for shares (and such
shareholders are persons contemplated
in section 41 of the Companies Act) the
Company will require such authority to
issue such shares. The effect of the
special resolution is that, if approved by
the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the directors will be authorised
to issue shares to shareholders who are
also present or future directors or
officers of the Company or their related
persons to reinvest their distribution in
accordance in the Reinvestment Option.
A 75% (seventy-five percent) majority of
votes cast by those shareholders
present or represented and voting at the
Annual General Meeting is required for
this resolution to be adopted.
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ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION
In terms of the Company’s MOI and sections
63(2) and 63(3) of the Companies Act,
shareholders or their proxies may participate
at the Annual General Meeting by way of
telephone conference call and, if they wish to
do so:
●● must
contact the Company Secretary
(email: paulanel@pncs.co.za) by no later
than 10:00 on 6 August 2018 in order to
obtain dial-in details for the conference
call;
●● will be required to provide reasonably
satisfactory identification; and
●● will be billed separately by their own
telephone service providers for their
telephone call to participate at the Annual
General Meeting.
VOTING AND PROXIES
Certificated and own-name dematerialised
shareholders are advised that they must
complete a form of proxy in order for their
vote/s to be valid. The form of proxy for
certificated and own-name dematerialised
shareholders is included in this integrated
annual report.
A shareholder of the Company entitled to
attend, speak and vote at the Annual General
Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or
proxies to attend, speak and to vote in his
stead. The proxy need not be a shareholder
of the Company.
On a show of hands, every shareholder of the
Company present in person or represented
by proxy shall have one vote only. On a poll,
every shareholder of the Company present in
person or represented by proxy shall have
one vote for every share in the Company by
such shareholder.
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A form of proxy is attached for the
convenience of certificated and own-name
dematerialised shareholders holding shares
in the Company who cannot attend the
Annual General Meeting but wish to be
represented thereat.
Such shareholders must complete and return
the attached form of proxy and lodge it with
the transfer secretaries of the Company.
Dematerialised shareholders who have not
elected own-name registration in the subregister of the Company through a Central
Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”)
and who wish to attend the Annual General
Meeting, must instruct the CSDP or broker to
provide them with the necessary authority
to attend.
Dematerialised shareholders who have not
elected own-name registration in the subregister of the Company through a CSDP and
who are unable to attend, but wish to vote at
the Annual General Meeting, must timeously
provide their CSDP or broker with their
voting instructions in terms of the custody
agreement entered into between that
shareholder and the CSDP or broker. Such
shareholders are advised that they must
provide their CSDP or broker with separate
voting instructions in respect of the shares.
Forms of proxy may also be obtained on
request from the Company’s registered
office. The completed forms of proxy must
be deposited at, posted or faxed to the
transfer secretaries, Computershare Investor
Services Proprietary Limited, Rosebank
Towers, 15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank, 2196
(PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107), to be
received at least 48 hours prior to the Annual

General Meeting. Any form of proxy not
delivered to the transfer secretaries by this
time may be handed to the Chairman of the
Annual General Meeting prior to the
commencement of the Annual General
Meeting, at any time before the appointed
proxy exercises any shareholder rights at the
Annual General Meeting. Any shareholder
who completes and lodges a form of proxy
will nevertheless be entitled to attend and
vote in person at the Annual General Meeting
should the shareholder subsequently decide
to do so.
By order of the Board

Paula Nel
Company Secretary
Registered office
Silver Stream Office Park, 10 Muswell Road South,
Bryanston, 2021
(Postnet Suite 210, Private Bag X21,
Bryanston, 2021)
Transfer secretaries
Computershare Investor Services
Proprietary Limited
Rosebank Towers, 15 Biermann Avenue,
Rosebank, 2196
(PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107)
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Annexure to the Notice of Annual
General Meeting
General information on the Company to support the resolutions proposed in the
Notice of Annual General Meeting

The following information is required by the JSE Listings Requirements with regard to the
resolution granting a general authority to the Company to repurchase its securities (special
resolution 2).
The JSE Listings Requirements require the following disclosures, some of which are elsewhere
in the integrated annual report of which this notice forms part as set out below:
●● Major beneficial shareholders of the Company
page 175
●● Capital structure of the Company
page 126

Material change

Other than the facts and developments reported on in the integrated annual report of which this
notice forms part, there have been no material changes in the affairs or financial position of the
Company and the Group since the date of signature of the audit report for the financial year
ended 28 February 2018 and up to the date of this notice.
The Board of directors has no immediate intention to use this authority to repurchase Company
shares. However, the Board of directors is of the opinion that this authority should be in place
should it become apparent to undertake a share repurchase in the future.

Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors whose names are given on pages 22 and 23 of the integrated annual report,
collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given
in this notice of Annual General Meeting and certify that to the best of their knowledge and
belief there are no facts that have been omitted which would make any statement false or
misleading, and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have been made and that
the notice contains all information required by law and the JSE Listings Requirements.

Statement by the Company’s Board of directors in respect of repurchases of
shares

Pursuant to and in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, the directors of the Company hereby
state that the intention of the directors is to utilise the authority at their discretion during the
course of the period so authorised as and when suitable opportunities present themselves,
which may require immediate action.
The directors are of the opinion that, after considering the effect of the maximum repurchase
permitted and for a period of 12 months after the date of this Annual General Meeting:
1. the Company and the Group will be able to pay their debts as they become due in the
ordinary course of business;
2. the consolidated assets of the Company and the Group, fairly valued in accordance with the
accounting policies used in the Company’s latest audited Group annual financial statements,
will be in excess of the consolidated liabilities of the Company and the Group; and
3. the share capital, reserves and working capital of the Company and the Group will be
adequate for the purposes of the ordinary business of the Company and the Group.
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Form of proxy
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number: 2002/005129/06)
Share code: DLT ISIN: ZAE000172052
(“Delta” or “the Company”)
REIT status approved
PROPERTY

FUND

Certificated and own-name dematerialised shareholders are advised that they must complete a form of proxy for certificated and
own-name dematerialised shareholders in order for their vote/s to be valid.
This form of proxy is for use by the holders of the Company’s certificated shares (“certificated shareholders”) and/or dematerialised
shares held through a Central Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker who have selected own-name registration and
who cannot attend but wish to be represented at the Annual General Meeting of the Company at Silver Stream Office Park,
10 Muswell Road South, Bryanston on 7 August 2018 at 10:00 (Central African time) or any adjournment if required. Additional
forms of proxy are available at the Company’s registered office.
They are not for the use by holders of the Company’s dematerialised shares who have not selected own-name registration. Such
shareholders must contact their CSDP or broker timeously if they wish to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting and
request that they be issued with the necessary authorisation to do so, or provide the CSDP or broker timeously with their voting
instructions should they not wish to attend the Annual General Meeting but wish to be represented thereat, in order for the CSDP
or broker to vote in accordance with their instructions.
I/We
(name/s in block letters) of
being the holder of

shares in the capital of the Company, do hereby appoint (see note):

1.

or failing him/her,

2.

or failing him/her,

the Chairman of the meeting, as my/our proxy to act for me/us at the Annual General Meeting (and any adjournment thereof)
convened for purposes of considering and, if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the resolutions (“resolutions”) to
be proposed thereat and at each adjournment thereof and to vote for and/or against the resolutions, and/or to abstain from
voting for and/or against the resolutions, in respect of the shares registered in my/our name in accordance with the following
instructions:
Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate spaces how you wish your votes to be cast. Unless this is done, the proxy will vote
as he/she deems fit.
Ordinary resolutions

For

1

To confirm resignation of Bronwyn Corbett as a non-executive director

2

To re-elect Ian Macleod as an independent non-executive director

3

To re-elect Dumo Motau as a non-executive director

4

To reappoint BDO South Africa Inc. as independent auditors to the Company

5

To re-elect JJ Njeke as a member and Chairman of the Company’s Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee for the year ended 28 February 2019

6

To re-elect Ian Macleod as a member of the Company’s Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee for the year ended 28 February 2019

7

To re-elect Nombuso Afolayan as a member of the Company’s Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee for the year ended 28 February 2019

8

Non-binding advisory vote to approve the remuneration policy

9

Non-binding advisory vote on implementation of the remuneration policy

10

To authorise the directors of the Company to issue shares for cash, as and when they
in their discretion deem fit

11

To authorise the issue of shares to shareholders who wish to reinvest their cash
distributions

12

To authorise any one director or the Company Secretary to action all ordinary and
special resolutions

Against

Abstain
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Form of proxy (continued)
Special resolutions

For

1

To approve the non-executive directors’ remuneration for their services as directors

2

To grant a general authority to repurchase issued shares

3

To approve the granting of financial assistance in terms of section 44 of the
Companies Act

4

To approve the granting of financial assistance in terms of section 45 of the
Companies Act

5

To grant the authority to issue shares to directors who elect to reinvest their
distributions under the Reinvestment Option

Signed at

on the

day of

Against

Abstain

2018

Signature				
Assisted by (where applicable)				
Each shareholder is entitled to appoint one or more proxies (who need not be a shareholder of the Company) to attend, speak
and vote in place of that shareholder at the Annual General Meeting.
Please read notes on the following page
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Notes to the form of proxy
Notes
Certificated and own-name dematerialised shareholders are advised that they must complete a form of proxy for
certificated and own-name dematerialised shareholders in order for their vote/s to be valid.
1.

The form of proxy must only be used by certificated ordinary shareholders or dematerialised ordinary shareholders
who hold dematerialised shares with own-name registration.

2. Dematerialised shareholders are reminded that the onus is on such shareholder to communicate with their CSDP.
3. A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may insert the name of a proxy or the
names of two alternative proxies of the shareholder’s choice in the space provided, with or without deleting “the
Chairman of the meeting”. The person whose name stands first on the form of proxy and who is present at
the Annual General Meeting will be entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of such proxy(ies) whose names follow.
4. A shareholder is entitled to one vote on a show of hands and, on a poll, one vote in respect of each share held.
A shareholder’s instructions to the proxy must be indicated by inserting the relevant number of votes exercisable
by the shareholder in the appropriate box(es). Failure to comply with this will be deemed to authorise the proxy
to vote or to abstain from voting at the Annual General Meeting as he/she deems fit in respect of all the
shareholder’s votes.
5. A vote given in terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid in relation to the Annual General Meeting
notwithstanding the death, insanity or other legal disability of the person granting it, or the revocation of the proxy,
or the transfer of the shares in respect of which the proxy is given, unless notice as to any of the aforementioned
matters shall have been received by the registrars not less than 48 (forty-eight) hours before the commencement
of the Annual General Meeting.
6. If a shareholder does not indicate on this form that his/her proxy is to vote in favour of or against any resolution
or to abstain from voting, or gives contradictory instructions, or should any further resolution(s) or any
amendment(s) which may properly be put before the Annual General Meeting be proposed, such proxy shall be
entitled to vote as he/she thinks fit.
7. The Chairman of the Annual General Meeting may reject or accept any form of proxy which is completed and/or
received other than in compliance with these notes.
8. The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant shareholder from attending the
Annual General Meeting and speaking and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in
terms hereof, should such shareholder wish to do so.
9. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing the form of proxy in a representative
capacity must be attached to this form of proxy, unless previously recorded by the Company or unless this
requirement is waived by the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting.
10. A minor or any other person under legal incapacity must be assisted by his/her parent or guardian, as applicable,
unless the relevant documents establishing his/her capacity are produced or have been registered with the
Company.
11. Where there are joint holders of shares:
•

any one holder may sign the form of proxy; and

•

the vote(s) of the senior shareholders (for that purpose seniority will be determined by the order in which the
names of shareholders appear in the Company’s register of shareholders) who tender a vote (whether in
person or by proxy) will be accepted to the exclusion of the vote(s) of the other joint shareholder(s).

The Chairman of the Annual General Meeting may reject or accept any form of proxy which is completed and/or
received otherwise than in accordance with these notes, provided that, in respect of acceptances, the Chairman is
satisfied as to the manner in which the shareholder concerned wishes to vote.
12. Forms of proxy should be lodged with or mailed to Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited:
Hand deliveries to:
Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited
Rosebank Towers, 15 Biermann Avenue
Rosebank, 2196

Postal deliveries to:
Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited
PO Box 61051
Marshalltown, 2107

to be received by no later than 10:00 on 5 August 2018 (or 48 hours before any adjournment of the Annual General
Meeting which date, if necessary, will be notified on SENS). Any form of proxy not delivered to the transfer
secretaries by this time may be handed to the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting prior to the commencement
of the Annual General Meeting, at any time before the appointed proxy exercises any shareholder rights at the
Annual General Meeting.
13. Any alteration or correction made to this form of proxy, other than the deletion of alternatives, must be initialled
by the signatory(ies).
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Catalyst for inner city
investment

DELTA TOWERS
Location: City block bounded by Dr Pixley Kaseme Street,
Dorothy Nyembe Street, Anton Lembede Street and Mercury
Lane, Durban CBD
GLA: 40 976m2
Province: KwaZulu-Natal
Property description: 33-storey multi-tenant office tower with
ground floor/high street retail
Building sector: Commercial offices
Acquisition date: 26 September 2014
Delta Towers is in close proximity to the KwaZulu-Natal legislature,
City Hall, Department of Public Works, banks, retail stores and public
transport hubs all within walking distance, providing a compelling
offer for corporates and government-user departments.
Home to arguably the largest Nando’s in South Africa and a first of
its kind, the retail offering on the ground floor offers convenience
shopping and catering.
At 40 976m2 Delta Towers is the Group’s largest asset in Durban (by
GLA) and comprises an entire city block. It offers convenient
corporate accommodation to multiple tenants such as the US
Consulate, Ithala, Ethikweni Municipality, Education USA and
others.
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Corporate information and advisers
Share code: DLT
ISIN: ZAE000194049
JSE sector: Real Estate –
Real Estate holdings and development
Year-end: 28 February 2018
Company registration number
2002/005129/06
VAT number
4470253156
Tax number
9464252148
Country of incorporation
South Africa
Website
www.deltafund.co.za
Registered office
Silver Stream Office Park
10 Muswell Road South
Bryanston, 2021
(Postnet Suite 210, Private Bag X21, Bryanston, 2021)
Legal adviser
Bowman Gilfillan Inc.
(Registration number: 1998/021409/21)
165 West Street
Sandton, 2146
(PO Box 785812, Sandton, 2146)

LDM Valuations Solutions Proprietary Limited
(Registration number: 2013/118576/07)
3 Oude Westhof Medical Centre
Van Riebeeckshof Road
Oude Westhof
7530
Western Cape
South Africa
(PO Box 12148, N1 City, 7463)
Realworx Property Valuations Proprietary Limited
(Registration number: 2013/229588/07)
1 North Abington
Cnr North Road and Abington Street
Kensington B
Randburg
2194
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Taboo Trading 242 Proprietary Limited
(Registration number: 2011/010433/07)
Trading as Valuations DNA
160 Frederick Drive
Northcliff, Johannesburg
(PO Box 5764, Cresta, 2118)
Graham Mulligan (sole proprietor)
3 Santa Rosa Road
Sunninghill
7441
(PO Box 86, West Coast Village, 7433)
Lightstone Property Proprietary Limited
(Registration number: 2010/018608/07)
Stratford House
The Braes
193 Bryanston Drive
Bryanston
2191
(PO Box 71931, Bryanston, 2021)
Communication adviser
Kanzuru Strategic Communications Proprietary
Limited
(Registration number: 2017/381732/07)
Postnet Suite 399
Private Bag X43
Sunninghill
2157
Transfer secretaries
Computershare Investor Services Proprietary
Limited
(Registration number: 2004/003647/07)
Rosebank Towers
15 Biermann Avenue
Rosebank
Johannesburg, 2196
(PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107)
Corporate adviser and sponsor
Nedbank Corporate and Investment Banking,
a division of Nedbank Limited
(Registration number: 1951/000009/06)
135 Rivonia Road
Sandown, 2196
(PO Box 1144, Johannesburg, 2000)
Independent reporting accountants and auditors
BDO South Africa Inc.
(Registration number: 1995/002310/21)
22 Wellington Road
Parktown, 2193
(Private Bag X60500, Houghton, 2041)

Internal auditors
Grant Thornton Advisory Services Proprietary
Limited
(Registration number: 2000/011066/07)
Wanderers Office Park
52 Corlett Drive
Illovo
2196
Competition law and tax adviser
Cliffe Dekker Hofmeyr Inc.
(Registration number: 2008/018923/21)
1 Protea Place
Sandton, 2196
(Private Bag X7, Benmore, 2010)
Bankers
The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited
(Registration number: 1962/000738/06)
Corporate Banking
3 Simmonds Street
Johannesburg, 2001
South Africa
(PO Box 61344, Marshalltown, 2107, South Africa)
Nedbank, acting through its corporate finance
business unit
a division of Nedbank Limited
(Registration number: 1951/000009/06)
135 Rivonia Road
Sandown, 2196
(PO Box 1144, Johannesburg, 2000)
Company Secretary
Paula Nel
BCom ACIS
Silver Stream Office Park
10 Muswell Road South
Bryanston, 2021
(Postnet Suite 210, Private Bag X21, Bryanston, 2021)
Enquiries relating to the integrated annual report
Sandile Nomvete – sandile.nomvete@deltafund.co.za
Shaneel Maharaj – shaneel.maharaj@deltafund.co.za
Otis Tshabalala – otis.tshabalala@deltafund.co.za
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Definitions
S25BB. Taxation of REITs
277 Vermeulen Street
A-grade building

A-grade tenant
AGM
Atterbury Parkdev
B-grade building

B-grade tenants
BDO
B-BBEE
BEE
BEE Act
Board
CBD
C-grade
C-grade tenants
CEO
CFO
CGT
Choice Decisions 300
CIO
CIPC
Companies Act
Computershare
COO

As defined in the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act 58 of 1962), Chapter II: The
Taxes, Part I: Normal Tax
277 Vermeulen Street Properties Proprietary Limited (registration
number: 2001/024462/07), a private company incorporated in South
Africa and a wholly owned subsidiary of Delta
Generally not older than 15 years or which has had a major renovation;
high-quality modern finishes; air-conditioning; adequate onsite parking,
market rental near the top of the range in the metropolitan area in which
the building is located
Large national tenants, large listed tenants, government and major
franchisees
Annual General Meeting
Atterbury Parkdev Consortium Proprietary Limited (registration number:
2003/020481/07), a private company incorporated in South Africa and
a wholly owned subsidiary of Delta
Generally older buildings, but accommodation and finishes close to
modern standards as a result of refurbishments and renovation from
time to time, air-conditioned; onsite parking, unless special circumstance
pertain
National tenants, listed tenants, franchisees, medium to large
professional firms
BDO South Africa Incorporated (registration number: 1995/002310/21),
a private company incorporated in South Africa
Broad-based black economic empowerment
Black economic empowerment as contemplated in the BEE Act
The BEE Act, No 53 of 2003, as amended from time to time
Board of directors
Central business district
Buildings with older style finishes, services and building systems. It may
or may not be air-conditioned or have onsite parking
Tenants not classified as A-grade or B-grade
Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Capital gains tax
Choice Decisions 300 Proprietary Limited (registration number:
2001/009295/07), a private company incorporated in South Africa and
a wholly owned subsidiary of Delta
Chief Investment Officer
Companies and Intellectual Property Commission
The Companies Act, No 71 of 2008, as amended
Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited
Chief Operating Officer
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DCM
Delta or the Company or
the Fund
Delta Group or Group
DMTN programme
DPW
Enterprise value

Executive
Gearing
GLA
Grant Thornton
Grindrod
Hendisa Investments
Hestitrix
IFRS
Investec
IPD
IT
ITA
JIBAR
JSE
K2014000273
King IV

Debt capital markets
Delta Property Fund Limited (registration number: 2002/005129/06),
a public company registered and incorporated in South Africa, formerly
a private company incorporated under the name Tuffsan 89 Investment
Holdings Proprietary Limited
Delta and its subsidiaries
Domestic Medium-Term Note programme
The National Department of Public Works
The sum of the Company’s market capitalisation, based on the
one-month volume weighted average price, and borrowings, being the
aggregate of the Company’s borrowings, excluding the value of any
debentures forming part of any linked units issued by the Company
CEO, CFO and COO
Loans from financial institutions
Gross lettable area
Grant Thornton Advisory Services Proprietary Limited (registration
number: 2002/022635/07)
Grindrod Bank Limited (registration number: 1994/007994/06), a limited
liability public company duly incorporated in South Africa
Hendisa Investments Proprietary Limited (registration number:
2004/006456/07), a private company incorporated in South Africa and
a wholly owned subsidiary of Delta
Hestitrix Proprietary Limited (registration number: 2010/0015274/07),
a private company incorporated in South Africa and a wholly owned
subsidiary of Delta
International Financial Reporting Standards
Investec Private Bank, a division of Investec Bank Limited (registration
number: 1969/004763/06), a public company registered and
incorporated in South Africa
Investment Property Databank
Information Technology
Income Tax Act, No 58 of 1962, as amended from time to time
Johannesburg Interbank Agreed Rate
JSE Limited (registration number: 2005/022939/06), a public company
registered and incorporated in South Africa, licensed as an exchange
under the Securities Services Act
K2014000273 Proprietary Limited (registration number:
2014/000273/07), a private company incorporated in South Africa and a
wholly owned subsidiary of Delta
King IV Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa, 2016
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Definitions (continued)
Libor
Listing date
LTV
m2 or sqm
Grit
Mesidox
Motseng Property
Services or MPS
MOI
MPI Property Asset
Management or MPI PAM
or the asset manager
Nedbank Capital or
sponsor
Nedbank Corporate
Ordinary share
Phamog Properties
Rand or “R”
REIT
SAICA
Sanlam
SAPOA
SARS
SENS
Standard Bank
Subsidiaries
TI
WALE

London Interbank Offered Rate
2 November 2012
Loan to value
Square metres
Grit Real Estate Income Group Limited (previously known as Mara Delta
Property Holdings Limited), registered by continuation in the Republic
of Mauritius) (registration number: 128881 C1/GBL)
Mesidox Proprietary Limited (registration number: 2010/001440/07),
a private company incorporated in South Africa
Motseng Property Services Proprietary Limited (registration number:
2001/007004/07), a private company incorporated in South Africa and
a wholly owned subsidiary of Motseng
Memorandum of Incorporation
MPI Property Asset Management Proprietary Limited (registration
number: 2012/084027/07), a private company incorporated in South
Africa and the asset manager to Delta
Nedbank Capital, a division of Nedbank Limited (registration number:
1951/000009/06), a public company registered and incorporated in
South Africa and the bookrunner, investment bank and sponsor to Delta
A division of Nedbank Limited (registration number: 1951/000009/06),
a public company registered and incorporated in South Africa
An ordinary no par value share in the share capital of Delta
Phamog Properties Proprietary Limited (registration number:
2013/103000/07), a private company incorporated in South Africa and a
wholly owned subsidiary of Delta
South African rand
Real Estate Investment Trust
The South African Institute of Chartered Accountants
Sanlam Limited (registration number: 1959/001562/06), a public
company registered and incorporated in South Africa
South African Property Owners Association
The South African Revenue Service
The JSE’s real-time Securities Exchange News Service
A division of The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited (registration
number: 1962/000738/06), a public company registered and
incorporated in South Africa
Comprises the following companies: 277 Vermeulen, Atterbury Parkdev,
Choice Decisions 300, Hendisa Investments, Hestitrix, K2014000273
and Phamog
Tenant installations
Weighted average lease expiry
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